
   AGENDA  
 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
Regular Meeting October 19, 2016 

Board of Directors Meeting  
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, California 
 
  Wednesday, October 19, 2016 6:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 

 
 

Board of Directors 
GREG STANTON (GS), President 
MARGARET MOHR (MM), Vice-President  
Directors: AMY BLACKMON (AB), SCOTT MCNEIL (SM), HOLLY MORRISON (HM) 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
 
ROLL CALL     
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
Board members, staff and members of the public may request an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion.    The Board 
will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda, determine matters to be added to or removed from the 
Consent Calendar, and with one motion adopt the Agenda and approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
MOMENT OF RECOGNITION 
This allotted time provides an opportunity for the Board of Directors to express appreciation to members of the community, District 
staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.  
  
PRESENTATION 
This allotted time provides an opportunity for the Board of Directors to receive guest speakers who have been invited to present items 
to the Board that are of interest to the District. 
 

• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Presentation by Chao Yang, EIT, Engineering Aide, Transportation Division, El 
Dorado County Community Development Agency 

 
OPEN FORUM 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors. 
Comment during the Open Forum is limited to four minutes per person. Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is 
called. Principal party on each side of an issue (where applicable) is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 
four minutes except with the consent of the Board, individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. The Board reserves the 
right to waive said rules by a majority vote. For the public’s information, we are now taking email requests for future notification of 
Community Services District meetings.  
 
BEGINNING OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
1. APPROVAL OF DRAFT CONFORMED AGENDAS 

a. Board of Directors’ Regular Meeting, September 21, 2016 
b. Board of Directors’ Special Meeting, September 29, 2016 
c. Board of Directors’ Special Meeting, October 4, 2016 
d. Board of Directors’ Special Meeting, October 12, 2016 

 
2. STAFF REPORTS 

a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Fire Department Report 
c. Recreation Department Report 
d. Parks Department Report 

 



   AGENDA  
 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
Regular Meeting October 19, 2016 

3. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
a. Preliminary Financial Report 
b. Check Register 
c. General Manager’s Credit Card Activity 

 
END OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS   
For Purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), the numbered items on this Agenda provide a brief description of each item of business to 
be transacted or discussed.  Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking other action. 
 
4. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR DISCUSSION    

 
5. 2016-17 PROJECT UPDATES 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING - SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2016.10.19 ADOPTING THE 2016 
EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE  
Recommended Action:  Receive, Discuss and Provide the Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 2016.10.19 Adopting the 
2016 Edition of the California Fire Code with a Board Poll Vote 
 

7. COMPARISON FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 GOALS 
Recommended Action:  Receive, Discuss and Action as Appropriate 
 

8. GAMETIME PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT GRANT 
Recommended Action:  Receive, Discuss and Action as Appropriate 
 

9. OPEN SPACE AND SPECIAL USE PARK PERMITS 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 

10. REPORT BACK ITEMS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
11. MATTERS TO AND FROM DIRECTORS 

At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues.  Direction by the President may be given; 
however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   
a. LAFCO – Director Morrison 

 
12. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a. Budget and Administration – Chair Director McNeil, Vice Chair Director Stanton and Alternate Director  Mohr 
b. CC&Rs – Vice Chair Director Morrison, Director Blackmon and Alternate Director McNeil 
c. Fire and Emergency Services – Chair Director Morrison, Vice Chair Director McNeil and Alternate Director Blackmon 
d. Parks and Recreation – Chair Director Mohr, Vice Chair Director Blackmon and Alternate Director Morrison 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
An AGENDA in FINAL FORM is located in the Reception area in the District Office as well as each of the Cameron Park Fire Stations. 
Additionally, a copy of the FINAL AGENDA is available on the District's website at www.cameronpark.org. Support material is 
available for public inspection at the receptionist counter in the District Office. Sessions of the Board of Directors may be recorded and 
members of the audience are asked to give their name and address before addressing the Board.  
 
Any written document that relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the District 
which is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the same time the writing is 
distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Board of Directors of the District. Such written documents will be made 
available at the District Offices located at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, CA 95682. 
 



   AGENDA  
 

Board of Directors Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
Regular Meeting October 19, 2016 

Such writings will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a person with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof. 

 
A person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 
public meeting of the Board of Directors may, five (5) days prior to the date scheduled for a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors, contact the District Office at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron 
Park, CA 95682, phone number: (530) 677-2231 to request a disability related modification or 
accommodation in order to attend the meeting, or to request auxiliary aids or services in order to 
enable such person to understand the proceedings at such meeting. 

 
 



 DRAFT  CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
Regular Meeting September 21, 2016 

Board of Directors Meeting  
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, California 
 
  Wednesday, September 21, 2016 6:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 

 
 

Board of Directors 
GREG STANTON (GS), President 
MARGARET MOHR (MM), Vice-President  
Directors: AMY BLACKMON (AB), SCOTT MCNEIL (SM), HOLLY MORRISON (HM) 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 6:31 p.m.    
 
ROLL CALL – MM, AB, HM           GS and SM are absent     
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA AND APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
Board members, staff and members of the public may request an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion.    The Board 
will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda, determine matters to be added to or removed from the 
Consent Calendar, and with one motion adopt the Agenda and approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
 Motion to approve the Consent Calendar and adopt the Agenda with the following revision: 

• Pull agenda items from the Consent Calendar for discussion: 
o #2.  Staff Reports 
o #3.  Financial Reports 

  
 AB/HM – Motion passed 
 Ayes – MM, AB, HM 
 Noes – None 
 Absent – GS, SM 
 Abstain – None 
 Public Comment - None 
 
MOMENT OF RECOGNITION 
This allotted time provides an opportunity for the Board of Directors to express appreciation to members of the community, District 
staff, or the Board for extra efforts as volunteers, committee members or community-minded citizens.   
  

•  Boy Scout Troop 700 and Cub Scout Pack 700 for their Work at the Community Campout 
 
PRESENTATION 
This allotted time provides an opportunity for the Board of Directors to receive guest speakers who have been invited to present items 
to the Board that are of interest to the District. 
 
OPEN FORUM 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any item not on the agenda that falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors. 
Comment during the Open Forum is limited to four minutes per person. Public testimony will be received on each agenda item as it is 
called. Principal party on each side of an issue (where applicable) is allocated 10 minutes to speak, individual comments are limited to 
four minutes except with the consent of the Board, individuals shall be allowed to speak on an item only once. The Board reserves the 
right to waive said rules by a majority vote. For the public’s information, we are now taking email requests for future notification of 
Community Services District meetings.  
 
 Bill Carey, Dave Gelber, Barbara Rogers, Jan Keahey, Gerald Lillpop, Lara Antoniolli, Stephanie McCorkle, TuckerZurawski 
 
 



 DRAFT  CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
Regular Meeting September 21, 2016 

BEGINNING OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. APPROVAL OF DRAFT CONFORMED AGENDAS 

a. Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting, August 8, 2016 
b. Board of Directors’ Regular Meeting, August 17, 2016 
c. Board of Directors’ Special Meeting, September 8, 2016 

 
2. STAFF REPORTS – Pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion (see agenda item #6.) 

a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Fire Department Report 
c. Recreation Department Report 
d. Parks Department Report 

 
3. FINANCIAL REPORTS – Pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion (see agenda item #6.) 

a. Preliminary Financial Report 
b. Check Register 
c. General Manager’s Credit Card Activity 

 
4. CC&R VIOLATION AT 2642 BERTELLA ROAD 

Recommended Action:  Receive and Approve Referral to Legal Counsel 
 
5. CC&R VIOLATION AT 4280 GAILEY CIRCLE 

Recommended Action:  Receive and Approve Referral to Legal Counsel 
 

END OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
DEPARTMENT MATTERS   
For Purposes of the Brown Act §54954.2 (a), the numbered items on this Agenda provide a brief description of each item of business to 
be transacted or discussed.  Recommendations of the staff, as shown, do not prevent the Board from taking other action. 
 
6. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR DISCUSSION    
 
 STAFF REPORTS 

a. General Manager’s Report 
b. Fire Department Report 
c. Recreation Department Report 
d. Parks Department Report 

 
FINANCIAL REPORTS 
a. Preliminary Financial Report 
b. Check Register 
c. General Manager’s Credit Card Activity 

 
7. WEED ABATEMENT AD HOC COMMITTEE UPDATE 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
 No Action 
 

8. ORDINANCE NO. 2016.10.19 ADOPTING THE 2016 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE  
Recommended Action:  Receive, Discuss and Provide the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2016.10.19 Adopting the 2016 Edition 
of the California Fire Code 
 

  No Action 
 
 
 



 DRAFT  CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

Board of Directors Conformed Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
Regular Meeting September 21, 2016 

9. 2016-2017 PROJECT UPDATES  
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
 No Action 
 

10. REPORT BACK ITEMS TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
11. MATTERS TO AND FROM DIRECTORS 

At this time, the Board and staff are provided the opportunity to speak on various issues.  Direction by the President may be given; 
however, no action may be taken unless the Board agrees to include the matter on a subsequent agenda.   
a. LAFCO – Director Morrison 

 Approved the nomination of Commissioner Shiva Frentzen.  Public comment was opened on some of the smaller 
 special districts within the state.  Invited the public to attend these meetings.  There was a public hearing to consider 
 and adopt the environmental review in the city of South Lake Tahoe municipal service review.   

 
• AB – Thanked staff and CAL FIRE for their work. 
• HM – Asked for the support of the Board members.  Director was unaware of several items in the community and 

would like other Board members to keep her updated.   
• MM – Had an opportunity to ride along with staff to observe the empty lots in Cameron Park and it was an eye-

opening experience. 
 

12. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Budget and Administration – Chair Director McNeil, Vice Chair Director Stanton and Alternate Director  Mohr 

 None 
b. CC&Rs – Vice Chair Director Morrison, Director Blackmon and Alternate Director McNeil 

 Very busy with end of the summer issues.  Invited the public to attend these meetings. 
c. Fire and Emergency Services – Chair Director Morrison, Vice Chair Director McNeil and Alternate Director Blackmon 

 Approved bringing the Fire Code ordinance to the Board and had a review of the Weed Abatement Program.   
d. Parks and Recreation – Chair Director Mohr, Vice Chair Director Blackmon and Alternate Director Morrison 

 A family caregiver coordinator came to the meeting and asked if she could provide a program at the Community Services 
 District.  Gateway Park improvement ideas, based on the survey, will be coming to the Board.   

 
ADJOURNMENT – 8:13 p.m.  
An AGENDA in FINAL FORM is located in the Reception area in the District Office as well as each of the Cameron Park Fire Stations. 
Additionally, a copy of the FINAL AGENDA is available on the District's website at www.cameronpark.org. Support material is 
available for public inspection at the receptionist counter in the District Office. Sessions of the Board of Directors may be recorded and 
members of the audience are asked to give their name and address before addressing the Board.  
 
Any written document that relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the District 
which is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the same time the writing is 
distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Board of Directors of the District. Such written documents will be made 
available at the District Offices located at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, CA 95682. 
 
Such writings will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a person with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof. 
 

A person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 
public meeting of the Board of Directors may, five (5) days prior to the date scheduled for a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors, contact the District Office at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron 
Park, CA 95682, phone number: (530) 677-2231 to request a disability related modification or 
accommodation in order to attend the meeting, or to request auxiliary aids or services in order to 
enable such person to understand the proceedings at such meeting. 

 
 



DRAFT   CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

 
Board of Directors Conformed Agenda Page 1 of 2 
Special Meeting September 29, 2016 

Special Meeting of Board of Directors Meeting  
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, California 
 
 Thursday, September 29, 2016 
  

5:30 p.m. Special Meeting 
Board will convene into  
Closed Session after Public Comment 
 

Board of Directors 
GREG STANTON (GS), President 
MARGARET MOHR, (MM), Vice-President  
Directors: AMY BLACKMON (AB), SCOTT MC NEIL (SM), HOLLY MORRISON (HM) 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 5:30 p.m.    
 
ROLL CALL – GS, MM, AM, SM, HM     
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
Board members, staff and members of the public may request an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion.    The Board 
will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda, determine matters to be added to or removed from the 
Consent Calendar, and with one motion adopt the Agenda and approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
 Motion to adopt the agenda. 
 
 SM/MM - Motion Passed 
 Ayes – GS, MM, AB, SM, HM 
 Noes – None 
 Abstain - None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. 
 
Closed Sessions may be called as necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the 
purchase, sale, exchange or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting. 
 
 None 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION 
The Board will recess to Closed Session to discuss the following items: 
 

• Pursuant to California Government Code §54957(B)(1) 
 

Consider the appointment, employment, evaluation or performance, discipline or dismissal of a public employee or to hear 
complaints or charges brought against the employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a public 
session.   

 
Unrepresented Employee of the District – General Manager 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION – 7:38 p.m. 
Pursuant to Government Code §54957.1, the legislative body of any local agency shall publicly report any action taken in closed 
session and the vote or abstention of every member present thereon.     
 
 Nothing to report out. 
 



DRAFT   CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

 
Board of Directors Conformed Agenda Page 2 of 2 
Special Meeting September 29, 2016 

ADJOURNMENT – 7:38 p.m. 
An AGENDA in FINAL FORM is located in the Reception area in the District Office as well as each of the Cameron Park Fire 
Stations. Additionally, a copy of the FINAL AGENDA is available on the District's website at www.cameronpark.org. Support 
material is available for public inspection at the receptionist counter in the District Office. Sessions of the Board of Directors may be 
recorded and members of the audience are asked to give their name and address before addressing the Board.  
 
Any written document that relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the District which is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the 
same time the writing is distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Board of Directors of the District. 
Such written documents will be made available at the District Offices located at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, 
CA 95682. 
 
Such writings will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a person with a disability, as required by 
Section 202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof. 

 
A person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 
public meeting of the Board of Directors may, five (5) days prior to the date scheduled for a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors, contact the District Office at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron 
Park, CA 95682, phone number: (530) 677-2231 to request a disability related modification or 
accommodation in order to attend the meeting, or to request auxiliary aids or services in order to 
enable such person to understand the proceedings at such meeting. 

 
 
 



DRAFT   CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

 
Board of Directors Conformed Agenda Page 1 of 2 
Special Meeting October 4, 2016 

Special Meeting of Board of Directors Meeting  
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, California 
 
 Tuesday, October 4, 2016 
  

5:30 p.m. Special Meeting 
Board will convene into  
Closed Session after Public Comment 
 

Board of Directors 
GREG STANTON (GS), President 
MARGARET MOHR, (MM), Vice-President  
Directors: AMY BLACKMON (AB), SCOTT MC NEIL (SM), HOLLY MORRISON (HM) 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 5:30 p.m.   
 
ROLL CALL – GS, MM, AB, SM, HM     
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
Board members, staff and members of the public may request an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion.    The Board 
will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda, determine matters to be added to or removed from the 
Consent Calendar, and with one motion adopt the Agenda and approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
  Motion to adopt agenda. 
 
  AB/SM – Motion Passed 
  Ayes – GS, MM, AB, SM, HM 
  Noes – None 
  Abstain - None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. 
 
Closed Sessions may be called as necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the 
purchase, sale, exchange or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting. 
 
 Marjorie Corvin 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION – 5:38 p.m. 
The Board will recess to Closed Session to discuss the following items: 
 

• Pursuant to California Government Code §54957(B)(1) 
 

Consider the appointment, employment, evaluation or performance, discipline or dismissal of a public employee or to hear 
complaints or charges brought against the employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a public 
session.   

 
Unrepresented Employee of the District – General Manager 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION – 6:19 p.m. 
Pursuant to Government Code §54957.1, the legislative body of any local agency shall publicly report any action taken in closed 
session and the vote or abstention of every member present thereon.     
 
ADJOURNMENT - 6:19 p.m. 



DRAFT   CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

 
Board of Directors Conformed Agenda Page 2 of 2 
Special Meeting October 4, 2016 

An AGENDA in FINAL FORM is located in the Reception area in the District Office as well as each of the Cameron Park Fire 
Stations. Additionally, a copy of the FINAL AGENDA is available on the District's website at www.cameronpark.org. Support 
material is available for public inspection at the receptionist counter in the District Office. Sessions of the Board of Directors may be 
recorded and members of the audience are asked to give their name and address before addressing the Board.  
 
Any written document that relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the District which is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the 
same time the writing is distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Board of Directors of the District. 
Such written documents will be made available at the District Offices located at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, 
CA 95682. 
 
Such writings will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a person with a disability, as required by 
Section 202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof. 

 
A person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 
public meeting of the Board of Directors may, five (5) days prior to the date scheduled for a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors, contact the District Office at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron 
Park, CA 95682, phone number: (530) 677-2231 to request a disability related modification or 
accommodation in order to attend the meeting, or to request auxiliary aids or services in order to 
enable such person to understand the proceedings at such meeting. 

 
 



DRAFT   CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

 
Board of Directors Conformed Agenda Page 1 of 2 
Special Meeting October 12, 2016 

Special Meeting of Board of Directors Meeting  
Cameron Park Community Services District 
2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, California 
 
 Wednesday, October 12, 2016 
  

6:00 p.m. Special Meeting 
Board will convene into  
Closed Session after Public Comment 
 

Board of Directors 
GREG STANTON (GS), President 
MARGARET MOHR, (MM), Vice-President  
Directors: AMY BLACKMON (AB), SCOTT MC NEIL (SM), HOLLY MORRISON (HM) 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 6:02 p.m.   
 
ROLL CALL – GS, MM, AB, SM, HM    
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
Board members, staff and members of the public may request an item be pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion.    The Board 
will make any necessary additions, deletions, or corrections to the Agenda, determine matters to be added to or removed from the 
Consent Calendar, and with one motion adopt the Agenda and approve the Consent Calendar. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, members of the public may speak on any closed session agenda item. 
 
Closed Sessions may be called as necessary for personnel, litigation, and labor relations or to meet the negotiator prior to the 
purchase, sale, exchange or lease of real property. Members of the public may address the Board prior to closing the meeting. 
 
CONVENE TO CLOSED SESSION – 6:02 p.m. 
The Board will recess to Closed Session to discuss the following items: 
 

• Pursuant to California Government Code §54957(B)(1) 
 

Consider the appointment, employment, evaluation or performance, discipline or dismissal of a public employee or to hear 
complaints or charges brought against the employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a public 
session.   

 
Unrepresented Employee of the District – General Manager 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION AND REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION – 6:19 p.m. 
Pursuant to Government Code §54957.1, the legislative body of any local agency shall publicly report any action taken in closed 
session and the vote or abstention of every member present thereon.     
 
 Motion to authorize the president to execute an agreement with Liebert, Cassidy and Whitmore to conduct an  
 investigation regarding employment allegations received by the District.   
 
  SM/HM – Motion Passed 
  Ayes – GS, MM, AB, SM, HM 
  Noes – None 
  Abstain - None 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT   CONFORMED AGENDA  
 

 
Board of Directors Conformed Agenda Page 2 of 2 
Special Meeting October 12, 2016 

ADJOURNMENT – 6:19 p.m. 
An AGENDA in FINAL FORM is located in the Reception area in the District Office as well as each of the Cameron Park Fire 
Stations. Additionally, a copy of the FINAL AGENDA is available on the District's website at www.cameronpark.org. Support 
material is available for public inspection at the receptionist counter in the District Office. Sessions of the Board of Directors may be 
recorded and members of the audience are asked to give their name and address before addressing the Board.  
 
Any written document that relates to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the District which is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be made available for public inspection at the 
same time the writing is distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the Board of Directors of the District. 
Such written documents will be made available at the District Offices located at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron Park, 
CA 95682. 
 
Such writings will be made available in appropriate alternative formats upon request by a person with a disability, as required by 
Section 202 of the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Federal Rules and Regulations adopted in 
implementation thereof. 

 
A person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 
public meeting of the Board of Directors may, five (5) days prior to the date scheduled for a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors, contact the District Office at 2502 Country Club Drive, Cameron 
Park, CA 95682, phone number: (530) 677-2231 to request a disability related modification or 
accommodation in order to attend the meeting, or to request auxiliary aids or services in order to 
enable such person to understand the proceedings at such meeting. 

 
 



ADA TRANSITION PLAN
ON COUNTY MAINTAINED ROADWAYS

Presented by:
Community Development Agency,

Transportation Division

Cameron Park CSD, October 19, 2016

Andrew Gaber, PE
Deputy Director, DRE

Janet Postlewait
Principal Planner

Donna Keeler
Senior Planner

Chao Yang
Engineering Aide



GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
0Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
0ADA Formal Transition Plan: Curb Ramps
0Preliminary ADA Transition Plan
0Public Input 
0Finalize plan in early 2017



AREAS SURVEYED
0 Western Slope
0 Geographic Limits:  focus on County roadways

SUMMARY OF EXISTING CURB RAMPS PER AREA

AREA NO. OF CURB 
RAMPS

PERCENT OF 
TOTAL

Cameron Park 124 25.94%
Camino 5 1.05%
Diamond Springs 42 8.79%
El Dorado Hills 274 57.32%
Latrobe 16 3.34%
Shingle Springs 15 3.14%
Unincorporated Placerville 2 0.42%

Total 478 100.00%



METHOD OF SURVEYING

0Data collection
0 Slopes
0 Width, Depth
0 Detectable Warning 

Surface (yellow 
truncated domes)

0Caltrans 
Specifications



SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
0Number of Ramps Inspected: 478
0Number of Ramps Comply: 52
0Number of Ramps need Repairs/Modification: 

426



Curb Ramp Database



CURB RAMPS NEEDED
SUMMARY OF CURB RAMPS NEEDED PER AREA

AREA NO. OF CURB 
RAMPS

PERCENT OF 
TOTAL

Cameron Park 12 17.39%
Camino 2 2.90%
Diamond Springs 3 4.35%
El Dorado Hills 30 43.48%
Georgetown 4 5.80%
Pollock Pines 12 17.39%
Shingle Springs 6 8.70%

Total 69 100.00%



RATINGS
Rating

Number Rating Description

R0

R1

R2

R3

R4

R5

R6

R7

R8

Ramp Meets All Specifications

Ramp Has One Defect 

Ramp Has Two Defects

Ramp Has Three Defects

Ramp Has Four Defects 

Ramp Has Five Defects 

Ramp Has Six Defects 

Ramp Has Seven or More Defects 

Ramp Does Not Exist and is Needed      



Priority 
Number Priority Description

P1 Known Frequented Routes of Disabled Citizens

P2 Facilities Near Heavily Used Public Transit Stops

P3 Facilities Near Essential Public Facilities

P4 Facilities Near Major Commercial Centers

P5 Facilities Along Major Arterials

P6 Facilities Along Transit Routes

P7 Facilities Near Neighborhood 
Commercial Development

P8 Facilities in Residential Neighborhoods 

PRIORITIES



Cameron Park-
Curb Ramp Locations



COST ESTIMATE PER CASE

0 Four Cases

Case Item Description Unit of 
Measure

Estimated 
Quantity

Unit 
Price Item Cost

1
Detectable Warning 

Surface
SF 12 45 $540

2
Remove and 

Replace Curb & 
Gutter

LF 50 65 $3,250

3
Remove and 

Replace Curb Ramp
EA 1 10,000 $10,000

4
Minor Concrete 

(Install Curb Ramp)
LS 1 7,500 $7,500



PRELIMINARY 
COST ESTIMATE

0 Repair, Replacement, or Installation Total Cost

Case Item Cost No. of Curb 
Ramps Total Cost

1 $540 25 $13,500

2 $3,250 34 $110,500 

3 $10,000 382 $3,820,000 

4 $7,500 69 $517,500 

Total Cost for all Cases $4,461,500 
Assume 20% PE/Design& 15%CM (35% total) $1,561,525 

GRAND TOTAL $6,023,025 



REPAIR/REPLACEMENT
PROPOSED SCHEDULE

0 Estimated Current Total Cost: $6,023,025
0 Repair, Replacement/Installation: 15 year 
0 Yearly Cost: $401,535
0 Begin repair/modification with those 

assigned the highest priority
0 Built per current Caltrans Standards



GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES
0 Complaint and Grievance procedures
0 Contact Staff
0 www.edcgov.us/ADA.aspx

http://www.edcgov.us/ADA.aspx


ANTICIPATED PROJECT 
SCHEDULE

Public Meeting and Board Approval in Spring 2017

Evaluate 
Curb 

Ramps

ADA 
Preliminary 
Transition 

Plan

Public 
Outreach

Formal 
ADA 

Transitio
n Plan

Board 
Approval

Adopt 
Plan



NEXT STEPS
0 Surveys – please fill one out
0 Public Workshop 

0 October 25, 2016 at 6:00 PM                            
2850 Fairlane Court, Placerville, CA 

0 Visit project Website at: 
www.edcgov.us/ADA.aspx

http://www.edcgov.us/ADA.aspx


QUESTIONS? Or COMMENTS?

Contact: Donna Keeler
Email: adacoordinator@edcgov.us
Phone: (530)621-5900

Thank you!



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Hosted by Community Development Agency, 
Transportation Division 
Contact: Donna Keeler at adacoordinator@edcgov.us, 530.621.5900 
For more information, visit: www.edcgov.us/ADA.aspx 
Questions about facility accessibility/to request accommodations for this 
meeting: Kevin Gilliland at kevin.gilliland@edcgov.us, 530.621.5890 
 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016 

Planning Commission Hearing Room  

2850 Fairlane Court, Placerville 

@ 6:00pm 

 

 

Come share your experiences 
and concerns regarding the 
physical accessibility of curb 
ramps within County’s right-
of-way. 

mailto:adacoordinator@edcgov.us
mailto:kevin.gilliland@edcgov.us


 

 
 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  Mary Cahill, General Manager  
 
AGENDA ITEM #2A:  GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive and File  
  
BUDGET ACCOUNT: N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A   
 
See report at agenda item #5. 
 
Upcoming events include: 
 October 22 Halloween Carnival & Pumpkin Patch 
 November 2 Gold Country Regional Chapter Workshop  
 
Community/staff meetings include:  
 Ongoing Weekly Staff Meetings 
 September 21 CPCSD Board of Directors 
 September 27 PG&E 
 September 28 Shingle Springs/Cameron Park Chamber of Commerce Luncheon 
 September 28 Gold Country Regional Chapter 
 September 29 Cameron Park Community Foundation 
 September 29 CPCSD Board of Directors 
 September 30 GameTime Playground Equipment Grant 
 October 4 El Dorado Disposal 
 October 4 CPCSD Board of Directors 
 October 6 Camerado School 
 October 11 Budget & Administration Committee 
 October 11 Fire & Emergency Services Committee 
 October 12 Parks & Recreation Committee 
 October 12 CPCSD Board of Directors 
 October 12 Bill Thorpe _Video Taping 
 October 13 Community Services Showcase 
 October 14 Site Walk with Op Terra 



 

General Manager’s Report October 19, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
 

 October 17 Pine Hill Preserve Trail Feasibility Study 
 October 19 CPCSD Board of Directors 
 



Page 1 of 4  

Cameron Park Community Services District 
Staff Report – October 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Bob Counts, Battalion Chief 

Regarding Item #2b: Fire Department Report for the October 19, 2016 - Board Meeting 

Recommended Action: Receive and File 

 

Incidents for the Month of September 2016: 
 

 
Vegetation Structure Other Medical 

and 

Hazardous Public 

Service 

 

Fires Fires Fires / Auto Vehicle 

Accidents 

Materials Assists Total(s) 

3 0 7 138 2 140 290 
 

Incident Total for Month of September: 290 
 
 

 



Page 2 of 4  

 

 
as of September 30, 2016 

 
Incidents have increased by 2% for the month of August compared to 2015. Total incidents have 

increased by 9% for the calendar year compared to 2015. 

 

PERSONNEL 
 

Our two new Fire Apparatus Engineer Paramedics Steve Chapman and Paul Monaco have completed all 

of their required County and Local orientations and are fully functioning members of Cameron Park Fire 

Department. 

 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

Incidents 
 

There were no incidents of note during the month of September. 

 

 

Apparatus 
 

The new Engine 89 has been in service for a number of months now, and we could not be more pleased 

with how it turned out. This now gives us the opportunity to get back to a more routine schedule of 

preventative maintenance on our current fleet. Currently, Engine 289 (the old Engine 89) is at 

Growlersburg Camp to perform its yearly preventative maintenance and to make small repairs. We have a 

schedule to rotate each of our Engines through the Camp to receive their maintenance. This rotation 

became much more feasible with the addition of the new Engine, and having a solid reserve Engine to 

switch into. 

 

Please see the attached report on the status of our hired equipment program. 



Page 3 of 4  

El Dorado County Training Officers Association 
 

Cameron Park Fire Department will be participating in a County Wide MCI drill / workshop on October 

22
nd 

at Marshall Annex in Cameron Park. The purpose of this workshop is to develop new response 
standards within the County when dealing with escalating law enforcement incidents where fire 
departments will be involved in patient care. 

 

El Dorado County Fire Chiefs Association 

 

There were no new items of interest to report from the September 28
th 

County Fire Chiefs Association 

meeting. The minutes from the August 24
th 

meeting are attached. 

 

JPA OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATION 
 

JPA Board of Directors Meeting 
 

After a lengthy RFP process, the County has entered into contract with a new electronic Patient Care 

report platform (EPCR). Image Trend was selected as the vendor, and we hope to be rolling out the new 

program at the first of the year. Cameron Park has assigned two Field Training Officers to begin in the 

training process for the new program. Our old EPCR program was dumped approximately two years ago 

due to poor performance, and we have been writing PCRs by hand ever since. This will be a great 

improvement in efficiency of our medic units, reducing time spent at the hospital completing PCRs, and 

will also increase effiency in billing and fund recovery. 
 

The minutes from the August 24
th 

JPA Board of Directors are also attached. 

 

FIRE PREVENTION 
 

There is no denying it, the now five year drought has affected how quickly wildland fires grow, and with 

a ferocity never seen before. Now that it’s November we should be able to catch our breath and let our 

guard down right? Wrong! One winter is not going to get Cameron Park or El Dorado County out of a 

drought. It will take many years of above average rainfall to get California back out of its drought. Let’s 

take advantage of the cooler temperatures and remain vigilant, maintain defensible space and stay fire 

smart. 

Maintain your defensible space while the temperatures are cooler. The larger brush and other 

non-valued landscape is easier to deal with now. Ensure you get a head start now, while it is 

more comfortable to deal with. An added bonus is that it will be much less difficult and more 

manageable come springtime. 

With the upcoming Holiday season it is also important to remember to stay fire smart while 

cooking. Holidays are a time of food, fun and festivities; but they are also a time to be extra cautious. 

Thousands of home fires across the nation are caused from holiday cooking. To help reduce the chance 

of fire and injuries associated with holiday cooking fires, we would like to offer the following tips: 

 Stay in the kitchen when you are cooking on the stove. Never leave cooking food on the stove 

unattended. If you leave the kitchen for even a short period of time, turn off the stove. 
 

 Food preparation and cooking should always be supervised by an adult. 
 

 When using a turkey fryer, be sure to follow instructions closely. Don’t exceed the recommended 

oil level and only use the device outdoors! 



Page 4 of 4  

 Make sure a fire extinguisher is handy at all times. Never use water to put out a grease fire. 
 

 Ensure that smoke alarms are installed and working properly. 
 

Following these simple safety tips can ensure your family and friends enjoy the Holidays and stay safe. 

As always, remember to have a designated driver. 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) TIER 1 PROJECTS 

 

 Exterior station paint Station 89 – Staff has been searching for a vendor that is willing to do the 

project under prevailing wage rules. So far, no luck in getting quotes. Staff will continue to actively 

get quotes to finish the project prior to the end of the 2016-17 fiscal year. 

 Upstairs bathroom remodel station 89 – Staff has been working with a vendor to design new 

countertops for the bathroom as well as the downstairs workroom countertops. This project does not 

meet prevailing wage requirements and is projected to be within budget.  

 

IMPACT FEE NEXUS STUDY/IMPACT FEE PROJECTS 

 

The Impact Fee Nexus Study is still stalled out at the County level due to various issues out of our 

control. We will not be able to expend any Impact Fee monies until the Nexus Study is passed at the 

County Board of Supervisors.   

 

IT PROJECTS  

 

The Fire Department has been without IT support for many years. Staff has been working with the 

Cameron Park Community Services District administration and DSA to provide support and much 

needed maintenance on the Fire Department’s IT systems. Staff recently had DSA visit the Fire Station 

and provide a health report of our IT equipment and a work plan. A proposal for this plan will be 

presented to the Board in the future.  



Prevention Duties- October 

Mike Smith, Battalion Chief 

Board Report- Oct. 2016 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF CAMERON PARK WEED AND RUBBISH ABATEMENT 

 
o Create 2016 Vacant Lot Inspection Spreadsheet to track 

daily progress 

o Continue Visual inspections: 

o Take photos of each lot 

o Return to Station to print photos 

o File photos in each individual folder along with any 

notes regarding property 

o Fill out inspection form for each file 

o Update Weed Abatement Spreadsheet to track individual 

Property information 

o Update 2016 Vacant Lot Inspection Spreadsheet 

o Pull & prepare folders for next day inspection 

o Monthly total inspections 

o Total Inspections for September = 113 

o Inspections for October to date = 47 

o Total Inspections to date = 160 

o Remaining lots to be inspected = 221 

 

 
ON GOING DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

 

o Sierra Sunrise – 18 lot, single family residential subdivision 

Fire Flow Letter has been written for this project 

o Brooks – 1.87 acre single family residential subdivision 

Fire Flow and TAC Letters has been written for this project. TAC meeting held 

on October 3rd for this project. 

o Cameron Hills – 41 residential lots and 5 lettered lots 

Plans are in my office for review and a conditions letter will be written shortly. 

o Rancho Tierra – 69 Lot Residential Subdivision 

Wrote Fire Flow Letter for this project. 

o Possible Subdivision off of Green Valley – 42 New Residential Lots 

(Cameron Ridge) 

TAC Letter written, awaiting TAC meeting date. 

 
o Creekside Apartment Complex – 24 units, 3 commercial buildings with 

offices 



Prevention Duties- October 

Mike Smith, Battalion Chief 

Board Report- Oct. 2016 

 

 

TAC Letter written, TAC meeting held, project going forward 

o Bell Woods Subdivision – West of Knollwood – 54 unit residential 

subdivision 

20% in Cameron Park / 80% in EDH – Asking for six - 1 year extension s. 

Wrote Fire Flow letter for this project on 

o Ponte Palmero Phase 2 

EIR Letter was written to the county, Fire Safe Plan completed and sent to 

developer. Waiting for civil plans from Ponte Palmero on a 50,510 square 

feet, 44 unit Community Care Facility, 53,690 square feet, 46 room Assisted 

Living Facility and a 11,450 square feet Club House. 

o Cameron Glen Estates Phase 5 – 15 New Residential Lots – Winterhaven 

& Green Valley Road Area 

Plans for subdivision have been dropped off into the prevention office. 

Condition letter written for residential subdivision and given back to owner. 

TENANT IMPROVEMENT / INSPECTIONS / PROJECTS 
 

o Chevron Gas Station, Carwash, Convenience Store and Restaurant 

Fire flow letter has been written for a new gas station, carwash, convenience 

store and restaurant located on the corner of Cambridge Road and Knollwood 

Drive intersection. 

o Nina’s Nails – Burke Junction Building 

This is a tenant improvement project to include remodeling this suite and a 

second suite, partially taking out a wall to accommodate this project. Plans 

reviewed, approved with conditions letter, back with project manager to start 

working on project. 

o Gilmore Heating – Air – Solar 

This is a tenant improvement project to include solar panels onto roof off of 

Coach Lane. Plans have been submitted and approved. Plans reviewed, 

approved with a conditions letter, back with project manager to start working 

on project. 

 

 

 
o IMG/RX Pharmacy 

This is a tenant improvement project to include remodeling this suite into a 

pharmacy. This project will also include a small sprinkler remodel. TI letter 

has been written and approved. FINALED 

o New Home – 4005 Schelin Ct 

Signed off in county LMIS system and meets current Title 14 Standards. 



Mike Smith, Battalion Chief 

Board Report- Oct. 2016 

 

 

 

 

o Couch & Hammond Dentistry 

Upgrade control panel for sprinkler supervision; awaiting plans and 

documentation for project from Signal Service before installation and 

acceptance test. Plans reviewed, approved with a conditions letter, back with 

project manager to start working on project. 

o Cameron Park Physical Therapy 

Installation of new cell communicator to existing commercial Fire Control 

Unit, this will eliminate the telephone line. Awaiting on plans and 

documentation from Signal Service before approving installation and 

acceptance test. 

o Forklift Market – Back Flow Install 

Plans have been submitted for review have been completed and ready for 

pick up. Once contractor has installed new back flow device and take out the 

existing Post Indicator Valve (PIV) that supports the current fire sprinkler 

system contractor will call for inspection. 

o Cameron Park Village – Upgrade Fire Alarm System 

Fire alarm plans submitted for review have been completed and ready for 

pick up. Once contractor has installed new system, contractor will call for 

inspection. 

o Solar Projects for the following addresses; 

o 3073A Ponte Morino Dr 

o 3075B Ponte Morino Dr 

o 3077C Ponte Morino Dr 

o 3079D Ponte Morino Dr 

o 3081 Ponte Morino Dr 

o 3083 Ponte Morino Dr 

Plans reviewed, approved with a conditions letter for all 10 solar projects. , 

back with project manager to start working on project. They will call when 

solar project has been completed for approval. 

o Burke Junction Shopping Center – Updating Buildings A,B,C,D,E with 

Fire Alarm Monitoring Systems 

Failed alarm final on 2/10, installing Knox Boxes and fire alarm devices on 

buildings, will re-schedule final inspection. 

 
o Verizon Cell Tower – 1010 Camerado (Blacksheep) 

Plans reviewed, approved with a conditions letter, back with project manager 

to start working on project. 

o Lawrence J Alexander Building 

Fire Alarm submittal to put in fire alarm system in current building, Fire Alarm 

plans approved, awaiting call from owner for final. 

Prevention Duties- October 



Mike Smith, Battalion Chief 

Board Report- Oct. 2016 

 

 

 

 

o Applebee’s Restaurant – Wood Fired Broiler, Hood System and Nozzle 

Modification. 
Plans submitted needs revised, needs additional information in regards to 

potential deep seated fires for this type of broiler. 

o Safeway Store #1618 – LPG Permit Process 

Meeting with AmeriGas officials regarding propane items. 

o Gold Country Hardware – Cameron Park Drive 

Plans submitted, reviewed and created approval letter with conditions, 

awaiting project manager/owner call to final. 

 
UPDATING FIRE CODE – 2016 

o Every three years California goes through a change cycle of the Fire Code 

o Cameron Park Fire Department drafts new Resolution (2016.14) 

o Creating new Ordinance which will be adopted 

o Second Reading at October’s Board Meeting 

DISTRICT DEFENSIBLE SPACE INSPECTION PROGRAM (LE-100) 
 

o Total for the month = 0 

 Passed = 0 

 Failed = 0 

 Total staff hours = 0 

o Year to date = 268 

 Passed = 240 

 Failed = 28 

 

 

B2/BUSINESS LICENSE INSPECTIONS 
 

o Total for the month = 12 

 Passed = 1 

 Failed = 11 

 Total Staff Hours = 4 
 

Fire Prevention Officer Association Meeting 
 

o See Attached 

Prevention Duties- October 



 

 

 

El Dorado County Fire Prevention Officer’s Association 
501 Main Street, Diamond Springs, CA 95619 

Business: 530-626-3190 Fax: 530-626-3188 
 

Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, September 14, 2016 

501 Main Street, Diamond Springs, CA 
 

 

The meeting wall called to order by Marshall Cox at 9:04 am 

The sign-in sheet was passed around. 

Approval of Minutes –A motion to approve the minutes from the August 10, 2016 

meeting was made by Marshall Cox. Motion seconded by Ken Earle.  Motion approved. 

 

Approval of Agenda – Vote to change meeting date was added under Good of the Order. 

A motion to approve the agenda as amended was made by Marshall Cox. Motion 

seconded by Stephanie Parrish.  Motion approved. 

 

The Treasurer reported the balance in the account is $3,286.36. 

Correspondence or Communications – None 

Agency Reports 

 

Building Services – Jim Silveira 

 Jim has been busy training new guys.  He retires in March. 

El Dorado Transportation Division – None 

El Dorado Irrigation District – Marc Mackay, Dana Strahan 

 EID is extremely busy.  Discussed Echo Lane project in Diamond Springs and a 

parcel split in N. Shingle that Marshall is working on. 
 

Cal FIRE – Mike Smith 

 The unit currently has only one strike team out. 

 

Fire Safe Council 

 CWPP update should be completed by March of 2017. 

 Working on 3 PG&E Grants – Grizzly Flats, Senior Assistance & Lakehill’s 

Vegetation & Tree Removal. 

 Tree Mortality Process still being written. Asked the FPO’s to have a 

representative on the evaluation committee and they will participate. The rating 

system to prioritize applicants is still being developed. 

 The FSC received an inquiry for a new FSC in Garden Valley. 

Forest Service – No report 

1. Education 

a. Statutes and Regulations – September 20th thru 22 at the Maidu 

Community Center in Roseville, CA, 9:00 until 4:00. Cost: $150 

Norcal/Calbo members $175 non-member.  See Flyer 



 

 

b. Fire Prevention 3A Hydraulics – December 5th thru 9th, 2016, 8:30 to 

5:30, 1500 Bollinger Canyon Road, San Ramon, Instructor: Patrick Chew, 

Cost: $475 Norcal/Calbo Members or $500 Non-members. To register 

email lindsayc@firepreventionofficers.org or call 916-442-0307 

 

 

2. Fire Investigation Task Force – 

a. The trailer is about 90% complete.  Still needs interior lights, placement of 

desks and some welding.  A committee made up of Ken Earle, Brandon 

McKay, Mike Bruno & Mike Smith was formed to finish the trailer up. 

 

New Business 

1.   Film & Motion Picture – Brandon McKay – The Fire Districts will be added to 

the list of agencies on the application for notification when a Motion Picture 

Permit is requested. A policy will be adopted. Brandon to send his form and we 

will review it at the next meeting. 

 

Good of the Order 

1. Fire Code Adoption – Most districts will do their first Public Hearing/Reading 

this month. 

2. By Laws – Lori located the original FPO By-Laws & Constitution – They will be 

scanned in so that we can review them at the next meeting. 

3. Change of Meeting Day – A motion to change the monthly FPO Meeting to the 

3
rd 

Thursday of the Month effective October 20, 2016 was made by Ken Earle. 

Motion seconded by Mike Bruno. Motion approved. 
 

 

Adjourn:  The meeting was adjourned at 10:20 am 

 

**** NOTE: NEW MEETING DAY**** 

Next Meeting: Thursday, October 20, 2016 @ 9:00 am – Station 49 Conference Room 

mailto:lindsayc@firepreventionofficers.org


 

 

 
 

EL DORADO COUNTY 
FIRE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

Wednesday, September 28, 2016, 9:30 a.m. 
DS/ED Fire Station #49, Downstairs Classroom, 501 Main Street, Diamond Springs, CA 95619 

 
 

ITEM 
Pledge of Allegiance 

1.  Call to Order and Introductions 

2.  Public Comments - Public comments will be received on each agenda item as it is called. The public 
may address matters not on the agenda at this time. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) 
minutes. The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

3.  Approval of Agenda 

4.  Approval of Minutes – August 24, 2016 

5.  Treasurer’s Report (Hardy) 
6.  Fire Advisory Board 
7. Old Business 

7.1 El Dorado County Fire Chiefs Association Website (http://www.edchiefs.org/) (Kaslin / Savacool) 
7.2 Big Brothers Big Sisters Event Update (Schwab) 

8.  New Business 
9.  Department Reports 
10. Section Reports 

10.1 Training Officers 
10.2 Fire Prevention Officers 
10.3 Operations 
10.4 CSA 3 Update 

11. Standing Committee Reports 
11.1 EMS Agency 
11.2 OES, State and Local 
11.3 Fire Safe Council 
11.4 LAFCO 
11.5 Red Cross 

12. Good and Welfare 

13. Adjournment 
14. Executive Session (Standing Item) 

 
 

Next meeting: 9:30 on Wednesday, October 26, 2016 
 

All Fire Chiefs Association meetings are recorded. The agenda packet may be reviewed at the JPA office located at 
480 Locust Road, Diamond Springs, CA 95619 

http://www.edchiefs.org/


 

 

 
 

EL DORADO COUNTY FIRE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION 
MINUTES 

 
 
 

PLACE: Diamond Springs Fire DATE: Wednesday, August 24, 2016 
501 Main Street TIME: 09:30 a.m. 
Diamond Springs, CA 95619 

 
PRESENT 

Item 4 

 

Chief Tim Alameda, NTF Fire / MEK Fire Dep. Chief Tom Keating, RES Fire 
Assistant Chief Bob Bement, GRV Fire Chief Jay Kurth, USFS 
Div. Chief Tim Cordero, ECF Fire Chief Jeff Meston, SLT Fire 
Bat. Chief Bob Counts, CP Fire Chief Jeff Michael, LV Fire 
Bat. Chief Ken Earle, DSP Fire Asst. Chief Bryan Ransdell, DSP Fire 
Dep. Chief Brian Estes, CAL FIRE ECC AEU Chief Dave Roberts, EDH Fire 
Chief Gary Gerren, FLL Fire Chief Clive Savacool, GRV Fire 
Chief Mike Hardy, ECF Fire Chief Greg Schwab, GEO Fire 
Chief Mike Hazlett, MOS Fire Chief Mike Schwartz, NTF Fire / MEK Fire 
Div. Chief ECC Mac Heller, USFS Div. Chief Steve Simons, NTF Fire / MEK Fire 
Chief Gary Humphrey, Cal OES Dep. Chief Nickie Washington, USFS 
Chief Grant Ingram, PIO Fire Div. Chief Mike Webb, CAL FIRE CP Fire, Vice Chair 
Unit Chief Kaslin, CAL FIRE ECC AEU, Chair Bat. Chief Dave Wood, CAL FIRE ECC AEU 

 
Pledge of Allegiance – Conducted 

1. Call to Order 9:35 a.m. 

Introduction of Guests: 
 Mark Spaugh, Garden Valley Fire District Board of Directors 
 Pat Dwyer, Fire Safe Council 

 
Others in Attendance: 
 Jose Henrique, LAFCO 
 Marty Hackett, JPA Executive Director 
 Battalion Chief Mike Smith, CAL FIRE Cameron Park 

 
2. Public Comments 

None. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
Chief Roberts motioned to approve the agenda as presented.  Deputy Chief Keating 
seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes from the June 22, 2016 Meeting 

Chief Schwab motioned to approve the minutes as presented. Chief Webb seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously. 

 
5. Treasurer’s Report 

Nothing to report. 
 

6. Fire Advisory Board 
No additional meetings have been scheduled.  Chief Michael will be the representative for 
CSA 3. 

 

1 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 

7. Old Business 
None. 

 
8. New Business 

8.1 CSA 3 Update 
The following updates were provided: 
 Chief Michael stated that the Cal Tahoe JPA is now the employer for the two medic units 

that were previously the responsibility of City of South Lake Tahoe. 
 The JPA and Lake Valley Fire have established a good working relationship with the City 

of South Lake Tahoe. 
 The County of El Dorado has signed a contract with REMSA to provide coverage should 

the Cal Tahoe JPA not be able to adhere to their contractual obligation with the County. 
 The IFT issue is still under discussion. 

 
The committee agreed to have the CSA 3 Update as a standing item under Section Reports. 

 
8.2 El Dorado County Fire Chiefs Association Website 

Chief Savacool provided an update on the development of the new website. The committee 
identified the following needs: 

 
 Statement of purpose to be developed. 
 Each Chief to provide information pertaining to their district (photos, etc.) 
 Link to Training Officers, SOG’s, Fire Operations, etc. 
 Linking to Facebook and Twitter account (create accounts if needed) 
 Chief Savacool suggested and the group agreed to look into the cost of increased 

level of website service and options. 
 

8.3 Chief’s Christmas / Holiday Dinner 
Deputy Chief Keating stated that he will obtain venue information from the winery where the 
event was held previously. 

 
8.4 Countywide Fire Station “Open House” on Saturday, June 24, 2017 

Chief Schwab stated that although each district is separate, it would be beneficial if all 
federal, state and local agencies held individual open houses as a collective group on June 
24. 

 
The committee approved the collective open house concept and decided that Chief Schwab 
will recruit individuals to participate on a planning committee. 

 
8.5 The Sierra Law Enforcement Chaplaincy Charity Golf Tournament, September 19, 2016  

Chief Schwab advised the committee that the event is scheduled to take place on September 
19 and that early registration is encouraged. 

 
8.6 MCI Drill for EDSO and Marshall Medical Center 

Chief Ingram stated Marshall Medical Center has requested another joint MCI drill to help 
improve their internal processes. This will be an active shooter drill presented by EDSO. 
The drill planning meeting will take place on November 14 and the drill will take place on 
November 16. 

 
9. Department Reports 

CAL FIRE ECC AEU:  Initial attack is busy.  Grant opportunities have opened up surrounding the 
tree mortality issue.  CAL FIRE recently took possession of two chippers.  Discussions are 
underway regarding ingress/egress related to population density. The Tahoe Summit will take 



Page 3 of 4 

 

 

place on August 31.  Another strike team has been activated.  PIO Bennett is available for 
community events if needed. The final walk inspection of Station 50 in Garden Valley has been 
completed. 
CAL FIRE Cameron Park:  Engine 89 is now in service.  Engine and apparatus numbering 
sequence is now in line with the rest of the county.  Promotions have taken place. There has 
been a high frequency of wildland fires in the Cameron Park area. The weed abatement issue is 
still ongoing. 
City of South Lake Tahoe:  Nothing to report. 
Diamond Springs / El Dorado Fire: The remodel of the station is nearing completion. Testing is 
underway for firefighter/paramedics. The annual car show will take place September 4 from 8 
a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
El Dorado County Fire: Division Chief Cordero recently returned from a strike team deployment. 
Job offers are out to ten potential employees.  Nearing completion on the Type 1 engine. 
El Dorado Hills:  Chief Roberts recently returned from a strike team deployment.  In the process  
of determining what action items to take based on the community risk assessment conducted by 
Citygate.  Validation of a new training center is underway.  Station 91 will be moving to the 5  
acres owned by El Dorado Hills Fire.  Due to a recent retirement, staffing changes have occurred. 
Finalizing a traffic study for a local neighborhood. The Board will review a policy regarding 
allowing firearms to be carried by senior staff members. The rip and run printer is operational and 
the district is now moving forward with hardline notifications. 
Forest Service:  A new Placerville Division Chief has been hired. Water Tender (WT235) is now 
in Georgetown.  The camera system is now available for viewing.  $6M in funding has been 
allocated to fuels projects. The Type 2 Helicopter is on the forest and the Type 1 is in Idaho. 
Currently there are nine engines in service. 
Garden Valley:  Personnel are on strike team deployments. Working on updating the District’s 
website and email system.  Staffing up personnel from 2 to 3.  Adopting target solutions. 
Recently started using a new software tablet command program which is similar to Active911. 
Georgetown Fire: 2016 World Gold Panning Championship will take place September 10-17. 
Founders Day will take place September 18. 
Lake Valley Fire:  The interim Chief is settling into his new role.  Personnel are busy with wildland 
fires in the basin and neighboring counties.  Resumes are being reviewed for the Fire Chief 
position. 
Mosquito Fire:  Nothing to report. 
North Lake Tahoe / Meeks Bay:  Nothing to report. 
Pioneer Fire: Personnel are on strike team deployments.  A new engine will arrive next week.  A 
lot of community events are taking place. 
Rescue Fire:  Nothing to report. 

 

10. Section Reports 
10.1 Training Officers 

 Awaiting contracts from the JPA and MMC for the Los Rios College EMT program. 
 There are on-going discussions as to whether Training Officers should be involved in 

pre-hospital medicine. 
 Determining viability of an academy for Training Officers. 
 A countywide water tender class date will be scheduled in the future. 

 
10.2 Fire Prevention Officers 

 The fire code adoption process is moving forward.  Each district needs to submit their 
section if they have not already done so. 

 Fire Prevention Officers support the June 24 open house date proposed by Chief 
Schwab. 



Page 4 of 4 

 

 

10.3 Operations 
 The 2017 Homeland Security grant money will be used to equip every ambulance on 

the east and west slope with the Cradlepoint Wi-Fi, repeaters, the last component of 
Med Net, and rescue task force needs. 

 Strike team deployments are still underway. 
 Water tenders and other OES resources are assigned to various areas throughout the 

state. 
 Working on move up and cover responses for wildland fires. 
 Working on getting ambulances in local government released quickly. 
 Region 4 information regarding updates on fuels and fire behaviors has been 

distributed. 
 Working on tree mortality task force. 
 Due to the remodel at the County OES Building, EID Headquarters – Board Room 

has been pre-staged for future EOC activations. 
 
11. Standing Committee Reports 

11.1 EMS Agency 
Nothing to report. 

 
11.2 OES, State & Local 

Nothing to report. 
 

11.3 Fire Safe Council 
 EDC received two Forest Service grants. 
 There are currently eleven projects in the works. 
 $16M in State Responsibility Are Fire Protection Fee (SRA-FPF) grants were released 

on Monday.  The grant application closing date is September 16. 
 CWPP effort is ongoing and should be completed next Spring. 

 
11.4 LAFCO 

Annexations in Bass Lake Hills, Placerville, and Shingle Springs are currently being 
reviewed. 

 
11.5 Red Cross 

Emergency response teams have been deployed to Louisiana. 
 
12. Good and Welfare 

 Chief Todd is now flying an air tanker. 
 Battalion Chief Earle thanked the districts for their help with the recent fire on Missouri Flat. 
 Chief Roberts thanked all the individuals who participated in the El Dorado Hills Fire blood 

drive. 
 Unit Chief Kaslin suggested adding an Executive Session portion to the Fire Chiefs 

Association agenda as a standing item. 
o Eligibility levels will need to be defined to determine who can participate in the Executive 

Session. 
 

13. Adjournment 
Chief Keating motioned to adjourn the meeting at 11:44 a.m.  Division Chief Webb seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously. 



 

 

 

El Dorado County 
Emergency Services Authority 

 
 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday, September 28, 2016, 8:00 a.m. 

DS/ED Fire Station #49, Downstairs Classroom, 501 Main Street, Diamond Springs, CA 95619 
 

AGENDA 
 

Item Presenter 
Pledge of Allegiance  

1.  Call to Order/Roll Call/Introductions Roberts 

2.  Approval of Agenda Roberts 

3. Public Comments - Public comments will be received on each agenda item as it is called. The 
public may address matters not on the agenda at this time. Individual comments will be limited to 
three (3) minutes.  The Board reserves the right to waive said rules by a majority vote. 

4. Consent Calendar 
4.1 Approval of JPA Board Regular Session Meeting Minutes of August 24, 2016 
4.2 Approval of August 2016 Bills 

Roberts 

5.  Correspondence Roberts 
6. Reports 

6.1 Receive/file Statistics for August 2016 
6.1.1 Medical Response Times 
6.1.2 Mutual Aid 
6.1.3 Move Up & Covers 
6.1.4 IFTs 

6.2 Systems Status Management Meeting Update 

 
Hackett 

 
 
 
 

Earle 

7. Old Business 
7.1 EPCR Update (Standing Item) 
7.2 Review Upcoming Holiday/Event Calendar (Standing Item) 

 
Hackett 
Hackett 

8.  New Business 
8.1 Vegetation Fire Ambulance Staffing Flow Chart 

 
Hackett 

9.  Fiscal Items Roberts 

10. Director Items Roberts 

11. Good and Welfare Roberts 

12. Adjournment Roberts 
 

Next meeting: 8:00 a.m. on Wednesday – October 26, 2016 
All Board Meetings are recorded. The Board Packet may be reviewed at the JPA Office located at 480 Locust Road, Diamond 

Springs, CA 95619.Note: The Board of Directors may elect to take action on any item included on this agenda. 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
N 

 

 
 

JPA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, August 24, 2016, 8:00 a.m. 

Diamond Springs Fire, 501 Main Street, Diamond Springs, CA 95619 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance: Conducted 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Introductions - Call to order at 8:06 a.m. 

Board Attendees: 

El Dorado Hills Fire, Chief Dave Roberts, Chair Alternate Deputy Chief Mike Lilienthal 
CAL FIRE - Cameron Park Fire, Div. Chief Mike Webb Alternate Battalion Chief Bob Counts 
Diamond Springs Fire, Chief Bryan Ransdell Alternate Battalion Chief Ken Earle 
El Dorado County Fire, Chief Mike Hardy Alternate Division Chief Tim Cordero 
Garden Valley Fire, Chief Clive Savacool Alternate Assistant Chief Bob Bement 
Rescue Fire, Deputy Chief Tom Keating Alternate Director Anne Walker 
CAL FIRE ECC AEU, Deputy Chief Brian Estes Alternate Unit Chief Mike Kaslin 
Mosquito Fire, Chief Mike Hazlett 
Georgetown Fire, Chief Greg Schwab, Vice Chair 
Pioneer Fire, Chief Grant Ingram 
JPA Executive Director Marty Hackett 

 
Other Attendees: 
 Battalion Chief Michael Smith, CAL FIRE Cameron Park Fire 

 
Introduction of Guests: 
 Mark Spaugh, Garden Valley Fire District Board of Directors 
 Lori Walker, EDC Chief Financial Officer 
 Rich Todd, EMSA 
 Jose Henrique, LAFCO 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 

Director Webb motioned to approve the agenda as presented.  Director Ransdell seconded the motion 
which carried unanimously. 

 
3. Public Comments 

None. 
 

4. Consent Calendar 
Director Schwab motioned to approve consent calendar items 4.1 and 4.2 as presented.  Director Webb 
seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

 
5. Correspondence 

5.1 ePCR Field Testing 
Mr. Todd stated that Image Trend has been selected as the contractor of choice for the ePCR.  The 
Board of Supervisors is scheduled to vote on entering into a contract with Image Trend on 

Item 4.1 

El Dorado County 
Emergency Services Authority 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

September 14. 
 

Executive Director Hackett stated that the JPA Board submitted a request to HHSA to have a field 
trial performed, which was declined citing that the demonstration process of the review clearly 
demonstrated all of the components that would be tested in the field from a paramedic use 
perspective.  Additionally, the ePCR RFP was very specific that the proposed software must 
integrate with dispatch centers, base hospitals, state database depository, provide core measure 
reports, demonstrate specific National Emergency Medical Services Information Systems 
(NEMSIS), certification criteria, and incorporate International Classification of Diseases (ICD) 10 
coding. 

 
5.2 EDC Public Hearing Notification and 8.2 EMS Rates 

Ms. Walker advised the Board that there will be a public hearing held on August 30 at 11:00 a.m. to 
consider adopting six Resolutions to establish fees and rates for various programs within the Health 
and Human Services Agency for FY 16-17.  A handout was reviewed by the Board outlining the 
proposed rate increases for EMS.  Director Roberts requested that each agency provide Executive 
Director Hackett their estimated costs for FY 16-17 based on the proposed rate increase sheet. 

 
6. Reports 

6.1 Receive/File Statistics for July 2016 
Executive Director Hackett provided an overview of the statistics for the July response time reports. 

 
6.2 Systems Status Management Meeting Update 

The following topics were discussed at the June meeting: 
 Plan for staffing additional ambulances for large wildland fires. 
 Defibrillator monitor field testing. 

 
7. Old Business 

7.1 EPCR Update (Standing Item) 
Discussion on this topic took place under item 5.1. 

 
8. New Business 

8.1 Review Upcoming Holiday/Event Calendar (Standing Item) 
Executive Director Hackett reviewed the holiday/event calendar with the Board and advised that 
Diamond Springs Fire is working on up-staffing for the September Gold Panning Championship 
event. 

 
Director Schwab requested that the Every 15 Minutes program be added to the calendar. 

 
8.2 EMS Rates 

Discussion on this topic took place under item 5.2. 
 
9. Fiscal Items 

None. 
 
10. Director Items 

CAL FIRE ECC AEU:  The new dispatchers are still undergoing training. 
CAL FIRE Cameron Park:  Nothing to report. 
Diamond Springs / El Dorado Fire:  Battalion Chief Earle is working with EMSA and chairing the 
Systems Status Management committee. 
El Dorado County Fire:  Disappointed that HHSA will not be conducting an ePCR field trial prior to rollout 
of the program, especially given the geography and service issues within the county. 
El Dorado Hills:  There is a meeting scheduled for August 25 with the Board of Supervisors to discuss 
long term fire and ambulance service within the county. 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Garden Valley:   Nothing to report. 
Georgetown Fire:  Would like to see FTO’s visit an agency currently using the Image Trend ePCR 
program. 
Lake Valley Fire:  Nothing to report. 
Mosquito Fire:  Nothing to report. 
Pioneer Fire:  Nothing to report. 
Rescue Fire:  Nothing to report. 

 

11. Good and Welfare 
Nothing to report. 

 
12. Adjournment 

Director Ransdell motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9:17 a.m. Director Keating seconded the motion 
which carried unanimously. 



 

 

Total Number of Medical Responses 
 

Percent Change in Total Medical Responses from 2015= 8.47% 

1,600 
1,400 
1,200 
1,000 

800 
600 
400 
200 
‐ 

August 2016 Incident Summary Report 
Item 6.1.1 

 

Total Number of Ambulance Responses to Date 2016 15,331 

Total Number of Medical Responses to Date 2016 10,365 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

2015 1,204 1,104 1,248 1,154 1,216 1,167 1,185 1,278 1,179 1,120 1,195 1,230 

2016 1,300 1,270 1,295 1,199 1,291 1,251 1,388 1,371     

Response Times 
 

 Before Exception Waivers With Waivers 

Urban 91.54% 91.92% 

Semi-Rural 93.72% 94.93% 

Rural 93.75% 97.66% 

Wilderness 100.00% 100.00% 
 

Exception Reports by Response Area 

 

 Generated Submitted to EMSA Waiver 

Urban 22 1 1 

Semi-Rural 26 5 5 

Rural 8 6 5 

Wilderness 0 0 0 

Twelve Month Response Time Compliance with Exceptions 

100 

99 

98 

97 

96 

95 

94 

93 

92 

91 

Urban 

Semi‐Rural 
 

Rural 

A
u
g‐
15

 

Se
p
‐1
5 

O
ct
‐1
5 

N
o
v‐
15

 

D
ec
‐1
5 

Ja
n
‐1
6 

Fe
b
‐1
6 

M
ar
‐1
6 

A
p
r‐
1
6 

M
ay
‐1
6 

Ju
n
‐1
6 

Ju
l‐
16

 

A
u
g‐
16

 



 

 

Incident Summary Report for August 2016 
Exception Reports by Area and Reason 

 
Response Area 

Total Number of Exception Reports:   56 

Reason for Exception Report Urban Semi-Rural Rural 
2nd unit to MCI    

Alert malfunction    

Cancelled enroute    

Cancelled re-dispatched    

Dispatched C-2    

Dispatched from training    

Distance 14 5 5 
Gate    

GSA to GSA 4 13  

Had to search for patient location    

Incorrect address    

Incorrect time stamp 2 3 1 
Interfacility transfer    

On a Move-Up  2  

On cover assignment    

Pager malfunction    

Patient left original location    

Poor road conditions  2 1 
Quick Call did not work    

Reduced to C-2 1   

Road construction    

Road obtructions 1   

Staging    

Unmarked/No visible address    

Weather    

 
 

West 
47 Sleepy Hollow  

81 Rescue 1 
83 Rescue 1 
84 EDH 2 
85 EDH 1 
86 EDH 5 
88 Cameron Park 7 
89 Cameron Park 5 
91 Latrobe  

 
South 

19 Pleasant Valley 1 
23 Pleasant Valley 3 
32 Somerset 1 
37 Omo Ranch  
38 Fairplay  
38 Mt. Aukum  

North 
51 Garden Valley  

52 Kelsey  

53 Greenwood  

72 Cool  

74 Coloma 6 
61 Georgetown 3 
64 Greenwood 1 
63 Volcanoville 1 
73 Pilot Hill  

 

Core 
25 Placerville 6 
26 Placerville  

27 Gold Hill  

28 Shingle Springs  

44 Logtown  

46 El Dorado  

48 Diamond  

49 Diamond  

75 Mosquito 4 
 

East 
17 Pollock 4 
18 Sierra Springs 3 
21 Camino 1 
26 Placerville  

 



 

 

 

Mutual Aid - August 2016 
Item 6.1.2 

 
MOVE-UPS 

JPA to Folsom 11  

Folsom to JPA 10 
 

 
 

MEDICAL CALLS 
JPA for Folsom 6  

Folsom for JPA 8 
South Lake Tahoe for JPA 7 

 

 

South Lake 
Tahoe for JPA 

JPA for 
Folsom JPA for Folsom 

 
Folsom for JPA 
 
South Lake Tahoe for 
JPA 

Folsom for 
JPA 

Folsom to JPA JPA to Folsom JPA to Folsom 

Folsom to JPA 



 

 

 
 
 
 

140 

Move Up and Cover Stats 
August = 544 

Item 6.1.3 

 

 

 
 

120 

 

 

 

 

100 

 

 

 

 

80 

 

 

 

 

60 

 

 

 

 
40 

 

 

 

 

20 

 

 

 

 

0 

Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 

M17 M19 M25 M28 M49 M61 M85 M89 



 

 

Medical Interfacility Transfers 
August = 144 

50 

Item 6.1.4 

 
 
 
 
 

 

40 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
0 

Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 

M17 M19 M25 M28 M49 M61 M85 M89 



 

 

 

2016 - 2017 Holiday / Event Calendar 

Item 7.2 

 

2016  2017 

August  January 

31 Lake Tahoe Summit (POTUS Visit)  1 New Year’s Day 

   16 Martin Luther King Day 

September    

10 – 17 Gold Panning Championship  February 

5 Labor Day  14 Valentine’s Day 

   20 President’s Day 

October    

10 Columbus Day  March 

31 Halloween  17 St. Patrick’s Day 

     
November  April 

11 Veterans Day  TBD Every 15 Minutes Program 

14 MCI Drill Planning Meeting  14 Good Friday 

16 MCI Drill w/MMC  16 Easter 

24 Thanksgiving Day    
   May 

December  TBD Every 15 Minutes Program 

14 EMS Awards Ceremony (San Francisco)  14 Mother’s Day 

24 Christmas Eve  29 Memorial Day 

25 Christmas    
31 New Year’s Eve  June 

   14 Flag Day 

   18 Father’s Day 

   24 Summer Spectacular CP 

     
   July 

   3 Fireworks Show EDH 

   4 Independence Day 

     
   August 

     
   September 

   4 Labor Day 

     
   October 

   9 Columbus Day 

   31 Halloween 

     

   November 

   11 Veterans Day 

   23 Thanksgiving 

     
   December 

   24 Christmas Eve 

   25 Christmas Day 

   31 New Year’s Eve 



 

 

Item 8.1 
 
 

 

VEGETATION FIRE AMBULANCE STAFFING FLOW CHART 
 
 

 
 

  

 
911 Medic Dispatched to Incident 

– “Corridor” Medic Unit to be Sent 

– SSM Manages Hole in System 

 

  

Marty Contacts all County Chief Officers by Group Text 

Looking for Voluntary People to Fill Assignment at Fire 

  

 
First Two People Who Respond to Marty’s Group Text 

Get the Assignment at Fire – 911 Medic Unit Returns 

to System 

 

 
 

 

 

In the rare event that no agency can fill voluntarily 

the strike team medic assignment, the agency who’s 

medic was dispatched to the fire initially is 

responsible to backfill an additional medic in the 911 

system to restore system service 

Request for Medic at a Vegetation Fire (not initial 

attack) Extended Attack or Major Incidents 



1 
 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
Staff Report for September 2016 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Tina Helm, Recreation Supervisor 

Re Item #2c: Recreation Department Report 

Recommended Action: Receive and File 

 
UPCOMING EVENTS:   

• Community Showcase – October 13 – Community Center – 5pm – 7pm 
• Halloween Carnival & Pumpkin Patch – October 22 – Cameron Park Lake – 1:30pm – 4:00pm  
• Old Fashioned Christmas Craft Fair – November 19 – Community Center – 10am – 4pm  

 
WEBSITE  
Google Analytics – old website compared to new – please find the audience overview information 
from the date range of August 30 to September 29, 2015 and August 30 to September 29, 2016.  Plus 
the end of the month report from Uptown Studios. -  Attachment A 

POOCH PLUNGE: Activity report from this event attached - Attachment B  
 
UPCOMING PROGRAMS: 
October – Skyhawks Volleyball Camp, Get Your Photos Out Of Chaos, Premiere World Discovery 
Presentation and Speaker Series. 
 
MARKETING:   

• Recreation staff is spending a minimum of 15 minutes a day interacting through social media to 
promote programs and events within the community. 

• As of October 12, 2016, there are 1,167 (15 more than September) page “Likes” on Facebook 
and 649 (the same as September) followers on Twitter. 

• Please find some of the PSAs of the recent events and activities held in September. 
• Please find the MailChimp campaign information from the email newsletter for October. 
• Park Survey – the park survey has been on the CSD website, Facebook page, at the Summer 

Spectacular, the Community Camp Out, Back to School Nights, presented to EDCAR, given to 
the parents at the Flag Football Skills clinic as well as those that come into the office to register 
for programs.  We have received 201 responses – Survey highlights   Attachment C  
 

MEETINGS/TRAINING:  
• El Dorado Gold Panning Meeting – September 7 at the Office of Education - promoted Country 

Fest.  Updated information about the week-long event was presented. 
• Attended the Shingle Springs/Cameron Park Chamber Mixer at AmeriGas, September 15 
• Attended Gold Panning VIP Reception – September 16 at the Fairgrounds as well as the Gold 

Panning events on Saturday and Sunday. 
• Assisted setting up the CSD Booth at the Show and Shine event on September 17 at the 

Airpark.    
• Met with Golden Sierra Representative on September 29 to discuss potential partnerships for 

workshops.  
 
 
 



2 
 

  

Cameron Park Community Services District 
Facility Report September 2016 

 
COMMUNITY CENTER:   
September rental activities included: 

Mountain Enterprise Training  
Rotary Lunch 
Animal Outreach Fundraiser 
  
Ongoing Rentals 
EDCAR (El Dorado County Association of Realtors) weekly 
Gold Nugget Quilters – weekly 
MADD – court mandated class – bi-monthly  
El Dorado Camera Club – monthly  

 
 

Please find attached the scheduled rentals from July to September of Fiscal Years 2015-16 and 2016-17 
compared to the rentals during the same period of time last year.  This comparison is for the 
auditorium/classroom rentals and does not include the gym.    
  

    

2015/16 
Facility  
Rentals                       

 July 2015- 
June 2016   

 
    

2016/17 
Facility   
Rentals                        

July 2015- 
June 2016   

 

Difference 
From 

Previous 
Year  

2015 July $4,880.35 24 
 

2016 July $3,387.76 19 
 

-5 
2015 August $4,952.91 22  2016 August $2,522.85 21  -1 
2015 September      $8,013.45 26  2016 September  $1,665.51 18  -8 

 
  
September 2015   Reservation Types –   September 2016   
20 Meetings        15 Meetings 
1 Training        1 Training   
1 Fundraiser          1 Fundraiser    
1 Kitchen use with Fundraiser    1 Kitchen use with Fundraiser  
1 Wedding        
1 Kitchen use with Wedding      
1 Event           
 
** September 2015 there was a large event held at the Community Center.  The event was moved to 
October 2016 this year. 
 
   



Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 29, 2016Audience Overview

Language Sessions % Sessions

1. en-us 5,485 98.74%

2. en-gb 15 0.27%

3. c 8 0.14%

4. en 8 0.14%

5. es-419 7 0.13%

6. es-xl 7 0.13%

7. en-au 5 0.09%

8. zh-cn 4 0.07%

9. (not set) 3 0.05%

10. de-de 2 0.04%

Overview

 Sessions

Sep 5 Sep 12 Sep 19 Sep 26

250250250

500500500

Sessions

5,555
Users

4,158
Pageviews

11,287

Pages / Session

2.03
Avg. Session Duration

00:01:37
Bounce Rate

58.13%

% New Sessions

64.59%

New Visitor Returning Visitor

35.4%

64.6%

© 2016 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

Go to this reportCameron Park Community Services Di…
All Web Site Data

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/defaultid/a77099289w115889776p121187108/%3F_u.date00%3D20160830%26_u.date01%3D20160929/


Aug 30, 2015 - Sep 29, 2015Audience Overview

Language Sessions % Sessions

1. en-us 2,221 96.52%

2. en 27 1.17%

3. c 21 0.91%

4. pt-br 4 0.17%

5. ko-kr 3 0.13%

6. (not set) 2 0.09%

7. de 2 0.09%

8. en_us 2 0.09%

9. en-ca 2 0.09%

10. es-419 2 0.09%

Overview

 Sessions

Sep 5 Sep 12 Sep 19 Sep 26

505050

100100100

Sessions

2,301
Users

1,790
Pageviews

3,019

Pages / Session

1.31
Avg. Session Duration

00:00:55
Bounce Rate

80.01%

% New Sessions

66.93%

New Visitor Returning Visitor

33.1%

66.9%

© 2016 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

Go to this reportCameron Park CSD - http://www.came…
Cameron Park CSD

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/defaultid/a35712331w63585696p65244037/%3F_u.date00%3D20150830%26_u.date01%3D20150929/


Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 29, 2016New vs Returning

User Type

Rows 1 - 2 of 2

Explorer

Summary

Acquisition Behavior Conversions

Sessions % New
Sessions

New
Users

Bounce
Rate

Pages /
Session

Avg. Session
Duration

Goal Conversion
Rate

Goal
Completions

Goal
Value

5,555
% of Total:

100.00%
(5,555)

64.61%
Avg for View:

64.59%
(0.03%)

3,589
% of

Total:
100.03%
(3,588)

58.13%
Avg for

View:
58.13%

(0.00%)

2.03
Avg for View:

2.03
(0.00%)

00:01:37
Avg for View:

00:01:37
(0.00%)

0.00%
Avg for View:

0.00%
(0.00%)

0
% of Total:

0.00%
(0)

$0.00
% of

Total:
0.00%

($0.00)

1. New Visitor 3,589
(64.61%) 100.00% 3,589

(100.00%)
56.87% 2.00 00:01:23 0.00% 0

(0.00%)
$0.00
(0.00%)

2. Returning Visitor 1,966
(35.39%) 0.00% 0

(0.00%)
60.43% 2.08 00:02:03 0.00% 0

(0.00%)
$0.00
(0.00%)

 Sessions

Sep 5 Sep 12 Sep 19 Sep 26

250250250

500500500

© 2016 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

Go to this reportCameron Park Community Services Di…
All Web Site Data

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/visitors-type/a77099289w115889776p121187108/%3F_u.date00%3D20160830%26_u.date01%3D20160929/


Aug 30, 2015 - Sep 29, 2015New vs Returning

User Type

Rows 1 - 2 of 2

Explorer

Summary

Acquisition Behavior Conversions

Sessions % New
Sessions

New
Users

Bounce
Rate

Pages /
Session

Avg. Session
Duration

Goal Conversion
Rate

Goal
Completions

Goal
Value

2,301
% of Total:

100.00%
(2,301)

66.93%
Avg for View:

66.93%
(0.00%)

1,540
% of

Total:
100.00%
(1,540)

80.01%
Avg for

View:
80.01%

(0.00%)

1.31
Avg for View:

1.31
(0.00%)

00:00:55
Avg for View:

00:00:55
(0.00%)

0.00%
Avg for View:

0.00%
(0.00%)

0
% of Total:

0.00%
(0)

$0.00
% of

Total:
0.00%

($0.00)

1. New Visitor 1,540
(66.93%) 100.00% 1,540

(100.00%)
79.29% 1.32 00:00:51 0.00% 0

(0.00%)
$0.00
(0.00%)

2. Returning Visitor 761
(33.07%) 0.00% 0

(0.00%)
81.47% 1.29 00:01:04 0.00% 0

(0.00%)
$0.00
(0.00%)

 Sessions

Sep 5 Sep 12 Sep 19 Sep 26

505050

100100100

© 2016 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

Go to this reportCameron Park CSD - http://www.came…
Cameron Park CSD

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/visitors-type/a35712331w63585696p65244037/%3F_u.date00%3D20150830%26_u.date01%3D20150929/


Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 29, 2016Pages

Page

Rows 1 - 10 of 384

Explorer

Pageviews Unique Pageviews Avg. Time on Page Entrances Bounce Rate % Exit Page Value

11,287
% of Total:

100.00%
(11,287)

9,327
% of Total:

100.00%
(9,327)

00:01:34
Avg for View:

00:01:34
(0.00%)

5,555
% of Total:

100.00%
(5,555)

58.13%
Avg for View:

58.13%
(0.00%)

49.22%
Avg for View:

49.22%
(0.00%)

$0.00
% of Total:

0.00%
($0.00)

1. 3,493
(30.95%)

2,889
(30.97%)

00:01:16 2,764
(49.76%)

46.02% 44.69% $0.00
(0.00%)

2. 1,170
(10.37%)

982
(10.53%)

00:02:22 754
(13.57%)

74.54% 69.74% $0.00
(0.00%)

3. 859
(7.61%)

668
(7.16%)

00:01:15 221
(3.98%)

59.28% 40.51% $0.00
(0.00%)

4. 484
(4.29%)

395
(4.24%)

00:03:52 294
(5.29%)

77.89% 73.55% $0.00
(0.00%)

5. 329
(2.91%)

295
(3.16%)

00:01:04 207
(3.73%)

60.39% 54.41% $0.00
(0.00%)

6. 313
(2.77%)

237
(2.54%)

00:01:27 36
(0.65%)

77.78% 41.85% $0.00
(0.00%)

7. 273
(2.42%)

236
(2.53%)

00:01:50 128
(2.30%)

71.09% 58.97% $0.00
(0.00%)

8. 269
(2.38%)

187
(2.00%)

00:01:30 78
(1.40%)

61.54% 58.74% $0.00
(0.00%)

9. 237
(2.10%)

196
(2.10%)

00:02:13 64
(1.15%)

84.38% 65.82% $0.00
(0.00%)

10. 231
(2.05%)

185
(1.98%)

00:00:33 63
(1.13%)

41.27% 31.60% $0.00
(0.00%)

 Pageviews

Sep 5 Sep 12 Sep 19 Sep 26

500500500

1,0001,0001,000

/

/parks-facilities/cameron-park-lake/

/recreation/special-events/

/events/cameron-park-countryfest/

/parks-facilities/community-center/

/parks-facilities/rentals/

/parks-facilities/aquatics-programs/

/about-cpcsd/jobs-cameron-park/

/recreation/sports/

/calendar/

© 2016 Google

All Users
100.00% Pageviews

Go to this reportCameron Park Community Services Dis…
All Web Site Data

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/content-pages/a77099289w115889776p121187108/%3F_u.date00%3D20160830%26_u.date01%3D20160929/


Aug 30, 2015 - Sep 29, 2015Pages

Page

Rows 1 - 10 of 99

Explorer

Pageviews Unique
Pageviews

Avg. Time on
Page Entrances Bounce

Rate % Exit Page
Value

3,019
% of Total:

100.00%
(3,019)

2,488
% of Total:

100.00%
(2,488)

00:02:56
Avg for View:

00:02:56
(0.00%)

2,298
% of Total:

100.00%
(2,298)

80.01%
Avg for

View:
80.01%

(0.00%)

76.12%
Avg for

View:
76.12%

(0.00%)

$0.00
% of

Total:
0.00%

($0.00)

1. 2,595
(85.96%)

2,158
(86.74%)

00:03:02 2,156
(93.82%)

80.18% 78.30% $0.00
(0.00%)

2. 207
(6.86%)

152
(6.11%)

00:02:29 105
(4.57%)

74.29% 64.73% $0.00
(0.00%)

3. 79
(2.62%)

70
(2.81%)

00:06:58 27
(1.17%)

88.89% 79.75% $0.00
(0.00%)

4. 6
(0.20%)

1
(0.04%) 00:03:10 0

(0.00%) 0.00% 16.67% $0.00
(0.00%)

5. 5
(0.17%)

3
(0.12%) 00:01:29 0

(0.00%) 0.00% 40.00% $0.00
(0.00%)

6. 4
(0.13%)

3
(0.12%) 00:00:09 0

(0.00%) 0.00% 50.00% $0.00
(0.00%)

7. 4
(0.13%)

4
(0.16%) 00:00:00 4

(0.17%) 100.00% 100.00% $0.00
(0.00%)

8. 3
(0.10%)

1
(0.04%) 00:00:09 0

(0.00%) 0.00% 33.33% $0.00
(0.00%)

9. 3
(0.10%)

2
(0.08%)

00:00:49 0
(0.00%)

0.00% 33.33% $0.00
(0.00%)

10. 3
(0.10%)

2
(0.08%) 00:24:52 1

(0.04%) 0.00% 66.67% $0.00
(0.00%)

 Pageviews

Sep 5 Sep 12 Sep 19 Sep 26

100100100

200200200

/

/index.html

/board_of_directors.html

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=recre
ation

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=clean
+up

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=Clea
n+up+day

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=Flag+
football

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=Bask
etball

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=cpr

/?p=1&lang=en&include=&exclude=&penalty=0&mode=all&q=Fishi
ng

© 2016 Google

All Users
100.00% Pageviews

Go to this reportCameron Park CSD - http://www.came…
Cameron Park CSD

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=0
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/content-pages/a35712331w63585696p65244037/%3F_u.date00%3D20150830%26_u.date01%3D20150929/


Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016
Compare to: Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

End of Month Report

Some data in this report may have been removed when a threshold was applied. Learn more

Visits

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

5,419
% of Total: 100.00% (5,419)

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

5,722
% of Total: 100.00% (5,722)

Pageviews

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

10,991
% of Total: 100.00% (10,991)

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

12,109
% of Total: 100.00% (12,109)

Avg. Visit Duration and Pages / Visit

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

00:01:38
Avg for View: 00:01:38 (0.00%)

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

00:01:46
Avg for View: 00:01:46 (0.00%)

New Visits

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

3,502
% of Total: 100.00% (3,502)

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

3,557
% of Total: 100.00% (3,557)

Bounce Rate

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

58.33%
Avg for View: 58.33% (0.00%)

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

55.17%
Avg for View: 55.17% (0.00%)

Visits by Social Network

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

Users by Gender

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

Users by Age

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

Facebook Twitter Yelp reddit Instagram
Other

76.4%

72.7%

female male

40.1%

59.9%

There is no data for this view.

25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 18-24 Other

24.3%

23.9%

14.3%

17.2%

There is no data for this view.

All Users
+0.00% Sessions

Go to this reportCameron Park Community Services Di…
All Web Site Data

Attachment A

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=1
https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?authuser=1&utm_source=pdfReportLink#dashboard/Vv3VJpkyRUKmOqkLDVFIGw/a77099289w115889776p121187108/%3F_u.dateOption%3Dlast30days%26_u.hasComparison%3Dtrue/


Avg. Page Load Time (sec)

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

4.90
Avg for View: 4.90 (0.00%)

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

5.78
Avg for View: 5.78 (0.00%)

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Sessions and % New Sessions by Device Category

Device Category Sessions % New Sessions

mobile

2,710 63.80%

2,915 58.39%

-7.03% 9.27%

desktop

2,332 65.69%

2,376 67.30%

-1.85% -2.38%

tablet

377 64.19%

431 59.63%

-12.53% 7.65%



Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Aug 30, 2016 - Sep 28, 2016

Jul 31, 2016 - Aug 29, 2016

% Change

Entrances and Bounce Rate by Landing Page

Landing Page Entrances Bounce Rate

1,866 42.23%

2,053 38.72%

-9.11% 9.05%

681 74.16%

419 70.64%

62.53% 4.97%

203 79.31%

52 78.85%

290.38% 0.59%

185 59.46%

56 48.21%

230.36% 23.32%

176 59.66%

189 51.85%

-6.88% 15.06%

120 70.83%

297 69.02%

-59.60% 2.62%

109 81.65%

101 86.14%

7.92% -5.21%

73 86.30%

85 74.12%

-14.12% 16.44%

58 82.76%

65 83.08%

-10.77% -0.38%

52 32.69%

41 51.22%

26.83% -36.17%

/

/parks-facilities/cameron-park-lake/

/events/cameron-park-countryfest/

/recreation/special-events/

/parks-facilities/community-center/

/parks-facilities/aquatics-programs/

/parks-facilities/rasmussen-park/

/ccrs/ccrs-by-subdivision/

/recreation/sports/

/calendar/



PROJECT NUMBER:
16-1899

UPTOWN STUDIOS
WE’VE MOVED:
2415 23rd Street (Between X and Broadway)
Sacramento, CA 95818        916.446.1082
UptownStudios.net

CLIENT PHONE:

SUBMITTED TO:

5306772231

PROJECT NAME: WEB MAINTENANCE FULL: September 2016

Cameron Park Community Services District

EMAIL:CONTACT:

2502 Country Club Drive
Cameron Park CA 95682

Mary mcahill@cameronpark.orgCahill

END OF MONTH Web Report

This month, we completed the following SEO and web maintenance for your website:
• Completing client requested updates
• Manual website reviews on desktop and mobile.
• Updated slider on the homepage
• Updated events
• SEO and website maintenance - created titles and metadata descriptions for five pages

Google Analytics data about website traffic for your site:
• First, your site traffic had 5,419 visits, slightly down from last month’s 5,722 and 10,991

page views, down from last month’s 12,109
• Visitor’s average session duration lasted 1:38
• Social Media traffic came from Facebook, with 76% and Twitter with 10%
• You had 40% male visitors and 60% female visitors with the biggest age group being 25-34
• Your most visited web pages were /parks-facilities/cameron-park-lake/

and /events/cameron-park-countryfest/
We will continue to create meta titles and descriptions for your pages to increase your SEO visibility.

RECOMMENDATIONS AND NEXT STEPS

DATE: 

Attachment A



Attachment B 

 
Z: EVENTS/Pooch Plunge/2016   
   1 
 

Cameron Park Community Services District 
ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
EVENT:  Pooch Plunge/Laps at the Lake  DATE:  Saturday, August 13, 2016 
LOCATION:  Cameron Park Lake  TIME:  9:00am to 2:00pm  
ESTIMATED ATTENDANCE:  Approximately 100 participants 
SUBMITTED BY: Tina Helm, Recreation Supervisor  
 
◊ REVENUES:                                       $1,466.00   
• 9 Vendor spaces   $   280.00 
• Pre-Registered    $   141.00 
• Day of Event Registration   $   958.00 
• Raffle      $     87.00 
 
◊ EXPENDITURES:    $   572.02 
Marketing    

Advertising – banner, posters, flyers $   271.02 
Supplies  

  
Staff/Contract   

Contract and Recreation Staff   $   301.00 
  
◊ REVENUE                                          $   893.98     
      
VOLUNTEERS: 
63.50 hours – 13 volunteers from the Just Serve Group and 6 volunteers from EDDOG.  
They helped with the event set up, the run, registration, raffle table, gate monitor during 
the swim event, beach and water monitoring and take down.  
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
The Pooch Plunge is a NEW event for the CSD to sponsor.  This event has previously 
been done by the EDDOG Group.  The event consists of a run/walk from 9am to 10am 
where dog owners can walk/run their animal around the lake.  Each participant received 
a participant ribbon.     
The main event is the Pooch Plunge where the swim area at the lake was open from 
10am to 2pm to allow dogs off leash into the swim area.  This is a once a year 
opportunity.  All the dogs that went in had a blast.  Dog owners were reminded to let the 
dogs come out of the water once in a while to avoid getting too tired. 
Vendors were set up along the path leading to the swim area.  The food vendors were 
in the shaded area closer to the gazebo.  Registration and the raffle were done in the 
gazebo area.  Volunteers from Just Serve and EDDOG helped at the event. 
Food was available from Cameron Park Coffee & Deli and Lumpkins Dirty Dogs.   
Booths included:  Debbi Preston, Pet Assisted Therapy, Pet  Grooming, El Dorado 
Animal Shelter, Relay for Life, Lighting Prints, and Pet Sitting.  
The vendors brought raffle prizes and Cameron Park Airport Vet donated a prize for the 
raffle.  



Attachment B 

 
Z: EVENTS/Pooch Plunge/2016   
   2 
 

 
 
SUPPLIES AND RESOURCES: 
Delineator and A Frames were used to indicate the entrance for the swim area – only 
one gate was unlocked and a volunteer managed the gate so that dogs did not escape 
entering and exiting the swim ares.  Paper bags were used for the raffle tickets. 
  
EVALUATION: 
The event was very well attended.  Staff received positive comments of the layout of the 
event.  
 
 
 
Vendors’ results below: out of a 5.0 rating. 
 

Booth  
Location 

Booth  
Sales 

Booth 
Traffic 

Food/Beverages  
Available Hours Advertising Another 

Event?  
            Yes No 

5.00 4.50 4.00 4.50 4.50 3.00 5  
 
Suggestions for next year: 
Reach out to more pet related vendors to have at the event. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Flyer 
 
 

























#1: Which facility do you visit most?

CP Lake

Aquatic 

Center

Christa 

McAuliffe Rasmussen Gateway

Dave 

West Hacienda

Total 186 169 76 63 41 13 20

#2: Please list comments park/facility not included above     N/A

#3: Why do you visit these parks? 

Reasons for visiting:

Sports related 56 Dog Related 19

"Sports" 17 "Dog" 10

Sport events/games 4 dog park 7

Football 7 Dog Events 2

Baseball 7 State of Park related 16

Basketball 2 Clean 10

Soccer 7 Bathroom 2

Tennis 7 Safe 4

Swim Team 2 Family fun 27

Pickleball 3 Kids 23

Aquatic Center Related 68 Picnics 4

Lap Swim 3 Special Events, Classes, and Activities 47

"Swim/swimming" 38 Events 29

"pool" 16 Activities 9

"aquatic" 2 Classes/Workshops 9

Aqua Sol 2 Walking/Running/Biking 31

Sharks/swim team 3 Trails 7

Water Polo 4 Walking 17

Lake Related 46 Running 2

Lake 34 Biking 5

Lagoon 4

Fishing 6

Boating 2

Parks

Attachment C



#4: Would you be interested in attending and of the following activities at our parks?

In order 

of 

Popularity Trails

Special 

Events

Boating 

(non 

motorized) Biking

Outdoor 

Fitness 

Stations

Communi

ty Garden

Fishing 

(Permit  - 

C&R) Bocce Ball Disc Golf

Outdoor 

Basketball 

Court

# of "yes" 

responses 115 95 96 83 65 65 57 51 44 35

Response

s counted 

from 

"other" 

category 

related to 

a supplied 

category 3 3 1

Total 118 98 96 84 65 65 57 51 44 35

Attachment C 



#5: What other activities or services would you like to see added to the parks?

Related to more than one category

There is only 1 dog park in CP/Placerville.  This is a great park, however we need to get at least a ONE DAY a week dog day at CP lake.  It 

would also help clean up the geese poop every where! 

I would like to see an environmental health study/report readily available to the public on the effects of human contact with geese feces 

found at the Cameron Park Lake's lagoon sandy beach and picnic areas and the chemicals added to the swimming lagoon.  Thank you.  

At the pool, since there is no check-in monitor, I do see why there is not access through the back gate.  It would be much easier for classes 

and allow visitors parking near the offices.

Year round swim, water polo @ the CSD would be awesome!! High School clinics and clubs

Volleyball

Aqua sol swim team at the CSD year round/ basketball courts and bocce ball the  lake facility

Ability to rent canoes again at the lake

Cameron Park lake to be cleaned better and more often - the lake itself

swimming events

I wish the pool had a large working clock

Lake Related

Aquatic Center Related

It is a shame the CSD can't be more welcoming and accommodating the  Sierra Shark and Aqua Sol teams.  The community pool is under 

utilized and because CSD choses to charge these organizations way too much the pool sits empty.  The CSD needs to work with the 

community organizations to promote usage of our facilities.

Sports related

Bass lake Golf course- would make a great spot for new soccer/ sports complex

we need permanent pickleball courts

Nothing, JK.... soccer would be great for my son!

Fall Softball - Adult league

Water Polo clinics @ the CSD Pool

would like a weekend BBQ at CSD pool

Dodgeball, tennis

Concessions at skate park during summer

outdoor showers at the CSD pool

please give Placerville residents free admission

Better pool services for kids

Please keep pool clean

A professional pool

more lap swim lanes and hours, i.e. evenings/weekends

Softball

Girls volleyball. Currently going to EDH CSD for this. 

Pickle ball courts non fee

Aqua sol swim team at the CSD year round/ basketball courts and bocce ball the  lake facility

Beach Volleyball

Junior tennis - for more serious players who want to start playing tournaments

I would visit Cameron Park lake, but the cost for our family precludes us from doing so. 

Cameron Lake park is not worth an entrance fee.  People should be able to walk or jog around the park without paying and it would be nice 

to have ply equipment for children 

Please let dogs into CP lake to keep away geese poop. $500 fine for dogs off leash. 

kayak

Include SUP - stand up paddle boarding 

Additional "Dog Days" at the lake

Attachment C 



At the pool, since there is no check-in monitor, I do see why there is not access through the back gate.  It would be much 

easier for classes and allow visitors parking near the offices.

It's very clean, just needs bathrooms and it would be better. 

Dog Related

There is only 1 dog park in CP/Placerville.  This is a great park, however we need to get at least a ONE DAY a week dog day at 

CP lake.  It would also help clean up the geese poop every where! 

dog and bike trails

Running and biking trails

walking meet up groups.

More family friendly events!

Bike trails would be a great addition to Cameron park!

I would like to see improved biking trails and more water fountains

biking would be really cool

How about a bathroom at Hacienda Park even a portable would be nice.

State of Park related

It's very clean, just needs bathrooms and it would be better. 

Restrooms needed at some

Please let dogs into CP lake to keep away geese poop. $500 fine for dogs off leash. 

Additional "Dog Days" at the lake

dog and bike trails

Dog swimming; listen to bands; craft fair; 

dog run areas

Better fields, more comparable to the fields provided by EDH CSD. 

fireworks and tables

Family fun

Music

Food / Food Trucks

I would like to see improved biking trails and more water fountains

Nice clean bathrooms are good to have. 

Great places for the family. Most of the places could have more shade, though. 

Royal oak park trail along Deer creek. although too much poison oak in summer. 

More shade and tables

More benches.  I'm older and getting up off the ground is a joke.

Restrooms, picnic tables, better non-motorized access, bicycle parking (high quality)

Better water drinking fountains - Higher Pressure  - Upkeep more

More water features and picnic tables

Water attractions like at the EDHs and Folsom parks, for kids to play in during the summer

Community BBQ

another picnic table or two at the playground at Christa. it gets really busy at lunch time there

Walking/Running/Biking

Mountain Bike trails

Attachment C 



Interest 

indicated

28 20 20

Park Benches Picnic Tables Water Fountain

#6: We offer, through donations, ways of honoring friends, family, and loved ones. Would you be 

More outdoor and indoor music events

Beach Volleyball

Yoga in the park

swimming events

I would love include dancing in camps. I can volunteer to conduct small dance sessions. I conduct Zumba style dance classes 

professionally, focused more on Bollywood dance but can do any.

Most classes and events are too expensive for my budge, but might do on a pay per class vs. pay for a block of classes.

Dog swimming; listen to bands; craft fair; 

Hiking as a group

Infants anything

Horse shoes

outdoor classes, group activities

Special Events, Classes, and Activities

would like a weekend BBQ at CSD pool

These would be great Boy or Girl Scout Award Projects.  Have they been offered to them?

How about a brick path? The above are probably out of our price range but we could manage somethings like $50 and the 

"Other" comments

dance events

more senior activities

more campouts

Fundraisers

Disc golf

Water attractions like at the EDHs and Folsom parks, for kids to play in during the summer

More water features (spray parks)

Outdoor yoga

a water park for the kids

Swings

please bring back sand castle contests

outdoor movies/ plays

Community Gardens

Parkour courses

Frisbee golf

outdoor yoga

fireworks and tables

More family friendly events!

more community programs

Attachment C 



 

Parks Report September 21, 2016 Page 1 of 2 
 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  J.R. Hichborn, Parks Superintendent  
 
AGENDA ITEM #2D:  PARKS REPORT  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive and File  
  
BUDGET ACCOUNT: N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A   
 
 
Cameron Park Lake 
On September 24th the Green Valley ward of the Church of Latter-Day Saints church came out to the 
lake for a volunteer work day. There were about 40 volunteers who spread 18 yards of decomposed 
granite, 18 yards of decorative bark and cleaned up the planter beds located near the picnic area. The 
swimming lagoon is drained for the off season and some of the signage at the lake is being replaced 
due to fading and some are no longer legible.  

 
Rasmussen Park 
Staff has a weekly maintenance schedule at Rasmussen Park. The drinking fountain has been fixed, 
irrigation adjusted accordingly and 13 “Dogs must be on a leash” signs have been installed. 

 
Christa McAuliffe Park 
The park was prepped for another successful Country Fest. The turf seemed to hold up fine with little 
negative impact. PG&E will be using the field as an easement for a pole replacement job they are 
doing and will be fencing off an area 15 feet from our existing fence line. The soccer field is 105 feet 
off the fence line so the easement will not impact the games. 
 
Hacienda Park 
The drive gates in the small dog park have been fixed (they were not closing completely and larger 
dogs were pushing them open from outside the park).  

 
Northview Park (LLAD)  
Northview Park is closed to the public with the new trail project is under construction. Installation of 
the decomposed granite started the week of September 3rd. There is a bonding agent mixed in with the 
decomposed granite that takes several days to cure and harden under warm temperatures. The 
Department of Transportation replaced a 20 foot section of the drainage culver that runs throughout 



 

Parks Report October19, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
 

the park. Note:  Some neighborhood patrons have ignored the safety fencing and walked on the 
pathway. A neighborhood point person is putting out the word to say away from the construction site.    

 
Eastwood and Davis West Parks (LLAD) 
The spring flower beds have been replaced with fall flower beds at Eastwood and David West Parks.  
 
Community Center 
The new pool tarps have arrived and are being utilized on a daily basis. Climatec reprogramed all 
of the heating, ventilation and air conditioning units to simplify the program and help us better 
manage temperatures of the rooms individually. 
 
Weed Abatement 
The Sandpiper lot was cleared this month and Gateway Park will be next. Expenses are being tracked 
and so far the District has invested roughly $7,800 since March of this year. The crews have been out 
on 20 separate occasions.  

 
Vandalism 
o On the weekend of September 17th, the picnic tables at Northview Park were thrown into the 

water retention ponds. Staff removed the tables and anchored them to the ground near the 
playground Area. 

o On the week of September 27th, the letters from the sign to the entrance of Northview Park 
were stolen. 

o On the weekend of October 1st, several small cuts were made in the shade fabric at 
Northview Park. 

 







Summary: General Fund Balance 
For the Years ended June 30, 2013 - June 30, 2017

YTD

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17

General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund General Fund

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget

General Fund SUMMARY:

Beginning General Fund Balance 7/1 $2,685,556 $3,151,485 $3,348,221 $3,853,790 $3,576,873 $3,576,873

Revenues
Property Taxes 3,234,835 3,305,549 3,415,687 3,393,682 0 3,626,569

Interest 7,732 9,409 6,430 503 0 7,500

Program Fees, Special Events, and Facility Rentals 558,036 594,807 623,777 652,484 195,589 598,610

Intergovernmental-JPA 905,233 989,719 1,063,792 1,026,240 0 1,075,523

Reimbursement (rebates), Grants, Accounting Fee 7,034 171,433 17,228 7,500 0 7,000

Franchise Fees 156,704 160,778 163,396 160,367 0 160,000

Other Income 28,453 8,827 4,402 6,082 0 0

Transfers in from Equipment Funds 45,950 0 0

Total revenues and other sources 4,943,977 5,240,523 5,294,712 5,246,858 195,589 5,475,202

Expenditures
Salaries and employee benefits 775,239 677,367 743,939 865,330 283,490 996,500

Cal Fire Personnel 2,462,981 2,682,557 2,651,400 2,980,486 0 2,985,016

Services and supplies 1,220,001 1,435,496 1,448,947 1,527,527 308,977 1,488,347

Capital Equipment 38,877 248,367 89,581 150,431 0 157,000

Fire Engines Lease & Purchase 45,950 0 0

Reserve for Capital Equipment 0

Total expenditures 4,543,048 5,043,787 4,933,867 5,523,774 592,467 5,626,863

Net Surplus (deficit) 400,929 196,736 360,845 (276,916) (396,878) (151,661)

Contingency 
Interfund Transfer 144,724

Net Change in General Fund Balance 400,929 196,736 505,569 (276,916) (396,878) (151,661)

Reserves
Economic Uncertainty Reserve 65,000

Capital Replacement Reserve 0 0

Ending General Fund Balance 7/1 $3,151,485 $3,348,221 $3,853,790 $3,576,873 $3,179,995 $3,425,212

Unreserved, undesignated

Note: Source of 2012-13 through 2014-15 results are from the District's audited Financial Statements.

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting-Oct. 19, 2016

Agenda Item #3a.



Cameron Park Community Services District
General Fund, CCR Fund, Fire Training Fund, and Fire Prevention Fund Budgets
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Preliminary Budget Adopted June 15, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center

FY 2016-17 
Adopted 

General Fund 
Budget

FY 2016-17 
CC&R Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17 Fire 
Training Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17   
Fire Prevention 

Fund       
Budget

Expenditures:
Salaries - Permanent 156,000 0 154,000 84,000 37,000 431,000 53,374 0 0

Salaries - Seasonal/PT/Funded 23,800 0 0 60,000 99,000 182,800 0 0 4,000

Health - Retired 25,000 78,000 26,000 0 0 129,000 0 0 0

Health & Dental 19,000 0 42,000 32,000 15,000 108,000 0 0 0

Vision Insurance 300 0 600 500 200 1,600 0 0 0

Retirement Benefits (active) 35,000 0 34,000 29,000 4,500 102,500 6,000 0 0

Workers' Compensation 1,000 1,800 2,900 1,800 2,000 9,500 400 0 0

FICA/Medicare Contribution 2,500 0 3,200 5,600 9,000 20,300 700 0 400

UI/TT Contribution 1,400 0 1,800 3,600 5,000 11,800 434 0 300

Total salaries and benefits 264,000 79,800 264,500 216,500 171,700 996,500 60,908 0 4,700

Advertising/Marketing 600 0 0 30,000 9,500 40,100 0 0 0

Agency Administration Fee 5,500 55,000 14,200 3,700 0 78,400 2,000 500 0

Agriculture 0 0 6,000 0 1,500 7,500 0 0 0

Audit & Accounting 20,000 5,000 0 0 0 25,000 2,000 0 0

Bank Charge 2,500 0 0 3,000 6,500 12,000 200 0 0

Clothing/Uniform             0 2,500 1,500 0 400 4,400 0 0 200

Computer Software 2,000 2,500 1,200 4,000 3,500 13,200 2,500 0 700

Contractual Services - Plans 0 10,000 10,000 0 0 1,000

Contractual Services 37,440 56,730 40,000 0 91,720 225,890 0 0 0

Contractual Services - Provider 0 2,985,016 0 0 2,985,016 0 0 0

Directors Compensation 18,000 0 0 0 0 18,000 0 0 0

EDC Department  Agency 1,800 800 800 800 0 4,200 900 0 0

Educational Material 300 0 200 500 1,000 0 2,000 2,500

Elections 10,000 0 0 0 0 10,000 0 0 0

Equipment-Minor/Small Tools 500 2,000 10,000 500 5,000 18,000 100 2,000 250

Deposit Refund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire & Safety Supplies 0 1,500 400 0 1,000 2,900 0 2,000 0

Fire Prevention & Inspection 0 21,000 0 0 0 21,000 0 0 0

Personal Protective Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire-Volunteer/Resident 0 29,200 0 0 29,200 0 0 1,200

Food 700 1,000 300 2,100 300 4,400 0 500 0

Fuel 0 62,000 11,000 0 73,000 600 0 0

Government Fees  /Permits 0 2,650 8,000 0 4,500 15,150 0 0 0

Household Supplies 0 6,000 6,000 0 9,000 21,000 0 0 0

Instructors 0 0 0 16,500 44,200 60,700 0 0 0

Insurance 3,000 21,600 17,400 7,800 10,200 60,000 2,000 0 0

Legal Services 30,000 10,000 0 0 0 40,000 20,000 0 0

Maintenance - Buildings 0 26,200 6,000 0 12,000 44,200 0 7,000 0

Maintenance - Equipment 600 25,000 12,000 1,500 13,000 52,100 400 2,000 0

Maintenance - Grounds 0 3,000 45,000 0 2,500 50,500 0 0 0

Maintenance - Radios & Phones 0 2,000 0 0 0 2,000 0 1,500 0

Maintenance - Tires & Tubes 0 12,000 0 0 0 12,000 300 0 0

Budgets FY 2016-17

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District
General Fund, CCR Fund, Fire Training Fund, and Fire Prevention Fund Budgets
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Preliminary Budget Adopted June 15, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center

FY 2016-17 
Adopted 

General Fund 
Budget

FY 2016-17 
CC&R Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17 Fire 
Training Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17   
Fire Prevention 

Fund       
Budget

Budgets FY 2016-17

Maintenance - Vehicles 0 20,000 10,000 0 30,000 500 0 0

Medical Supplies 0 0 0 0 200 200 0 0 0

Memberships & Subscriptions 7,500 850 500 228 0 9,078 0 0 500

Mileage Reimbursement 300 0 0 0 5,200 5,500 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,500 0

Office Supplies 3,000 4,000 1,150 900 1,800 10,850 1,000 1,000 0

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District
General Fund, CCR Fund, Fire Training Fund, and Fire Prevention Fund Budgets
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Preliminary Budget Adopted June 15, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center

FY 2016-17 
Adopted 

General Fund 
Budget

FY 2016-17 
CC&R Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17 Fire 
Training Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17   
Fire Prevention 

Fund       
Budget

Budgets FY 2016-17

Pool Chemicals 0 0 27,129 0 28,900 56,029 0 0 0

Postage 1,000 500 0 400 0 1,900 450 0 500

Printing 300 350 500 0 200 1,350 100 2,000 250

Professional Services 42,500 4,200 14,000 5,000 8,000 73,700 600 1,500 0

Program Supplies 0 0 0 7,250 6,800 14,050 0 0 0

Publications & Legal Notices 1,000 300 0 0 0 1,300 200 0 300

Radios 0 500 0 0 0 500 0 1,000 0

Refund - Activity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Rent/Lease - Buildings 0 0 0 900 9,000 9,900 0 0 0

Rent/Lease - Equipment 0 0 1,000 200 0 1,200 0 0 0

Staff Development 4,000 5,000 1,500 500 500 11,500 0 0 1,250

Telephone 6,000 15,000 3,000 2,500 2,400 28,900 2,000 0 0

Travel/Lodging 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 2,000 0 0 250

Tuition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Utilities - Water 0 12,000 28,000 0 15,750 55,750 0 0 0

Utilities - Electricity / Gas 0 27,000 40,000 0 78,300 145,300 0 0 0

Vandalism 0 0 3,000 0 1,000 4,000 0 0 0

Summer Spectacular 0 0 0 52,000 0 52,000 0 0 0

Special Events Expense 0 0 0 17,500 0 17,500 0 0 0

Total services and supplies 199,540 3,423,396 309,779 167,278 373,370 4,473,363 35,850 24,500 8,900

Revenues:
Property Tax 253,860 2,538,598 652,783 181,328 0 3,626,569 68,450 0 0

ARC / Fire Plan Review Fees 0 0 0 0 0 15,000 0 7,182

Interest 7,500 0 0 0 0 7,500 500 0 200

Recreation Program Revenues 0 0 0 128,708 171,016 299,724 0 0 0

Administration Process Fees 7,000 0 0 0 0 7,000 0 0 0

JPA Reimbursements 0 1,075,523 0 0 0 1,075,523 0 0 0

Grant Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Special Events 0 0 0 25,725 0 25,725 0 0 0

Facility Use Revenue 0 0 0 24,500 177,911 202,411 0 0 0

Summer Spectacular 0 0 0 55,000 0 55,000 0 0 0

Franchise Fees 160,000 0 0 0 0 160,000 0 0 0

Sponsorships 0 0 0 15,750 0 15,750 0 0 0

Training 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,000 0

Fund Transfer:  Fire Engines Lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 428,360 3,614,121 652,783 431,011 348,927 5,475,202 83,950 14,000 7,382

Expenditures:
Capital Equipment 0 56,000 95,000 0 6,000 157,000 0 0 0

Salaries and employee benefits 264,000 79,800 264,500 216,500 171,700 996,500 60,908 0 4,700

Services and supplies 199,540 3,423,396 309,779 167,278 373,370 4,473,363 35,850 24,500 8,900

Equipment Replacement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Engines Lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District
General Fund, CCR Fund, Fire Training Fund, and Fire Prevention Fund Budgets
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Preliminary Budget Adopted June 15, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center

FY 2016-17 
Adopted 

General Fund 
Budget

FY 2016-17 
CC&R Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17 Fire 
Training Fund 

Budget

FY 2016-17   
Fire Prevention 

Fund       
Budget

Budgets FY 2016-17

Reserve for Capital Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 463,540 3,559,196 669,279 383,778 551,070 5,626,863 96,758 24,500 13,600

Excess (deficit) (35,180) 54,925 (16,496) 47,233 (202,143) (151,661) (12,808) (10,500) (6,218)

Contingency (from PY) 0 0

Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund 0

Excess (deficit) (35,180) 54,925 (16,496) 47,233 (202,143) (151,661) (12,808) (10,500) (6,218)

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
through ONE months of the Year Ended June 30, 2017. 25%

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center
09/30/16     
Actual

FY 2016-17 
General Fund 

Budget

Actual 
as % of 
Budget

Expenditures:
5000 Salaries - Permanent $34,544 $0 $19,085 $17,054 $1,843 $72,526 $431,000 17%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT/Funded 5,345 0 0 21,686 50,827 77,858 182,800 43%
5135 Health - Retired 29,140 15,261 23,797 21,772 0 89,970 129,000 70%
5130 Health & Dental Insurance 5,177 0 2,898 10,127 5,354 23,556 108,000 22%
5140 Vision Insurance 80 0 108 158 0 345 1,600 22%
5150 Retirement Benefits (active) 2,355 0 1,768 2,060 553 6,736 102,500 7%
5160 Workers' Compensation 515 875 1,545 1,545 1,030 5,509 9,500 58%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 850 0 283 1,865 3,992 6,990 20,300 34%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,800 0%

Total salaries and benefits 78,005 16,136 49,484 76,267 63,599 283,490 996,500 28%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 54 0 0 9,314 200 9,568 40,100 24%
5210 Agency Administration Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 78,400 0%
5215 Agriculture 0 0 509 0 0 509 7,500 7%
5220 Audit & Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0%
5221 Bank Charges 624 0 138 888 1,751 3,400 12,000 28%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 0 900 586 0 0 1,486 4,400 34%
5231 Computer Software 1,021 747 677 3,065 3,065 8,576 13,200 65%
5240 Contractual Services - other 14,828 0 0 0 0 14,828 10,000 148%
5235 Contractual Services 0 4,637 18,793 2,842 11,054 37,326 225,890 17%
5236 Contractual Services - Provider 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,985,016 0%
5250 Directors Compensation 2,200 0 0 0 0 2,200 18,000 12%
5260 EDC Department Agency 1,247 1,247 0 1,247 0 3,742 4,200 89%
5265 Educational Material 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0%
5270 Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 0%
5275 Equipment-Minor/Small Tools 0 104 1,824 0 1,033 2,961 18,000 16%
5282 Deposit Refund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5285 Fire & Safety Supplies 0 418 548 0 83 1,048 2,900 36%
5295 Fire Turnouts 0 10,242 0 0 0 10,242 21,000 49%
5296 Fire-Volunteer/Resident 0 800 0 0 0 800 29,200 3%
5300 Food 608 0 183 389 236 1,416 4,400 32%
5305 Fuel 0 10,981 0 0 0 10,981 73,000 15%
5310 Government Fees/Permits 0 1,514 1,514 0 98 3,125 15,150 21%
5315 Household Supplies 11 1,021 502 0 1,296 2,830 21,000 13%
5316 Instructors 0 0 0 4,237 9,439 13,676 60,700 23%
5320 Insurance 2,245 20,762 16,273 16,273 8,978 64,530 60,000 108%
5335 Legal Services 1,960 360 0 0 0 2,320 40,000 6%
5345 Maintenance - Buildings 0 1,912 522 0 259 2,693 44,200 6%
5350 Maintenance - Equipment 51 4,802 1,617 145 2,418 9,032 52,100 17%
5355 Maintenance - Grounds 0 736 3,910 0 220 4,865 50,500 10%
5360 Maintenance - Radios & Phones 0 149 0 0 0 149 2,000 7%
5365 Maintenance - Tires & Tubes 0 2,206 514 0 0 2,720 12,000 23%
5370 Maintenance - Vehicles 0 0 1,290 0 0 1,290 30,000 4%
5375 Medical Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 0%
5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 528 0 55 185 0 768 9,078 8%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 229 0 0 0 0 229 5,500 4%
5395 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5400 Office Supplies 1,204 451 292 231 243 2,421 10,850 22%

Current Year: FY 2016-17 YTD ACTUAL (PRELIMINARY)

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
through ONE months of the Year Ended June 30, 2017. 25%

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center
09/30/16     
Actual

FY 2016-17 
General Fund 

Budget

Actual 
as % of 
Budget

Current Year: FY 2016-17 YTD ACTUAL (PRELIMINARY)

5405 Pool Chemicals 0 0 16,991 0 5,223 22,214 56,029 40%
5410 Postage 188 0 5 47 0 240 1,900 13%
5415 Printing 0 75 0 360 0 435 1,350 32%
5420 Professional Services 3,122 110 778 711 953 5,673 73,700 8%
5421 Program Supplies 0 0 0 3,697 1,747 5,443 14,050 39%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 64 0 0 0 0 64 1,300 5%
5430 Radios 0 229 0 0 0 229 500 46%
5431 Refund-Activity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5435 Rent/Lease - Buildings 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,900 0%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equipment 0 81 0 118 0 199 1,200 17%
5455 Staff Development 123 450 80 0 0 653 11,500 6%
5470 Telephone 725 2,351 792 710 1,719 6,298 28,900 22%
5480 Travel/Lodging 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 0%
5490 Utilities - Water 0 1,487 6,669 0 3,996 12,153 55,750 22%
5492 Utilities - Electricity / Gas 0 0 17,474 0 17,873 35,346 145,300 24%
5500 Vandalism 0 0 298 0 0 298 4,000 7%
5466 Summer Spectacular 0 0 0 0 0 0 52,000 0%
5465 Special Events Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,500 0%

Total services and supplies 31,031 68,772 92,834 44,458 71,882 308,977 4,473,363 7%

Revenues:
Property Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,626,569 0%
Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,500 0%
Recreation Program Revenue 0 0 0 63,815 54,572 118,387 299,724 39%
Administration Process Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,000 0%
JPA Reimbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,075,523 0%
Grant Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
Facility Use Revenue 0 0 0 1,693 75,510 77,202 202,411 38%
Special Events 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,725 0%
Franchise Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 160,000 0%
Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 no budget

Sponsorships 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,750 0%
Fire Engines Lease & Purchase 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 no budget

Total revenues 0 0 0 65,508 130,081 195,589 5,475,202 4%

Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 78,005 16,136 49,484 76,267 63,599 283,490 996,500 28%
Services and supplies 31,031 68,772 92,834 44,458 71,882 308,977 4,473,363 7%
Capital Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 157,000 0%
Fire Engines Lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Reserve for Capital Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

Total expenditures 109,036 84,908 142,317 120,725 135,481 592,467 5,626,863 11%
Excess (deficit) ($109,036) ($84,908) ($142,317) ($55,217) ($5,400) ($396,878) ($151,661)

Contingency
Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund
Excess (deficit) ($109,036) ($84,908) ($142,317) ($55,217) ($5,400) ($396,878) ($151,661)

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Service District - Administration
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Administration FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

Revenues:
4110 Property Tax $227,540 $239,099 $237,558 $0 $0 $0 $0 $253,860 0%
4113 Franchise Fees 160,778 163,396 160,367 0 0 0 0 160,000 0%

Admin. Fee 7,500 7,500 7,500 0 0 0 0 7,000 0%
4400 Reimbursement 4,546 9,728 6,082 4,969 4,969 0 0 0 -%
4505 Interest 8,807 6,430 503 0 0 0 0 7,500 0%
4600 Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Total revenues 409,172 426,152 412,009 4,969 4,969 0 0 428,360 0%

Expenditures:
5000 Salaries - Permanent 98,137 138,389 147,709 39,381 11,252 34,544 7,695 156,000 22%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT funded 12,003 7,799 17,472 6,519 2,290 5,345 1,556 23,800 22%
5135 Health - Retired 25,333 22,380 22,026 6,284 2,495 29,140 3,383 25,000 117%
5130 Health & Dental Insurance 9,276 12,313 16,404 4,329 1,326 5,177 2,151 19,000 27%
5140 Vision Insurance 187 183 304 100 25 80 (24) 300 27%
5150 Retirement Benefits (active) 20,599 27,830 36,154 8,163 5,756 2,355 3,295 35,000 7%
5160 Workers' Compensation 550 659 824 412 0 515 (515) 1,000 51%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 2,302 2,392 3,234 725 210 850 213 2,500 34%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 963 1,732 2,239 0 0 0 0 1,400 0%

Salaries & benefits 169,350 213,675 246,365 65,911 23,354 78,005 17,753 264,000 30%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 582 2,636 548 0 0 54 54 600 9%
5210 Agency Administration Fee 4,314 3,363 5,404 0 0 0 0 5,500 0%
5215 Agriculture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5220 Audit & Accounting 26,358 16,800 20,445 0 0 0 0 20,000 0%
5221 Bank Charges 2,455 1,807 1,343 (414) (414) 624 624 2,500 25%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5231 Computer Software 2,021 4,564 2,723 710 0 1,021 1,021 2,000 51%
5235 Contractual Services - Other 129,701 51,879 0 11,880 5,030 14,828 8,968 37,440 40%
5240 Temporary Help Contractual Service 27,365 3,500 37,065 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5250 Director Comp 0 6,600 13,600 2,600 2,100 2,200 900 18,000 12%
5260 EDC Department Agency 842 749 1,760 1,760 0 1,247 0 1,800 69%
5265 Educational Material 0 138 0 0 0 0 0 300 0%
5270 Elections 0 9,727 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 0%
5265 Equipment-Minor/Small 173 3,949 0 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5300 Food 951 875 1,395 72 43 608 204 700 87%
5305 Fuel 1,138 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5310 Government Fees/Permits 53 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5315 Household Supplies 0 23 17 0 0 11 11 0 -%
5320 Insurance 2,619 2,833 2,874 2,499 0 2,245 0 3,000 75%
5335 Legal Services 40,680 39,038 32,990 0 0 1,960 1,960 30,000 7%
5340 Maintenance - Vehicle Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5345 Maintenance - Buildings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5350 Maintenance - Equipment 1,282 609 724 45 0 51 0 600 8%
5355 Maintenance - Grounds 0 0 463 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5360 Maintenance - Radios & Phones 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5365 Maintenance - Tires & Tubes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5370 Maintenance - Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5375 Medical Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Service District - Administration
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Administration FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 5,881 6,666 8,354 498 173 528 148 7,500 7%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 0 209 641 0 0 229 229 300 76%
5395 Miscellaneous 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5400 Office Supplies 2,494 2,413 4,010 1,772 402 1,204 401 3,000 40%
5410 Postage 766 882 1,084 196 98 188 94 1,000 19%
5415 Printing 99 341 95 12 12 0 0 300 0%
5420 Professional Services 1,144 27,071 55,958 15,139 14,434 3,122 2,432 42,500 7%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 288 493 986 400 0 64 14 1,000 6%
5435 Rent/Lease - Buildings 0 15 153 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equipment 38 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5455 Staff Development 139 3,494 958 10 0 123 123 4,000 3%
5470 Telephone 2,216 2,724 7,251 969 680 725 203 6,000 12%
5480 Travel/Lodging 0 595 647 0 0 0 0 1,000 0%
5486 Tuition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5490 Utilities - Water 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5492 Utilities - Electricity / Gas 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5625 Capital Equipment Expense 8,170 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Total services & supplies 261,790 193,990 201,509 38,147 22,559 31,031 17,385 199,540 16%

Salaries & benefits 169,350 213,675 246,365 65,911 23,354 78,005 17,753 264,000 30%
Total expenditures 431,140 407,666 447,873 104,059 45,912 109,036 35,138 463,540 24%
Total revenues 409,172 426,152 412,009 4,969 4,969 0 0 428,360 0%

Surplus/(deficit) ($21,968) $18,486 ($35,864) ($99,090) ($40,943) ($109,036) ($35,138) ($35,180)
Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Parks
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Parks FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

Revenues:
4110 Property Tax $585,103 $614,823 $610,863 $0 $0 $0 $0 $652,783 0%
4600 Other Income 3,670 4,302 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
4190 Parks/Field Use Fees 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

-%
Total revenues 588,773 619,226 610,863 $0 0 0 0 652,783 0%

Expenditures:
5000 Salaries - Permanent 149,653 163,043 175,305 66,467 9,920 19,085 6,743 154,000 12%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT funded 0 0 0 1,258 260 0 0 0 -%
5135 Health - Retired 0 0 7,885 0 0 23,797 2,147 26,000 92%
5130 Health & Dental Insurance 40,394 40,548 21,940 7,153 1,743 2,898 1,430 42,000 7%
5140 Vision Insurance 645 764 564 248 62 108 56 600 18%
5150 Retirement Benefits (active) 35,193 39,883 37,286 9,787 5,547 1,768 591 34,000 5%
5160 Workers' Compensation 1,650 1,977 2,471 1,236 0 1,545 0 2,900 53%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 2,346 2,408 2,567 986 148 283 97 3,200 9%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 1,643 1,628 1,302 0 0 0 0 1,800 0%

Salaries & benefits 231,524 250,252 249,319 87,134 17,681 49,484 11,065 264,500 19%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 0 0 169 0 0 0 0 0
5210 Agency Administration Fee 11,094 8,646 13,896 0 0 0 0 14,200 0%
5215 Agriculture 8,414 8,465 9,155 0 0 509 (0) 6,000 8%
5220 Audit & Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5221 Bank Charges 0 0 0 0 0 138 0 0 -%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 1,832 1,528 1,696 0 0 586 511 1,500 39%
5231 Computer Software 793 808 710 710 0 677 0 1,200 56%
5235 Temporary Help Contractual Service 40,426 46,237 104,085 19,544 11,285 18,793 8,348 40,000 47%
5240 Contractual Services - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5250 Director Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5260 EDC Department Agency 842 749 880 880 0 0 (1,247) 800 0%
5265 Educational Material 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 0%
5270 Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5275 Equipment-Minor/small 3,085 4,296 8,767 273 273 1,824 0 10,000 18%
5285 Fire & Safety Sup 333 139 842 0 0 548 433 400 137%
5300 Food 76 222 530 124 116 183 87 300 61%
5305 Fuel 5,139 6,596 5,543 0 0 0 0 11,000 0%
5310 Government Fees/Perm 6,746 5,576 8,856 0 0 1,514 (377) 8,000 19%
5315 Household Supplies 5,918 6,164 11,263 756 756 502 54 6,000 8%

Internet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5320 Insurance 18,966 20,476 18,116 18,116 0 16,273 0 17,400 94%
5335 Legal Services 0 1,540 4,064 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5345 Maintenance - Buildings 5,239 14,654 7,287 1,405 105 522 156 6,000 9%

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Parks
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Parks FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

5350 Maintenance - Equipment 11,317 33,573 17,089 5,007 749 1,617 1,211 12,000 13%
5355 Maintenance - Grounds 21,859 38,876 47,077 6,398 2,749 3,910 2,857 45,000 9%
5360 Maintenance - Radios & Phones 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5365 Maintenance - Tires & Tubes 27 0 1,689 0 0 514 0 0 -%
5370 Maintenance - Vehicles 6,556 5,580 12,863 6,380 2,174 1,290 1,290 10,000 13%
5375 Medical Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 0 60 108 108 108 55 0 500 11%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5395 Miscellaneous 1,950 0 44 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5400 Office Supplies 1,722 1,720 2,489 200 42 292 0 1,150 25%
5405 Pool Chemicals 37,036 30,297 37,930 17,937 750 16,991 2,424 27,129 63%
5410 Postage 6 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 -%
5415 Printing 81 87 176 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5420 Professional Services 10,366 22,425 25,745 4,391 3,842 778 627 14,000 6%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 0 162 710 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5430 Radios 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5435 Rent/Lease - Buildings 0 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equipment 1,098 1,312 771 0 0 0 0 1,000 0%
5455 Staff Development 240 0 205 235 205 80 0 1,500 5%
5470 Telephone 1,425 3,631 936 367 23 792 385 3,000 26%
5480 Travel/Lodging 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5490 Utilities - Water 26,963 26,310 27,229 6,774 6,669 0 28,000 24%
5492 Utilities - Electricity / Gas 38,339 37,925 41,524 17,501 7,377 17,474 31 40,000 44%
5500 Vandalism (36) 320 7,864 26 0 298 246 3,000 10%
5625 Capital Equipment 19,945 71,086 100,723 45 0 0 0 95,000 0%

Total services & supplies 287,794 399,521 521,032 107,177 30,554 92,834 17,041 404,779 23%

Salaries & benefits 231,524 250,252 249,319 87,134 17,681 49,484 11,065 264,500 19%
Total expenditures 519,317 649,773 770,352 194,311 48,235 142,317 28,105 669,279 21%
Total revenues 588,773 619,226 610,863 0 0 0 652,783 0%

Surplus/(deficit) $69,456 ($30,547) ($159,489) ($194,311) ($48,235) ($142,317) ($28,105) ($16,496)
Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Fire
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Fire FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

Revenues:
Property Tax $2,275,403 $2,390,981 $2,375,577 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,538,598 0%
JPA Reimbursement 989,719 1,063,792 1,026,240 0 0 0 0 1,075,523 0%
Grant Reimbursement 162,787 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
Fire Equipment Fund Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
Reimbursement Engines 4,280 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
Fire Engine Lease 45,950 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
Salary Savings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Total revenues 3,478,139 3,454,774 3,401,817 0 0 0 0 3,614,121 0%

Expenditures:
5000 Salaries - Permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT funded 5,572 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5135 Health - Retired 46,647 41,557 75,008 16,302 9,386 15,261 7,865 78,000 20%
5160 Workers' Compensation 935 1,120 1,400 700 0 875 0 1,800 49%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 426 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Salaries & benefits 53,634 42,677 76,408 17,002 9,386 16,136 7,865 79,800 20%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5210 Agency Administration Fee 43,145 33,625 54,039 0 0 0 0 55,000 0%
5215 Agriculture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5220 Audit & Accounting 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0 0 0 5,000 0%
5221 Bank Charges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 3,000 2,920 2,446 229 0 900 227 2,500 36%
5231 Computer Software 1,344 1,010 1,110 710 0 747 0 2,500 30%
5235 Contractual Services - Other 25,739 27,341 34,897 1,017 0 4,637 1,973 56,730 8%
5236 Contractual Services  - Provider 2,666,439 2,651,400 2,980,486 0 0 0 0 3,285,016 0%

Contractual Services - Salary Savings 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (300,000) 0%
5250 Director Comp 0 749 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5260 EDC Department Agency 842 0 880 880 0 1,247 0 800 156%
5265 Educational Material 57 0 2,136 2,136 2,136 0 0 0 -%
5270 Elections 0 2,041 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5275 Equipment-Minor/Small 1,954 1,561 1,394 57 36 104 77 2,000 5%
5285 Fire & Safety Supplies 3,000 18,318 1,812 129 129 418 98 1,500 28%
5295 Fire Turnouts 18,632 16,785 27,054 3,327 0 10,242 131 21,000 49%
5296 Fire-Volunteer/Resident 21,480 720 12,520 2,920 2,160 800 560 29,200 3%
5300 Food 1,582 53,635 539 134 0 0 0 1,000 0%
5305 Fuel 70,377 508 37,839 11,931 3,867 10,981 3,934 62,000 18%
5310 Government Fees/Perm 1,868 6,569 2,076 1,496 0 1,514 0 2,650 57%
5315 Household Supplies 6,660 26,276 9,047 991 460 1,021 109 6,000 17%
5320 Insurance 24,212 9,764 23,997 23,114 0 20,762 0 21,600 96%
5335 Legal Services 0 10,228 19,504 0 0 360 360 10,000 4%
5340 Maint.- Vehicle Supply 0 0 0 0 0 14 0
5345 Maintenance - Buildings 7,466 18,300 8,294 1,147 838 1,912 1,451 26,200 7%
5350 Maintenance - Equipment 16,806 2,876 18,060 4,027 3,209 4,802 4,802 25,000 19%
5355 Maintenance - Grounds 2,165 1,947 2,598 143 45 736 92 3,000 25%
5360 Maintenance - Radios & Phones 3,309 9,719 1,923 736 0 149 149 2,000 7%
5365 Maintenance - Tires & Tubes 7,158 20,385 10,605 161 161 2,206 2,206 12,000 18%
5370 Maintenance - Vehicles 20,985 0 19,546 4,456 3,115 0 (3,009) 20,000 0%

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Fire
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Fire FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

5375 Medical Supplies 0 863 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 962 0 674 0 0 0 0 850 0%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5395 Miscellaneous 4,327 3,550 53 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5400 Office Supplies 3,748 540 4,401 613 0 451 0 4,000 11%
5410 Postage 192 20 196 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5415 Printing 0 5,402 85 85 85 75 75 350 22%
5420 Professional Services 1,910 358 2,295 667 216 110 0 4,200 3%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 35 403 0 0 0 0 0 300 0%
5430 Radios 0 0 484 0 0 229 229 500 46%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equip 5,000 0 0 0 81 0 0 -%
5455 Staff Development 5,536 12,684 9,835 62 0 450 450 5,000 9%
5470 Telephone 15,086 25 11,916 1,891 722 2,351 990 15,000 16%
5480 Travel/Lodging 840 0 153 0 0 0 0 1,000 0%
5486 Tuition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5490 Utilities - Water 8,435 9,404 6,604 1,144 0 1,487 0 12,000 12%
5492 Utilities - Electricity / Gas 27,397 25,316 27,051 6,575 3,141 0 (6,495) 27,000 0%
5625 Capital Equipment 220,261 10,755 14,177 0 0 0 0 56,000 0%

Reserve for Capital Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
Fire Engine purchase and Fire Engine lease 45,950 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Total services & supplies 3,287,898 2,995,997 3,355,725 70,779 20,321 68,786 8,409 3,479,396 2%

Salaries & benefits 53,634 42,677 76,408 17,002 9,386 16,136 7,865 79,800 20%
Total expenditures 3,341,532 3,038,674 3,432,134 87,781 29,707 84,922 16,274 3,559,196 2%
Total revenues 3,478,139 3,454,774 3,401,817 0 0 0 0 3,614,121 0%

Surplus/(deficit) $136,608 $416,100 ($30,316) ($87,781) ($29,707) ($84,922) ($16,274) $54,925
Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund

Net Surplus/(deficit) $136,608 $416,100 ($30,316) ($87,781) ($29,707) ($84,922) ($16,274) $54,925

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Recreation
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Recreation FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

Revenues:
4110 Property Tax $162,529 $170,784 $169,684 $0 $0 $0 $0 $181,328 0%
4145 Youth Programs 6,937 12,968 8,378 3,010 1,479 1,678 1,027 5,434 31%
4146 Adult Programs 4,795 6,318 6,085 1,059 821 1,282 837 1,956 66%
4147 Youth Sports 32,157 41,733 46,979 11,619 7,225 10,666 6,086 26,420 40%
4148 Adult Sports 767 5,602 5,061 (35) 0 515 338 3,948 13%
4149 Sport Camp Revenues 12,149 9,196 18,634 1,706 450 8,630 2,813 10,386 83%
4170 Special Events 26,854 26,322 34,543 5,694 3,119 8,796 3,724 25,725 34%
4195 Special Event Rental 8,610 5,026 544 56 16 90 0 0 -%
4180 CP Lake Kiosk/Day Pass 28,780 29,652 28,591 15,320 1,449 26,942 6,766 33,600 80%
4181 CP Lake Season Pass 22,538 20,687 36,423 754 98 2,548 311 20,291 13%
4182 CP Lake Reservations 8,622 5,714 5,119 1,509 425 1,513 (60) 8,190 18%
4183 Summer Kids Camp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,183 0%
4184 CP Lake Concessions 8,782 5,540 5,327 2,141 0 2,579 0 8,000 32%
4190 Park/Field Use Fees 27,154 21,370 20,736 60 0 180 (200) 24,500 1%
4195 SpecEvent Park Rental 90 90
4255 Sponsorships 13,803 5,264 6,926 0 0 0 0 15,750 0%
4220 Summer Spectacular 50,942 51,331 34,039 0 0 0 0 55,000 0%
4255 Sponsorships Ads 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Brochure Ads 2,393 1,000 1,325 575 125 0 0 3,800 0%
4250 Donations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
4400 Reimbursement (vending) 1,273 329 176 176 0 0 0 2,500 0%

Total revenues 419,084 418,834 428,569 43,644 15,207 65,508 21,732 431,011 15%

Expenditures:
5000 Salaries - Permanent 64,307 49,965 76,788 16,252 6,308 17,054 3,829 84,000 20%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT funded 28,186 44,781 33,935 26,529 743 21,686 2,063 60,000 36%
5135 Health - Retired 0 0 0 0 0 21,772 0 0 -%
5130 Health & Dental Insurance 25,318 21,274 20,953 4,858 1,520 10,127 5,003 32,000 32%
5140 Vision Insurance 443 352 422 122 31 158 69 500 32%
5150 Retirement Benefits (active) 16,332 15,418 21,788 4,540 3,164 2,060 591 29,000 7%
5160 Workers' Compensation 990 1,186 1,483 741 0 1,545 618 1,800 86%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 3,049 3,624 3,552 2,233 137 1,865 202 5,600 33%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 2,605 3,156 3,906 0 0 0 0 3,600 0%

Salaries & benefits 141,229 139,757 162,827 55,276 11,902 76,267 12,374 216,500 35%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 29,847 30,964 34,094 9,749 849 9,314 427 30,000 31%
5000 Agency Admin 3,082 2,402 3,860 0 0 0 0 3,700 0%
5220 Audit & Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5221 Bank Charges 2,121 3,183 4,247 1,023 1,023 888 489 3,000 30%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 874 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5231 Computer Software 3,281 3,217 3,174 3,174 0 3,065 0 4,000 77%
5235 Contractual Services - Other 10,289 17,964 6,358 3,300 1,481 2,842 2,061 10,000 28%

Temporary Help Contractual Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5250 Director Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5260 EDC Department Agency 842 749 880 880 0 1,247 0 800 156%

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Recreation
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Recreation FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

5265 Educational Material 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5270 Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5275 Equipment-Minor/Small 0 997 460 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5282 Refund - Deposit 5,342 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5285 Fire & Safety Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5300 Food 2,457 3,140 1,615 42 13 389 239 2,100 19%
5305 Fuel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5310 Government Fees/Perm 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5315 Household Supplies 146 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5316 Instructors 17,208 23,244 25,799 5,565 1,371 4,237 364 16,500 26%
5320 Insurance 7,428 7,564 6,922 6,872 0 16,273 10,100 7,800 209%
5335 Legal Services 0 0 820 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5350 Maintenance - Equipment 1,726 717 542 109 0 145 40 1,500 10%
5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 248 248 185 185 0 185 0 228 81%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5395 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5400 Office Supplies 875 1,109 974 141 37 231 105 900 26%
5410 Postage 258 412 395 98 49 47 0 400 12%
5415 Printing 0 0 270 0 0 360 360 0 -%
5420 Professional Services 5,699 5,702 5,256 841 361 711 214 5,000 14%
5421 Program Supplies 11,593 9,866 12,875 3,231 2,820 3,697 733 7,250 51%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5431 Refund - Activity 1,095 0 (55) 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5435 Rent/Lease - Bldgs 91 920 800 0 0 0 0 900 0%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equip 0 0 172 0 0 118 118 200 59%
5455 Staff Development 309 481 60 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5470 Telephone 3,735 1,736 2,199 398 192 710 206 2,500 28%
5480 Travel/Lodging 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5625 Capital Equipment (8) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5466 Summer Spectacular 47,713 46,184 42,316 0 0 0 0 52,000 0%
5465 Special Events Expense 3,850 4,748 8,793 0 0 0 0 17,500 0%

Total services & supplies 160,100 165,546 163,009 35,606 8,196 44,458 15,456 167,278 27%

Salaries & benefits 141,229 139,757 162,827 55,276 11,902 76,267 12,374 216,500 35%
Total expenditures 301,329 305,303 325,836 90,882 20,097 120,725 27,830 383,778 31%
Total revenues 419,084 418,834 428,569 43,644 15,207 65,508 21,732 431,011 15%

Surplus/(deficit) $117,755 $113,532 $102,733 ($47,238) ($4,891) ($55,217) ($6,097) $47,233
Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Community Center
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Community Center FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

Revenues:
4145 CC Youth Programs $24,677 $30,647 $26,527 $4,935 $1,434 $4,875 $1,902 $20,297 24%
4146 CC Adult Programs 36,763 35,947 31,227 9,246 5,578 7,325 4,042 34,606 21%
4150 Pre-School Program 1,134 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
4151 Teen Center/Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
4170 CC Special Events/Concerts 0 7 (77) 0 0 0 0 0 -%
4153 Senior Program 1,426 6,085 8,099 961 453 2,536 1,687 5,250 48%
4183 Summer Kids Camp 49,160 54,058 61,053 17,639 0 30,915 2,215 42,000 74%
4184 CC Concessions 855 606 1,134 625 94 563 29 1,500 38%
4185 Community Center Rentals 45,100 46,449 67,794 27,078 20,119 15,045 9,233 38,588 39%
4186 Gym Use Fees/Programs 12,093 11,823 13,081 1,438 695 6,435 2,829 10,668 60%
4187 Community Center Pool 118,185 141,411 135,455 30,340 7,800 54,030 8,649 128,655 42%
4147 Youth Sports 38,059 39,682 39,936 1,290 320 7,431 3,475 52,243 14%
4148 Adult Sports 8,735 8,975 9,372 0 0 928 290 15,120 6%
4255 Sponsorships 0 37 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%

Total revenues 336,186 375,727 393,600 93,553 36,492 130,081 34,350 348,927 37%

Expenditures:
5000 Salaries - Permanent 9,481 8,221 19,009 0 0 1,843 0 37,000 5%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT funded 55,304 70,916 83,717 60,325           5,826 50,827 4,592 99,000 51%
5130 Health & Dental Insurance 4,344 4,165 3,751 995                332 5,354 697 15,000 36%
5140 Vision Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 0%
5150 Retirement Benefits (active) 3,109 3,191 9,210 2,628             945 553 170 4,500 12%
5160 Workers' Compensation 1,100 1,318 1,647 824                0 1,030 0 2,000 51%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 4,133 5,535 6,507 4,611             442 3,992 430 9,000 44%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 4,160 4,232 6,569 0 0 0 0 5,000 0%

Salaries & benefits 81,631 97,578 130,411 69,383 7,545 63,599 5,890 171,700 37%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 4,056 3,810 3,452 145                120 200 175 9,500 2%
5210 Agency Administration Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5215 Agriculture 640 1,510 225 75                  0 0 (39) 1,500 0%
5220 Audit & Accounting 0 0 0 0 0 0 (40) 0 -%
5221 Bank Charges 5,714 6,881 7,798 2,977 1,070 1,751 463 6,500 27%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 0 853 585 0 0 0 0 400 0%
5231 Computer Software 2,362 3,197 3,174 3,174             0 3,065 0 3,500 88%
5235 Temporary Help Contractual Service 121,421 133,666 82,154 23,819           12,868 11,054 5,017 91,720 12%
5240 Contract Services - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5250 Director Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5260 EDC Department Agency 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5265 Educational Material 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5270 Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5275 Equipment-Minor/Small 816 5,759 4,729 233                0 1,033 495 5,000 21%

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - Community Center
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY 
For the Year ended June 30, 2017; Compared to Prior Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014-2016 and the Annual Budget for FY 2016-17

YTD
Annual Actual

Actual Actual Actual YTD as of MTD as of YTD as of MTD as of Budget as % of
Community Center FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 9/30/2015 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 FY 2016-17 Budget

5285 Fire & Safety Supplies 1,048 145 665 0 0 83 83 1,000 8%
5290 Fire Prevention & Inspection 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5282 Refund - Deposit 12,438 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5300 Food 19 459 529 8                    0 236 224 300 79%
5310 Government Fees/Perm 2,928 3,252 4,460 146 146 98 98 4,500 2%
5315 Household Supplies 7,005 8,478 11,487 2,434             856 1,296 156 9,000 14%
5316 Instructors 50,019 64,975 60,231 11,553           1,064 9,439 3,454 44,200 21%
5320 Insurance 10,477 11,005 9,995 9,995             0 8,978 0 10,200 88%
5335 Legal Services 0 3,200 3,860 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5340 Maintenance - Buildings 14,289 7,382 13,488 2,440             296 259 (5,661) 12,000 2%
5350 Maintenance - Equipment 11,478 20,547 17,554 7,458             2,018 2,418 212 13,000 19%
5355 Maintenance - Grounds 7,615 1,519 3,535 2,633             0 220 2 2,500 9%
5360 Maintenance - Radio & Phones 288 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5370 Maintenance - Vehicles 27 0 315 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5375 Medical Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 0%
5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 6,020 1,460 340 340 340 0 0 5,200 0%
5395 Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5400 Office Supplies 698 2,927 1,313 302                0 243 105 1,800 14%
5405 Pool Chemicals 29,856 25,516 22,750 5,647             795 5,223 2,329 28,900 18%
5410 Postage 0 4 103 78                  0 0 0 0 -%
5415 Printing 1 160 0 0 0 0 0 200 0%
5420 Professional Services 4,198 4,974 11,675 1,174             394 953 226 8,000 12%
5421 Program Supplies 8,587 12,531 13,040 3,137             108 1,747 681 6,800 26%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5431 Refund - Activity 9,444 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5435 Rent/Lease - Bldgs 6,209 9,910 9,905 0 0 0 0 9,000 0%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equip 463 178 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5455 Staff Development 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500 0%
5470 Telephone 2,879 1,760 2,880 559                195 1,719 206 2,400 72%
5486 Tuition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -%
5490 Utilities - Water 10,709 10,164 13,069 3,386             0 3,996 0 15,750 25%
5492 Utilities - Electricity / Gas 61,083 80,614 78,325 17,031           380 17,873 9,549 78,300 23%
5500 Vandalism 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0%
5625 Capital Equipment 0 7,740 35,531 0 0 0 0 6,000 0%

Total services & supplies 392,786 434,876 417,169 98,743 20,650 71,882 17,734 379,370 19%

Salaries & benefits 81,631 97,578 130,411 69,383 7,545 63,599 5,890 171,700 37%
Total expenditures 474,416 532,454 547,579 168,126 28,195 135,481 23,624 551,070 25%
Total revenues 336,186 375,727 393,600 93,553 36,492 130,081 34,350 348,927 37%

Surplus/(deficit) (138,231) (156,727) (153,980) (74,573) 8,297 (5,400) 10,726 (202,143) 3%
Transfers In/(Out) of General Fund 0

Net Surplus/(deficit) ($138,231) ($156,727) ($153,980) ($74,573) $8,297 ($5,400) $10,726 ($202,143)

Cameron Park CSD Board Meeting - Oct. 19, 2016



Cameron Park Community Services District - General Fund

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY UNAUDITED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center
06/30/16     
Actual

FY 2015-16 
General Fund 

Budget 
Actual as % of 

Budget
Expenditures:

5000 Salaries - Permanent 147,709 0 175,305 76,788 19,009 418,810 435,340 96%
5010 Salaries - Seasonal/PT/Funded 17,472 0 0 33,935 83,717 135,124 166,687 81%
5135 Health - Retired 22,026 75,008 7,885 0 0 104,919 115,188 91%
5130 Health & Dental Insurance 16,404 0 21,940 20,953 3,751 63,048 102,591 61%
5140 Vision Insurance 304 0 564 422 0 1,275 1,478 86%
5150 Retirement Benefits (active) 36,154 0 37,286 21,788 9,210 104,438 83,122 126%
5160 Workers' Compensation 824 1,400 2,471 1,483 1,647 7,825 7,790 100%
5180 FICA/Medicare Contribution 3,234 0 2,567 3,552 6,507 15,859 19,312 82%
5190 UI/TT Contribution 2,239 0 1,302 3,906 6,569 14,016 11,338 124%

Total salaries and benefits 246,365 76,408 249,319 162,827 130,411 865,330 942,846 92%

5209 Advertising/Marketing 548 0 169 34,094 3,452 38,263 40,100 95%
5210 Agency Administration Fee 5,404 54,039 13,896 3,860 0 77,199 75,043 103%
5215 Agriculture 0 0 9,155 0 225 9,380 7,500 125%
5220 Audit & Accounting 20,445 5,000 0 0 0 25,445 25,000 102%
5221 Bank Charges 1,343 0 0 4,247 7,798 13,388 12,000 112%
5230 Clothing/Uniforms 0 2,446 1,696 0 585 4,728 4,400 107%
5231 Computer Software 2,723 1,110 710 3,174 3,174 10,891 12,700 86%
5240 Contractual Services - other 0 34,897 0 0 34,897 25,000 140%
5235 Contractual Services 37,065 0 104,085 6,358 82,154 229,662 129,220 178%
5236 Contractual Services - Provider 0 2,980,486 0 0 0 2,980,486 3,287,334 91%
5250 Directors Compensation 13,600 0 0 0 0 13,600 18,000 76%
5260 EDC Department Agency 1,760 880 880 880 0 4,399 3,200 137%
5265 Educational Material 0 2,136 0 0 0 2,136 800 267%
5270 Elections 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5275 Equipment-Minor/Small Tools 0 1,394 8,767 460 4,729 15,350 18,000 85%
5282 Deposit Refund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/0!
5285 Fire & Safety Supplies 0 1,812 842 0 665 3,319 2,900 114%
5290 Fire Prevention & Inspection 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,000 0%
5295 Fire Turnouts 0 27,054 0 0 0 27,054 0 #DIV/0!
5296 Fire-Volunteer/Resident 0 12,520 0 0 0 12,520 29,200 43%
5300 Food 1,395 539 530 1,615 529 4,609 6,100 76%
5305 Fuel 0 37,839 5,543 0 0 43,382 73,000 59%
5310 Government Fees/Permits 0 2,076 8,856 0 4,460 15,392 12,650 122%
5315 Household Supplies 17 9,047 11,263 0 11,487 31,815 20,000 159%
5316 Instructors 0 25,799 60,231 86,030 67,000 100%
5320 Insurance 2,874 23,997 18,116 6,922 9,995 61,904 73,000 87%
5335 Legal Services 32,990 19,504 4,064 820 3,860 61,238 30,000 164%

Prior Year: FY 2015-16 ACTUAL (UNAUDITED)



Cameron Park Community Services District - General Fund

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY UNAUDITED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center
06/30/16     
Actual

FY 2015-16 
General Fund 

Budget 
Actual as % of 

Budget

Prior Year: FY 2015-16 ACTUAL (UNAUDITED)

5345 Maintenance - Buildings 0 8,294 7,287 0 13,488 29,069 28,000 126%
5350 Maintenance - Equipment 724 18,060 17,089 542 17,554 53,969 50,500 112%
5355 Maintenance - Grounds 463 2,598 47,077 0 3,535 53,674 44,500 105%
5360 Maintenance - Radios & Phones 0 1,923 0 0 0 1,923 1,000 354%
5365 Maintenance - Tires & Tubes 0 10,605 1,689 0 0 12,294 10,000 144%
5370 Maintenance - Vehicles 0 19,546 12,863 0 315 32,724 25,000 140%
5375 Medical Supplies 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 0%
5380 Memberships & Subscriptions 8,354 674 108 185 0 9,321 8,575 62%
5385 Mileage Reimbursement 641 0 0 0 340 981 5,600 92%
5395 Miscellaneous 20 53 44 0 0 117 0 97%
5400 Office Supplies 4,010 4,401 2,489 974 1,313 13,187 10,350 89%



Cameron Park Community Services District - General Fund

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY UNAUDITED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center
06/30/16     
Actual

FY 2015-16 
General Fund 

Budget 
Actual as % of 

Budget

Prior Year: FY 2015-16 ACTUAL (UNAUDITED)

5405 Pool Chemicals 0 0 37,930 0 22,750 60,680 65,000 70%
5410 Postage 1,084 196 0 395 103 1,778 1,900 26%
5415 Printing 95 85 176 270 0 625 1,350 9%
5420 Professional Services 55,958 2,295 25,745 5,256 11,675 100,929 86,100 57%
5421 Program Supplies 0 0 0 12,875 13,040 25,914 24,100 139%
5425 Publications & Legal Notices 986 0 710 0 0 1,696 650 72%
5430 Radios 0 484 0 0 0 484 500 0%
5431 Refund-Activity 0 0 0 (55) 0 (55) 0 135%
5435 Rent/Lease - Buildings 153 0 0 800 9,905 10,858 8,500 84%
5440 Rent/Lease - Equipment 0 0 771 172 0 942 1,570 148%
5455 Staff Development 958 9,835 205 60 0 11,058 14,200 58%
5470 Telephone 7,251 11,916 936 2,199 2,880 25,181 25,300 88%
5480 Travel/Lodging 647 153 0 0 0 800 2,000 84%
5486 Tuition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A
5490 Utilities - Water 0 6,604 27,229 0 13,069 46,902 55,750 100%
5492 Utilities - Electricity / Gas 0 27,051 41,524 0 78,325 146,900 145,300 83%
5500 Vandalism 0 0 7,864 0 0 7,864 1,000 -1%
5466 Summer Spectacular 0 0 0 42,316 0 42,316 52,000 68%
5465 Special Events Expense 0 0 0 8,793 0 8,794 17,500 22%

Total services and supplies 201,509 3,341,548 420,310 163,009 381,638 4,508,014 4,679,592 97%

Revenues:
Property Tax 237,558 2,375,577 610,863 169,684 3,393,682 3,555,460 96%
Interest 503 503 7,500 90%
Recreation Program Revenue 204,110 177,270 381,380 306,719 132%
Administration Process Fees 7,500 7,500 7,000 0%
JPA Reimbursements 1,026,240 1,026,240 1,056,705 74%
Grant Reimbursement 0 0 0 0 0 102%
Facility Use Revenue 0 20,736 216,330 237,066 184,510 103%
Special Events 34,039 34,039 52,000 0%
Franchise Fees 160,367 160,367 160,000 81%
Other Income 6,082 0 6,082 0 no budget
Sponsorships 0 15,000 0%
Fire Engines Lease & Purchase 0 0 0 100%
Total revenues 412,009 3,401,817 610,863 428,569 393,600 5,246,858 5,344,894 92%

Expenditures:
Salaries and employee benefits 246,365 76,408 249,319 162,827 130,411 865,330 942,846 77%
Services and supplies 201,509 3,341,548 420,310 163,009 381,638 4,508,014 4,679,592 97%



Cameron Park Community Services District - General Fund

Statement of Revenues & Expenditures - PRELIMINARY UNAUDITED

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

General Fund: Administration Fire & JPA Parks Recreation
Community 

Center
06/30/16     
Actual

FY 2015-16 
General Fund 

Budget 
Actual as % of 

Budget

Prior Year: FY 2015-16 ACTUAL (UNAUDITED)

Capital Equipment 0 14,177 100,723 0 35,531 150,431 164,479 101%
Fire Engines Lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100%
Reserve for Capital Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
Total expenditures 447,874 3,432,134 770,352 325,836 547,579 5,523,774 5,786,917 94%

Excess (deficit) (35,865) (30,316) (159,489) 102,733 (153,980) (276,916) (442,023)
Contingency

Excess (deficit) (35,865) (30,316) (159,489) 102,733 (153,980) (276,916) (442,023)



Agenda Item #3b.















MARY E CAHILL
CAMERON PARK CSD
2502 COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE
CAMERON PARK CA  95682-7717

COPYRIGHT 2005 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       PAGE 1 OF 1

4246-0400-1779-9356

    $ .00

C/O U.S. BANCORP SERVICE CENTER, INC
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
P.O. BOX 6335
FARGO, ND 58125-6335

08-25 08-24 HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS 284 ROCKLIN CA 24231686238091032981185 5251       150.49
PUR ID: 03298118 TAX: 10.50

08-25 08-24 SQ *SHINGLE SPRINGS-CAMER CAMERON PARK CA24692166237000463815180 8699        15.00
PUR ID: 0001152921507361040568 TAX: 0.00

08-29 08-27 BAR*RACUDA T 408-3425400 CA 24436546241008228444491 7372        50.00
PUR ID: 1522913 TAX: 0.00

09-05 09-02 MSFT * E02002LVKT 800-642-7676 NV 24430996247091269030467 5045        77.80
PUR ID: 26903046 TAX: 0.00

09-05 09-03 ADOBE *CREATIVE CLOUD 800-833-6687 CA 24610436248004011387778 5734        49.99
PUR ID: 00000000000000000 TAX: 0.00

09-09 09-08 USA FOOTBALL 317-614-7750 IN 24492156252715566434257 8398     2,559.27
PUR ID: 56643425 TAX: 0.00

09-12 09-09 TOGOS - CAMERON PARK CAMERON PARK CA 74269796254500772561839 5814         8.06 CR
PUR ID: 00000009624 TAX: 0.00

09-12 09-09 TOGOS - CAMERON PARK CAMERON PARK CA 24269796254500772561750 5814       114.98
09-12 09-09 BR/TOGO'S #334769 Q35 CAMERON PARK CA 24431066254838000124947 5814        32.99
09-13 09-09 DOLLAR TREE GRANITE BAY CA 24445006257000393429519 5331        20.74

PUR ID: TAX: 1.44
09-21 09-20 COLINA DE ORO SHINGLE SPR SHINGLE SPRIN CA24013396264002754138414 5812        36.72

U.S BANCORP SERVICE CENTER
P. O. Box 6343
Fargo, ND 58125-6343

09-22-16

    $ 3,099.92

PREVIOUS BALANCE         $.00

PURCHASES &
OTHER CHARGES    $3,107.98

CASH ADVANCES         $.00

$ 0.00 CASH ADVANCE FEE         $.00

CREDITS        $8.06

CUSTOMER SERVICE CALL
4246-0400-1779-9356

We certify that all purchases listed on this statement, unless annotated to the contrary, are true, correct and for
official business only. Payment is authorized.
_________________________________________________   ________________________________________________
Cardholder                               Date                            Approver                                Date

POST TRAN
DATE DATE TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION REFERENCE NUMBER MCC AMOUNT

CAMERON PARK CSD

ACCOUNT NUMBER

STATEMENT DATE

TOTAL ACTIVITY

"MEMO STATEMENT ONLY"
DO NOT REMIT PAYMENT

SEND BILLING INQUIRIES TO: AMOUNT DUE

DO NOT REMIT

800-344-5696

$3,099.92

STATEMENT DATE DISPUTED AMOUNT

09-22-16

NEW ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Default AccountingCode:

ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT SUMMARY

TOTAL ACTIVITY

GENERAL MANAGER, CPCSD

000024101 01  AT  0.399  106481689315058 P

Agenda Item #3c.

CPCSD
Text Box

CPCSD
Text Box



 

2016-2017 Project Updates October 19, 2016 Page 1 of 4 

 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  Mary Cahill, General Manager  
 
AGENDA ITEM #5:  2016-2017 PROJECT UPDATES  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive and File  
  
BUDGET ACCOUNT:   N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT:  N/A   
 
Below are projects the district is currently working on, in addition to the projects described at the 
September Board of Directors’ meeting.   
 
Meeting with Camerado School 
Staff had a very productive meeting with Camerado School on October 6th.  Topics discussed 
included after-school classes at the CSD, enlisting teachers to teach the classes and working with the 
leadership class.  Discussion also included putting up parking signs asking school field users to park 
at school during special events. 
 
Gold County Regional Chapter 
The Gold Country Regional Chapter will be holding their quarterly workshop at the CSD on 
Wednesday, November 2nd.  It will feature speaker Dr. Evelyn Sheffield, professor at California State 
University, Sacramento and California State University, Chico.  She will discuss the challenges of 
hiring millenniums.   
 
Energy Audit 
Staff, along with an energy services company, are reviewing utility and energy usage at the 
parks and facilities.  This includes electric, water and propane/natural gas.  Staff is also looking 
ahead at potential amenities that could be included at the parks at a future date, such as 
lighting, sports courts (such as bocce ball and basketball) and funding mechanisms (such as 
grants, incentives and bond options).  When the internal research is completed, a presentation 
will come to the Board for review.  
 
Website  
Google Analytics –please Attachment A, a comparison of website statistics for September 2015 
and September 2016. 
 
 



 

2016-2017 Project Updates October 19, 2016 Page 2 of 4 

 

Parks and Recreation Survey 
There were 201 surveys completed and the survey asked the following: 
• What parks people most visited? 
• Comments on the facilities. 
• Why did they visit the parks? 
• Would you be interested in attending any of our Special Events, playing or participating in 

any of the following activities at our parks? (list provided) 
• What other activities/service would you like to see added to the parks? 
• Would you be interested in honoring a family member or loved on at one of our parks? 

(suggestions provided) 

Below is a summary of the three pertinent questions asked in the survey. 
 

 Which parks do you visit the most? 
 

 
  

CP Lake 
Aquatic 
Center 

Christa 
McAuliffe    

 

 
Rasmussen 

 
Gateway Hacienda 

 
Dave West 

Total 186 169 76 63 41 20 13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Would you be interested in attending any of the 
following activities at our parks? 



 

2016-2017 Project Updates October 19, 2016 Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 
Northview Trail 
The drainage for private properties has been mitigated as a part of the trail project.  The 
decomposed granite installation is in the process.  The weather will delay current installation 
although the project is planned for completion by the end of October.   
 
Tennis and Pickle Ball Courts at Cameron Park Lake 
Staff is continuing to get proposals for resurfacing.    
 
IT Review 
The District is undergoing an IT review for the Community Center, Cameron Park Lake and 
Fire Station 89.  Station 89 will be a priority as replacement and upgrades are needed at this 
facility.   
 
 

Why do you visit these parks? 
       

Reasons for visiting: 
          

Sports related 56 Dog Related 19 
 

"Sports" 17 "Dog" 10 
 

Football 7 dog park 7 
 

Baseball 7 Dog Event 2 
 

Soccer 7 State of Park related 16 
 

Tennis 7 Clean 10 
 

Sport event 4 Safe 4 
 

Pickleball 3 Bathroom 2 
 

Basketball 2 Family fun 27 
 

Swim Team 2 Kids 23 
 

Aquatic Center Related 68 Picnics 4 
 

Swim/swimming 38 Special Events, Classes, and Act 47 
 

"pool" 16 Events 29 
 

Water Polo 4 Activities 9 
 

Lap Swim 3 Classes/W 9 
 

Sharks/swimming 3 Walking/Running/Biking 31 
 

"aquatic" 2 Walking 17 
 

Aqua Sol 2 Trails 7 
 

Lake Related 46 Biking 5 
 

Lake 34 Running 2 
 

Fishing 6 
       

Lagoon 4 
       

Boating 2 
       



 

2016-2017 Project Updates October 19, 2016 Page 4 of 4 

 

Cameron Park Fire Department 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Tier 1 Projects 
Flooring/Reception area desk Station 88 – The reception desk will be designed and built by 
the cabinet shop at Growlersburg Conservation Camp. The cabinet shop also built the new 
EMS cabinets at station 89 that were part of FY 2015-16 CIP items. Staff are currently in the 
design process of the new desk, which was slowed due to fire season. This project should be 
started after the first of the year.  

Public Outreach Events 
• October is Fire Prevention month. Staff will be visiting Blue Oak School during the month of 

October for the yearly fire safety talks with the elementary school children. 

• Cameron Park Fire Department E-89 was on static display at the California Capital Airshow, 
October 1st and 2nd, along with various other CAL FIRE aircraft and equipment. An estimated 
60,000 people attended the event and the engine crew reported very good interactions with 
the public.  

 



  Attachment A 

Google Analytics on Website  October 19, 2016 

Summary of Google Analytics on the 
Cameron Park Community Services District Website 

 
The information below compares the month of September 2015 to September 2016. 

Item 2015 2016 Difference 
Sessions1 2,301 5,555  +141% 

Users2 1,790 4,158  +132% 
Pageviews3 3,019 11,287  +274% 

Pages/Session4 1.31 2.03  +55% 
Time Per Session5 00:00:55 00:01:37  +76% 

 

 

Below are the most visited web pages: 

 

 

                                                           
1 A “session” is defined as “a group of interactions that take place on the website within a given time frame.”  The 
session starts when a user enters the website and end when they leave.   
2 “Users” defines how many people came to the website.  Where sessions are created any time someone comes to 
the website, this number is unique to the number of people that came to the website and will not increase if 
someone comes multiple times.   
3 The number of pageviews represents the overall number of times pages on the website have been viewed during 
the chosen timeframe.  If a user navigates through a few pages during their time on the website, this number will 
increase every time they access a page. 
4 Pages/Session given an average representation of how many pages users visited during their time on the 
website.   
5 Time per session measures how long users spent on the website.   

1,170

859

484

329 313 273

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

Cameron Park
Lake

Special Events Country Fest Community
Center

Facility Rentals Aquatics

Pageviews



 

   
 

. Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  Mike Smith, Fire Battalion Chief  
 
AGENDA ITEM #6:  PUBLIC HEARING - SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016.10.19 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CAMERON PARK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FIRE 
DEPARTMENT ADOPTING THE 2016 EDITION OF THE 
CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive, Discuss and Provide Second Reading and Adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2016.10.19 Adopting the 2016 Edition of the 
California Fire Code with a Board Poll Vote  

  
BUDGET ACCOUNT: N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A   
 
A first reading of the ordinance was held at the regular Board of Directors’ meeting on September 17, 
2016.  The ordinance was posted for review and is now coming back tonight for a second reading 
and adoption. 
 
Attachment: 

Exhibit A – Ordinance No. 2016.10.19 
 



Ord.-2016.10.19 - Page  1 

 

 

ORDINANCE No.  2016.10.19 

AN ORDINANCE OF the Cameron Park Community Services District Fire Department 
“CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE” WITHIN Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department. Also known as the Cameron Park Community 

Service District Fire Department as FOLLOWS: 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department ADOPTING 
THE 2016 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE, BASED UPON THE 2015 EDITION  OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL  FIRE CODE, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE SAFEGUARDING OF LIFE AND 
PROPERTY FROM FIRE AND EXPLOSION HAZARDS ARISING FROM THE STORAGE, HANDLING AND 
USE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, MATERIALS AND DEVICES, AND FROM CONDITIONS HAZARDOUS 
TO LIFE OR PROPERTY IN THE OCCUPANCY OF BUILDINGS AND PREMISES IN THE Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND 
COLLECTION OF FEES THEREFORE; REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2013.12.18 OF THE Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department AND ALL OTHER ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF THE 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 

Be it ordained by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire 
Department, also known as the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department: 
 
Section 1: FINDINGS: 
Section 2: ADOPTION OF CODE: 
Section 3: CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE, AMENDMENTS:  
Section 4: ESTABLISHING LIMITS: 
Section 5: CONFLICT: 
Section 6: SEVERABILITY: 
Section 7: EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION: 
 
 
 

SECTION 1: FINDINGS: 
 

The Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department makes certain changes (listed below) 
to the California Fire Code, 2016 Edition, pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13869.7, 17958.7 and 18941.5 
during this code adoption process.  Such changes are necessary because of local climatic, geological and/or 
topographic conditions, as specified by the Matrix attached at the end of this ordinance.  The Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department has adopted, pursuant to Section 18941.5 of the California Health 
and Safety Code, the findings of facts relative to these conditions by Resolution #2016-14 of the Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department dated August 17, 2016. 



Ord.-2016.10.19 - Page  2 

 

 

These changes include amendments and additions to the California Fire Code in the following sections: 
111.4, 503.2, 503.2.1, 503.2.5, 503.2.6, 503.4.2 thru 503.4.5, 507.5.1, 604.1.2, 903.2, 903.2.a, 903.2.b, 
903.2.1, 903.2.C, 903.2.3, 903.2.4, 903.2.7, 903.2.9, 903.2.10, 907.2.a, 907.2.b, 907.2.c, 907.2.d, 5601.2, 
Table 6104.3 Footnote "d", 6112.1, 6112.2, 6112.3, 6113.1, 6113.2, Appendix B105.1, Table B105.1(1), 
B105.2, & Table 105.2.  These changes are itemized in SECTION 2:  ADOPTION OF CODE of this 
ordinance. 

 
These changes also include the following CA Fire Code Sections and Appendices not adopted by the 
California State Fire Marshal; 101.1 thru 101.5, 102.6 thru 102.8, 102.10 thru 102.12, 103.1 thru 104.1, 
104.3 thru 104.4, 104.6 thru 104.6.4, 104.8, thru 104.9.2, 104.10.1 thru 104.11.3, 105.2.3, 105.3.1 thru 
105.3.2, 105.6.10, 105.6.17 thru 105.6.19, 105.6.28, 105.6.29 thru 105.6.37, 1 0 5 . 6 . 3 9  t h r u  105.6.44 
105.7.17 thru 105.7.18, 106.1, 107.1 thru 108.3, 109.3.2 thru 109.4.1, 112.1, 113.1 thru 113.5, 113.6, 113.6.1, 
302, 303.1 thru 303.9, 305.1-305.5, 307.1, thru 307.5, 308.1 thru 308.4.1, 403.1, 403.5 thru 403.12, 503, 
Appendix D104.1 thru D104.3, D105.1 thru D105.4, D106.1, D107.1, D107.2, Appendix F and N, 
based on the 2015 edition of the International Fire Code as published by the International Code Council. 

 
 

SECTION 2:  ADOPTION OF CODE: 
 

That a certain document, three (3) copies of which are on file in the office of the Secretary of the Board of 
Directors of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department, being marked and designated as 
the California Fire Code, 2016 edition, in its entirety, wi th  the  fo l lowing amendments :  111.4, 503.2, 
503.2.1, 503.2.5, 503.2.6, 503.4.2 thru 503.4.5, 507.5.1, 604.1.2, 903.2, 903.2.a, 903.2.b, 903.2.1, 903.2.C, 
903.2.3, 903.2.4, 903.2.7, 903.2.9, 903.2.10, 907.2.a, 907.2.b, 907.2.c, 907.2.d, 5601.2, Table 6104.3 Footnote "d", 
6112.1, 6112.2, 6112.3, 6113.1, 6 1 1 3 . 2 ,  Appendix B105.1, Table B105.1(1), B105.2, & Table 105.2; and the 
following CA Fire Code Sections and Appendices not adopted by the California State Fire Marshal: 101.1 thru 101.5, 
102.6 thru 102.8, 102.10 thru 102.12, 103.1 thru 104.1, 104.3 thru 104.4, 104.6 thru 104.6.4, 104.8, thru 104.9.2, 
104.10.1 thru 104.11.3, 105.2.3, 105.3.1 thru 105.3.2, 105.6.10, 105.6.17 thru 105.6.19, 105.6.28, 105.6.29 thru 
105.6.37, 1 0 5 . 6 . 3 9  t h r u  105.6.44 105.7.17 thru 105.7.18, 106.1, 107.1 thru 108.3, 109.3.2 thru 109.4.1, 112.1, 
113.1 thru 113.5, 113.6, 113.6.1, 302, 303.1-303.9, 305.1-305.5, 307.1, thru 307.5, 308.1 thru 308.4.1, 403.1, 403.5 
thru 403.12, 503, Appendix D104.1 thru D104.3, D105.1 thru D105.4, D106.1, D107.1, D107.2, Appendix 
F and N, based on the 2015 edition of the International Fire Code as published by the International Code Council and 
the 2016 California Fire Code, be and is hereby adopted as the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department, in the State of California regulating and governing the safeguarding of life and 
property from fire and explosion hazards arising from the storage, handling and use of hazardous substances, 
materials and devices, and from conditions hazardous to life or property in the occupancy of buildings and premises 
as herein provided; providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees therefore; and each and all of the 
regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions and terms of said Fire Code on file in the office of the Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department are hereby referred to, adopted, and made a part hereof, as if fully 
set out in this ordinance, with the additions, insertions, deletions and changes, if any, prescribed in Section 3 of this 
ordinance. 

 
 
 

SECTION 3:  CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE, AMENDMENTS: 

The following Sections are hereby amended or added: 

California Fire Code, Chapter 1 Amendments - Scope and Administration: 

Section 105 - Permits  
 

Section 105.6.28 of Chapter 1 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  3 
 

105.6.28 - LP Gas. An operational permit is required for: 
 

1.  Storage and use of LP-gas. 
 

Exception:  A permit is not required for individual containers with 500 100-gal lon water 
capacity or less or multiple container systems having an aggregate quantity not 
exceeding 500 251 gallons serving occupancies in Group R-3. 

 
Section 109 - Violations 

 
Section 109.4 of Chapter 1 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 

 
Section 109.4 Violation penalties.  Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in 
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a permit 
or certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a 
fine of not more than $1000.00 and/or by imprisonment not exceeding 6 months, or both such fine 
and imprisonment.  Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall be 
deemed a separate offense. (Health & Safety Code Section 13145 and 17995). 

 
Section 111 -  Stop Work Order 

 
Section 111.4 of Chapter 1 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 

 
111.4. Failure to comply.  Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with a 
stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or 
unsafe condition, shall be liable to a fine of not less than $500 or not more than $1,000.  (Health & 
Safety Code Section 13145 and 17995). 

 
Section 113 – Fees 

 
Sections 113.6 and 113.6.1 of Chapter 1 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department are added to read as follows: 

 
113.6 Permit, Plan Review and Inspection Fees.  A schedule of fees adopted by the Fire 
District Board of Directors for Plan Review, Inspections and the issuance of Permits by the Fire 
District may be found in the most current Cameron Park Community Service District Fire 
Department fee schedule (Health & Safety Code 17951). 
  

113.6.1 Cost Recovery Fees.  Fire service fees may be charged to any person, finn, 
corporation or business that through negligence, violation of the law, or as a result of 
carelessness, is responsible for the cause of the Fire District to respond to the scene of an 
incident.  A district board may charge a fee to cover the cost of any service which the district 
provides or the cost of enforcing any regulation for which the fee is charged. (Health and 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  4 
 

Safety Code 13916).  The fee shall not exceed the actual cost of suppressing the fire and/or 
responding to the scene of an incident. 

 
 

California Fire Code, Chapter 5 Amendments - Fire Service Features 
 

Section 503 - Fire Apparatus Access Roads 
 

Section 503 of the CA Fire Code is adopted in its entirety as part of the Fire Code of the Cameron 
Park Community Service District Fire Department.  Only the additions or amendments to Section 503 
are listed below: 

 
503.2 Specifications.  All fire apparatus access roads shall be installed and arranged in accordance 
with Sections 503.2.1 through 503 .2.8. 

 
[California Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 1, §3.05(a)} Fire Department Access and 
Egress. (Roads) 

  
(a) Roads. Required access roads from every building to a public street shall be all-weather hard- 
surfaced (suitable for use by fire apparatus) right-of-way not less than 20 feet (6096 mm) in width. 
Such right-of-way shall be unobstructed and maintained only as access to the public street. 

 
Exception: The enforcing agency may waive or modify this requirement if in his 
opinion such all-weather hard surfaced condition is not necessary in the interest of 
public safety and welfare. 

 
503.2.1 Dimensions.  For one and two family dwelling units (R3) applications, fire apparatus 
access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 20 feet plus one-foot shoulder 
on each side, except for approved security gates in accordance with Section 503.6, and an 
unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 15 feet.  

 
For applications other than (R3), fire apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width 
of not less than 20 feet, plus one-foot shoulder on each side, except for approved security 
gates in accordance with Section 503.6, and an unobstructed vertical clearance of not less 
than 15 feet or as approved by the fire code official. 

 
All Driveways, as defined by Title 14 SRA Fire Safe Regulations, shall be not less than 12 
feet wide. 

 
503.2.5 Dead ends.  For one and two family dwelling units (R3) applications, dead-end fire 
apparatus access roads shall comply with Title 14 SRA Fire Safe Regulations and shall have a 
turnaround constructed at its terminus. 

 
For applications other than (R3), dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 
feet (45 720 mm) in length shall be provided with an approved area for turning around 
fire apparatus. 

 
503.2.6 Bridges and elevated surfaces.  Where a bridge or an elevated surface is part of 
a fire apparatus access road, the bridge shall be constructed and maintained in accordance 
with the current El Dorado County Transportation Division bridge standard.  Bridges and 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  5 
 

) 

elevated surfaces shall be designed for a live load sufficient to carry the imposed loads of 
fire apparatus.  Vehicle load limits shall be posted at both entrances to bridges when 
required by the fire code official.  Where elevated surfaces designed for emergency 
vehicle use are adjacent to surfaces which are not designed for such use, approved 
barriers, approved signs or both shall be installed and maintained when required by the 
fire code official. 

 
503.4.2 Fire Apparatus Access Gates.  Fire Apparatus Access Road Gates shall meet the 
standards identified in the Fire Department's Gate Standard. 

 
Section 503.4.3 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
503.4.3 Roads from 20 to 29 feet in width.  Fire apparatus access roads, 20 to 29 feet wide, 
shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane, with no parking allowed on either side of the 
roadway. 

 
Section 503.4.4 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
503.4.4 Roads from 30 to 35 feet in width.  Fire apparatus access roads, 30 to 35 feet 
wide, shall be posted on one side as No Parking, Fire Lane, with parking allowed only on 
the opposite side of the roadway. 

 
Section 503.4.5 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
503.4.5 Roads 36 feet and greater in width.  Fire apparatus access roads, 36 feet 
and greater in width, may allow parking on both sides of the roadway. 

 
 

The Following Sections of the California Fire Code, Appendix D - Fire Apparatus Access Roads are 
adopted and amended to read as part of Chapter 5 as follows: 

 
Section D104 -  Commercial and Industrial Developments 

 
D104.1 Buildings exceeding three stories or 30 feet in height. Buildings or facilities exceeding 30 
feet or three stories in height shall have at least two means of fire apparatus access for each structure. 

 
D104.2 Buildings exceeding 62,000 square feet in area. Buildings or facilities having a gross 
building area of more than 62,000 square feet shall be provided with two separate and 
approved fire apparatus access roads. 

 
D104.3 Remoteness. Where two access roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart 
equal to not less than one half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the 
property or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses. 

 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  6 
 

Exception: Fire apparatus roads cannot be installed because of location on property, 
topography, waterways, nonnegotiable grades or similar condition, and an approved 
alternative means of fire protection is provided. 

 
Section D105 - Aerial Fire Apparatus Access Roads 

 
D105.1 Where required. Buildings or portions of buildings or facilities exceeding 30 feet in height 
above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access shall be provided with approved 
fire apparatus access roads capable of accommodating fire department aerial apparatus.  Overhead 
utility and power lines shall not be located within the aerial fire apparatus access roadway. 

 
D105.2 Width. Aerial fire apparatus access roads shall have a minimum unobstructed width of 26 
feet, exclusive of shoulders, in the immediate vicinity of any building or portion of building more 
than 30 feet in height. 

 
D105.3 Proximity to building. At least one of the required access routes meeting this condition 
shall be located within a minimum of 15 feet and a maximum of 30 feet from the building, and 
shall be positioned parallel to one entire side of the building. 

 
D105.4 Obstructions. Overhead utility and power lines shall not be located over the aerial fire 
apparatus access road or between the aerial fire apparatus road and the building.  Other obstructions 
shall be permitted to be placed with the approval of the fire code official. 

 
Section D106 -  Multiple-Family Residential Developments 

 
D106.1 Projects having more than 100 dwelling units. Multiple- family residential projects 
having more than 100 dwelling units shall be equipped throughout with two separate and approved 
fire apparatus access roads. 

 
Section D107 - One- or Two-Family Residential Developments 

 
D107.1 One- or two-family dwelling residential developments. Developments of one- or two- 
family dwellings shall be provided with separate and approved fire apparatus access roads and shall 
meet the requirements of D107.2 Remoteness, when required by the Fire Chief. 

 
 Section 507 - Fire Protection Water Supplies 

 
Sections 507.5.1 of Chapter 5 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department are amended to read as follows: 

 
Section 507.5.1 Where required. Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter constructed 
or moved into or within the jurisdiction is more the 400 150 feet from a hydrant on a fire apparatus 
access road, as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on-site 
fire hydrants and mains shall be provided where required by the fire code official. 

 
Exception:  For Group R-3 and Group U occupancies, equipped throughout with an 
approved automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903.1, the 
distance requirement shall be not more than 600 feet (183m). 

 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

California Fire Code, Chapter 6 Amendments - Building Services and System 
 

Section 604 - Emergency and Standby Power Systems 
 

Sections 604.1.2 of Chapter 6 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department are amended to read as follows: 

 
Section 604.1.2 Installations.  Emergency po wer  sys t e ms  and standby power systems shall be 
installed in accordance with this code, NFPA 110 and NFPA 111. All buildings, other than one- and 
two-family dwelling units, and agricultural buildings not used for commercial purpose, with stand-
by power shall have a shunt trip device that disconnects all power sources to the building, approved 
by the Fire Code Official.  Existing installations shall be maintained in accordance with the original 
approval. 

 
California Fire Code, Chapter 9 Amendments - Fire Protection Systems 

 
Section 903 -Automatic Sprinkler Systems 

 
Section 903.2 of Chapter 9 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 

 
903.2 Where required.  Approved, NFPA 13 automatic sprinkler system shall be required 
and installed in all buildings or structures, greater than 3600 square feet, when constructed or 
relocated within the jurisdiction. 

 
Exceptions: 

 
1.  One- and two-family dwelling units (R-3 Occupancies). (See Section R313 of the 
2016 CA Residential Code that requires all one and two family dwellings to be 
equipped with an NFPA 13D sprinkler system) 

 
2. Agricultural buildings, except any agricultural building which is used for commercial 
purposes (e.g. retails sales, food service, and/or special events) 

 
Sections 903.2.a and 903.2.b of Chapter 9 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department are added to read as follows: 

 
903.2.a Status of existing buildings greater than 3,600 square feet.  In existing buildings 
3600 square feet or greater, other than one- and two-family dwelling units, and agricultural 
buildings not under Special Use Permit for commercial purposes, where the floor area of the 
building or structure is increased by an addition of more than thirty percent (30%) or 1,000 
square feet, whichever is less, such building or structure shall be made to conform to Section 
903.2. 

 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  8 
 

903.2.b Status of existing buildings less than 3,600 square feet. In existing buildings 
3,600 square feet or less, other than one-and two-family dwelling units, and agricultural 
buildings not under Special Use Permit for commercial purposes, where the floor area of the 
building or structure is increased to a total square footage over 3,600 square feet, by an 
addition of more than thirty percent (30%) or 1,000 square feet, whichever is less, such 
building or structure shall be made to conform to Section 903.2. 

 
The following sections are amended by changing California Fire Code requirements to 3,600 square feet 
for fire sprinkler installation, as follows (the complete text of the section is not provided): 
 
  903.2.1  Group A  All Group A - 3,600 square feet or greater 
  903.2.c  Group B  All Group B - 3,600 square feet or greater 
  903.2.3  Group E  All Group E - 3,600 square feet or greater 
  903.2.4  Group F  All Group F - 3,600 square feet or greater 

*2,500 square feet or greater for manufacturing of 
mattresses and upholstered furniture 

  903.2.7  Group M  All Group M - 3,600 square feet or greater 
  903.2.9  Group S-1   All Group S-1 - 3,600 square feet or greater 

*2,500 square feet for storage of mattresses and 
upholstered furniture 

  903.2.10 Group S-2  All group S-2 - 3,600 square feet or greater 
 

Section 907 - Fire Alarm and Detection Systems 
 

Sections 907.2.a, 907.2.b and 907.2.c, 907.2.d of Chapter 9 of the Fire Code of the Cameron 
Park Community Service District Fire Department are added to read as follows: 

 
907.2.a An approved fire alarm/detection system shall be installed in all buildings with a 
floor area less than 3,600 square feet. 

 
Exceptions: 

 
1. One and two family dwellings (R-3 Occupancies and other occupancies classified as 
“U”). 

 
2. Agricultural buildings, except any agricultural building which is used for commercial 
purposes (e.g. retails sales, food service, and/or special events). 

 
3. Buildings with a floor area less than 500 square feet may be exempt, as determined 
by the Fire Chief, based on building construction material and features, location, 
occupancy type, and distance to exposures. 

 
907.2.b Status of existing buildings.  In existing buildings without an approved automatic 
sprinkler system, other than one- or two-family dwelling units, agricultural building not under 
Special Use permit for commercial purposes where a fire alarm detection system does not 
exist and the floor area of the building or structure is increased or modified by more than 
thirty percent (30%) or 1,000 square feet, whichever is less, such building or structure shall 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  9 
 

be made to conform to Section 907 when required by the Fire Chief.  Buildings with a floor 
area less than 500 square feet may be exempt, as determined by the Fire Chief, based on 
building construction materials and features, location, occupancy type, and distance to 
exposures. 

 
907.2.c Monitoring.  All fire alarm detection systems shall be connected directly through 
and monitored by a U.L. approved central, proprietary or remote station service, which 
gives audible and visual signals at a constantly attended location. All sprinklered buildings 
shall be monitored. 

 
907.2.d Type I Hood Installations.  The requirement of installation, or replacement, of a 
Type I Hood System shall require a monitoring fire alarm system to be installed, or for the 
hood system to be connected to an existing Fire Alarm system for that building. 

 
 
California Fire Code, Chapter 56 Amendments - Explosives and Fireworks 

 
Section 5601.2  is amended as follows:   Permits required. 

 
Section 5601.2 of Chapter 56 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 

 
5601.2 - Permits required.  Permits shall be required as set forth in Section 105.6 and 
regulated in accordance with this section. Where explosives permits are required, they shall be 
issued by the Fire Chief,  or his/her representative, and the El Dorado County Sheriff's 
Department.  Where fireworks permits are required, they shall be issued by the Fire Chief and the El 
Dorado County Board of Supervisors. 

 
California Fire Code, Chapter 61 Amendments - Liquefied Petroleum Gases 

 
Table 6104.3 Footnote "d" of Chapter 61 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 

Service District Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 
 

6104.3 Footnote "d"-  500 gallons 251 gallons.  Installation of DOT tanks, with setbacks from 
structures less than 10 feet, must be approved by the Fire AHJ. 

 
Section 6112 is added as follows: High Elevation Liquefied Petroleum Gas Installations (4,000' and 
Above). 

 
Section 6112 of Chapter 61 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire 
Department is added to read as follows: 

 
6112.1 Regulators. Two-stage regulator system shall be installed in accordance with 
manufacturer requirements. 
 

1. Two stage regulator systems shall be installed on all LPG installations. 
2. The first stage regulator shall be installed under the hinged gauge cover supplied 

with the tank.  The atmospheric pressure aperture of the regulator shall be pointed 
downward.  The first stage regulator shall be plumbed to the riser of the yard 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  10 
 

piping with soft copper tubing to allow flexibility should tank shifting occur.  The 
riser from the yard piping shall be located not more than 3 inches (horizontally) 
from the walls of the tank. 

3. The second stage regulator and riser pipe shall be installed under the eave of the 
building, as close as practicable to the building wall.  This riser shall be securely 
supported/braced to the wall approximately 10 inches below the regulator so as to 
prevent bending of the pipe by lateral snow/ice loads. 

4. A protective cover, approved by the gas supplier and Building Official, shall be 
installed over the second stage regulator and securely supported to the ground or 
diagonally to the wall. 

5. The riser pipes for the yard piping shall not be imbedded in concrete.  Concrete 
placed around such riser shall be held back at least 1 inch from all sides of the 
pipe. 

6. At the time of application for any building permit, which involves the installation 
of a LPG system, the applicant shall submit a LPG system plot plan in 3 copies (or 
digitally as PDF).  The LPG plot plan shall include, but not be limited to, the tank 
location, proposed tank capacity in U.S. gallons, route of yard piping, location of 
the riser pipe at the building, property boundaries, an outline of all 
existing/proposed buildings on the lot and a depiction of the ridge line of any 
building to be supplied with LPG.  This shall also be forwarded to the appropriate 
fire district to serve as a locator map in event of an emergency. 

7. Location of the centerline of LPG tanks shall be permanently marked by the use of 
snow stakes, one at each end.  Such stakes shall be of sufficient height to be 
visible through anticipated maximum snow depth at the respective location.  
Installation and maintenance of these snow stakes is the responsibility of the LPG 
user. 

8. Propane appliances and accessories shall not be permitted in any new installation 
below the first floor or below grade, whichever is more restrictive. 

 
Section 6112.2 of Chapter 61 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
6112.2 Vertical Riser Piping. 

1. Minimum of Schedule 80 - iron piping. 
2. Riser shall be within 3 inches horizontally of the tank. 
3. Swing joints shall be installed above and below tank level to provide for the tank 
movement. (Street elbows shall not be used.) 
4. A listed flexible riser constructed of copper or stainless steel tubing and protected by a 
steel covered sheathed material may be used instead of swing joints. The flexible alternative 
shall provide sufficient slack to allow for tank movement. 

 
Section 6112.4  of Chapter 61of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
6112.3 Marking and Locations. 

1. An approved sign shall be located directly above the riser shut off valve on the building 
in a visible location. 
2. The liquefied petroleum gas supplier shall affix a weatherproof identification tag to the 
inside of the tank valve protecting cover.  This tag shall contain the supplier's name and 
emergency telephone number. 
3. Tank installation shall be permanently marked by a metal or wood material snow 
marker, with a minimum dimension of 2 inches by 2 inches.  The snow marker shall be of 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  11 
 

sufficient height to rise above the annual snow depth and shall be a minimum of 10 feet in 
height.  The snow markers shall be painted yellow and located on opposite ends of the 
tank. 

 
Section 6113 of Chapter 61 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
Section 6113.1 & 6113.2  of Chapter 61 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department is added to read as follows: 

 
6113.1 Permits and Plans. Permits shall be required and plans shall be   
submitted for all underground tank installations and approved by the Fire 
AHJ. 

 
6113.2 Underground LPG Tank Ownership. Underground LPG tanks shall be 
prohibited from being sold to end-users and shall be retained by the LPG 
company under a lease-type system to ensure proper annual maintenance 
requirements are met and recorded. 

 
 

Appendix B - Fire Flow Requirements for Buildings 
 

Appendix B is adopted in its entirety, with the following amendments below: 

Section B105.1,  Table  B105.1(1)  of Appendix B of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park 
Community Service District Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 

 
Table B105.1(1) – Required Fire-Flow for One- and two- family dwellings, Group R-3 and R-4 
buildings and townhouses: 
 

FIRE-FLOW 

CALCULATION 
AREA 

(square feet) 

AUTOMATIC 
SPRINKLER 

SYSTEM 

(Design 
Standard) 

MINIMUM 
FIRE-FLOW 

(gallons per 
minute) 

FLOW 
DURATION 

(hours) 

0 – 3,600 No automatic 
sprinkler system 

1,000 1 

3,601 and greater No automatic 
sprinkler system 

Value in Table 
B105.1(2) 

Duration in 
Table B105.1(2) 
at the required 

fire-flow 
rate (min. 2 

hours) 

0 – 3,600 Section 903.3.1.3 of 
the CA Fire Code 

or Section 313.3 of 
the CA Residential 

Code 

500 

1,000 

½ 

1 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  12 
 

3,601 and greater Section 903.3.1.3 of 
the CA Fire Code 

or Section 313.3 of 
the CA Residential 

Code 

1/2 value of 
Table 

B105.1(2) (min. 
1500 GPM) 

1 

2 

Table B105.2 of Appendix B of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department is amended to read as follows: 

 
Table B105.2 - Buildings other than one- and two- family dwellings, Group R-3 and R-4 buildings 
and townhouses: 

 
AUTOMATIC 

SPRINKLER SYSTEM 

(Design Standard) 

MINIMUM FIRE-FLOW 

(gallons per minute) 

FLOW DURATION 

(hours) 

No automatic sprinkler 
system 

Value in Table B105.1(2) Duration in Table B105.1(2) 

Section 903.3.1.3 of the CA 
Fire Code  

25% 50% of the value in Table 
B105.1(2) * (min.1500 GPM) 

Duration in Table B105.1(2) 
at the reduced flow rate 

Section 903.3.1.3 of the CA 
Fire Code  

25% 50% of the value in Table 
B105.1(2) * 

Duration in Table B105.1(2) 
at the reduced flow rate 

  *No footnotes adopted 
 

SECTION 4.  ESTABLISHING LIMITS: 
 

That the geographic limits referred to in certain sections of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department are hereby established as follows: 

 
Sections 5704.2.9.6.1- Geographic limits in which flammable or combustible liquids in above- 
ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited: 

 
The limits, referred to in Sections 5704.2.9.6.1 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department in which the storage of Class I flammable liquids or Class II 
combustible liquids in above- ground tanks outside of buildings is restricted, are hereby established as 
the limits of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department, County of El 
Dorado. 

 
The storage of Class I flammable liquids or Class II combustible liquids in above-ground tanks outside of 
buildings is allowed in an AHJ approved Commercial, Industrial Zone with a Special/Conditional Use 
Permit issued by the County of El Dorado. 

 
Sections 5706.2.4.4 - Geographic limits in which flammable or combustible liquids in above- 
ground tanks is prohibited: 

 
The limits, referred to in Sections 5706.2.4.4 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department in which the storage of Class I flammable liquids or Class II 
combustible liquids in above- ground tanks is restricted, are hereby established as the limits of the 
Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department, County of El Dorado. 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  13 
 

 
The storage of Class I flammable liquids or Class II combustible liquids in above-ground tanks 
is allowed in an AHJ approved Commercial, Industrial Zone with a Special/Conditional Use 
Permit issued by the County of El Dorado. 

 
Section 5806.2- Geographic limits in which storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in stationary 
containers is prohibited: 

 
The limits referred to in Section 5806.2 of the Fire Code of the Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department in which storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in stationary containers is 
prohibited are hereby established as the limits of the Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department, County of El Dorado. 

 
The storage of flammable cryogenic fluids in stationary containers is allowed in an AHJ approved 
Commercial, Industrial Zone with a Special/Conditional Use Permit issued by the County of El 
Dorado. 

 
Section 6104.2 - Geographic limits in which storage of liquefied petroleum gases is to be restricted 
for the protection of heavily populated and congested areas: 

 
The limits, referred to in Section 6104.2 of the California Fire Code, in which storage of liquefied 
petroleum gas in excess of an aggregate of 2,000-gallon water capacity is restricted, are hereby 
established as limits of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department, County 
of El Dorado. 

 
1.  The storage of liquefied petroleum gas in excess of an aggregate of 2,000- gallon water capacity when 
located at least one-half (1/2) mile from property zoned or designated for residential use and at least one-
half (1/2) mile from existing residential development with a density greater than one (1) dwelling unit per 
acre and at least one-half (1/2) mile from any hotel or motel is allowed when AHJ approved and a 
Special/Conditional Use Permit is issued by the County of El Dorado. 

 
2.   Dispensing within established limits.  Within the limits established by law restricting the dispersion of 
liquefied petroleum gas for the protection of heavily populated or congested areas, the aggregate capacity of 
any one installation shall not exceed a water capacity of 2,000 gallons.  The dispensing of liquefied 
petroleum gas in excess of an aggregate of 2,000- g a l l o n  water capacity when located 
at least one-half (1/2) mile from property zoned or designated for residential use and at least one- half 
(112) mile from existing residential development with a density greater than one (1) dwelling unit per acre 
and at least one-half (1/2) mile from any hotel or motel is allowed when AHJ approved and a 
Special/Conditional Use Permit is issued by the County of El Dorado. 

 
SECTION 5:  CONFLICT 

 
That Ordinance No. 2016.10.19 of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department, and 
all other ordinances or parts of ordinances herewith are hereby repealed. 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Ord.- 2016.10.19 - Page  14 
 

SECTION 6:  SEVERABILITY 
 

If any Ordinance, article, subsection or subdivision thereof, provision, sentence, clause or phrase of this code, or 
any application thereof, is for any reason held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this code, which can be given effect without the invalid portions and, 
therefore, such invalid portions are declared to be severable. The Cameron Park Community Service District 
Fire Department hereby declares that it would have enacted this Ordinance and each of its articles, sections, 
subsections, or subdivisions thereof, provisions, sentences, clauses or phrases irrespective of the fact that one or 
more of them is declared invalid. 
 

SECTION 7:  EFFECTIVE DATE AND PUBLICATION: 
 
 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.  The Cameron Park Community Service 
District Fire Department Board Secretary is directed to publish this ordinance in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the District.  In lieu of publication of the full text of the ordinance, a summary of the ordinance may be 
published by the by the Board Secretary within fifteen (15) days after its passage and a certified copy shall be posted 
in the office of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire Department, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 36933(c) (1). 

 
The above Ordinance was introduced at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park Community 
Service District Fire Department on the September 21st 2016 and it was then read for the first time.  The 
Ordinance was read for the second time on the October 19th, 2016 and approved by the following vote: 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Cameron Park Community Service District Fire 
Department this, 19th day of October, 2016. 

 
AYES:    

 
NOES:    

 
ABSENT:    

 
 

ABSTAIN:    
 
          ATTEST: 
  
 
 
_______________________________________       ____________________________ 
Director Greg Stanton, President      Mary Cahill 
Board of Directors        Secretary to the Board of Directors 



 2016 CFC Findings of Fact Matrix
2016 CFC Amended Code Section Adopted Adopted as Amended Finding 

111.4 X Admin

503.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

503.2.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

503.2.5 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

503.2.6 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

503.4.2 through 503.4.5 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

507.5.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

604.1.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.a X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.b X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.c X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.3 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.4 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.7 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.9 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

903.2.10 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

907.2.a X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

907.2.b X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

907.2.c X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

907.2.d X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

5601.2 X Geological/Topographical

Table 6104.3 Footnote "d" X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

6112.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

6112.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

6112.3 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

6113.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

6113.2 X Geological/Topographical

Appendix B105.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

Table B105.1(1) X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

B105.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

Table 105.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

101.1 through 101.5 X Admin

102.6 through 102.8 X Admin

102.10 through 102.12 X Admin

103.1 through 104.1 X Admin

104.3 through 104.4 X Admin

104.6 through 104.6.4 X Admin

104.8 through 104.9.2 X Admin

104.10.1 through 104.11.3 X Admin

105.2.3 X Admin

105.3.1 through 105.3.2 X Admin

105.6.10 X Admin

105.6.17 through 105.6.19 X Admin

105.6.28 X Admin

Page 1 of 2 September, 2016



 2016 CFC Findings of Fact Matrix
2016 CFC Amended Code Section Adopted Adopted as Amended Finding 

105.6.29 through 105.6.37 X Admin

105.6.39 through 105.6.44 X Admin

105.7.17 through 105.7.18 X Admin

106.1 X Admin

107.1 through 108.3 X Admin

109.3.2 through 109.4.1 X Admin

112.1 X Admin

113.1 through 113.5 X Admin

113.6 X Admin

113.6.1 X Admin

302 X Admin

303.1 through 303.9 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

305.1 through 305.5 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

307.1 through 307.5 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

308.1 through 308.4.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

403.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

403.5 through 403.12 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

503 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

Appendix D104.1 through D104.3 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

D105.1 through D105.4 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

D106.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

D107.1 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

D107.2 X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

Appendix F X Climatic/Geological/Topographical

Appendix N X Geological/Topographical

Page 2 of 2 September, 2016



 

 
 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  Mary Cahill, General Manager  
 
AGENDA ITEM #7:  COMPARISON FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 GOALS  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive, Discuss and Action as Appropriate  
  
BUDGET ACCOUNT: N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A   
 
 
At the September 21st Board of Directors’ meeting under Project Updates, staff referenced that they 
were working on a compilation of plans adopted by the Board.  This summary identifies 2016/17 
goals and includes the following documents: 
 

• Cameron Park Community Services District Marketing Plan (2015/16) 
• Five-Year Forecast and Assessment (Fiscal Year 2017 – Fiscal Year 2021)  
• Five-Year Strategic Plan 2016-2021  
• Fire Department Master Plan and Capital Improvement Plan 2015-2016 
• Goals 2016/17 
• Capital Improvement Plan 2016/17 

 
See Attachment A. 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 9/27/16   Attachment A 

Condensed Comparison of Fiscal Year 2016/17 Documents Page 1 of 3 
9/27/16 
  

Cameron Park Community Services District 

Condensed Comparison of Fiscal Year 2016/17 Documents: 
• Cameron Park Community Services District Marketing Plan (2015/16) 
• Five-Year Forecast and Assessment (Fiscal Year 2017 – Fiscal Year 2021)  
• Five-Year Strategic Plan 2016-2021  
• Fire Department Master Plan and Capital Improvement Plan 2015-2016 
• Goals 2016/17 
• Capital Improvement Plan 2016/17 

 

 
Increase Revenue    

Marketing and Program Plan Five Year Forecast and 
Assessment Five-Year Strategic Plan Goals 2016/17 

Increase revenue in Recreation 
Department programs and facility 
rentals by 5%.  Increase 
sponsorships and use events to 
bring in revenue. 

This model uses a 3% increase per 
year in revenue.  Grants can fund 
one-time needs and not on-going 
programs.  Continue efforts to seek 
cost effective changes and examine 
all sources of revenue enhancement.                                                         

Evaluate CC&R and 
Architectural Review fees. 

Apply for more grants, seek 
additional partnerships/sponsors 
and funding sources, build on 
current sponsorships and evaluate 
property improvement fee 
schedule.  

 
Enhance Relationships with the  Community 
Marketing and 
Program Plan Five-Year Strategic Plan Goals 2016/17 

Expand on community 
partnerships. 

Strengthen Community 
Partnerships. 
 

Continue to provide the highest level of customer service to every individual, 
every day and to enforce all CC&Rs in a timely, consistent, reasonable and non-
discriminatory manner. 

 
 



DRAFT 9/27/16   Attachment A 

Condensed Comparison of Fiscal Year 2016/17 Documents Page 2 of 3 
9/27/16 
  

Increase Attendance 
Marketing and 
Program Plan 

Five-Year Strategic 
Plan Goals 2016/17 Capital Improvement Plan 

2016/17 

Increase 
class/program 
attendance by 
5% using 
various events 
to promote 
classes and 
facilities. 
 

Improve the image of the 
CSD, provide top-quality 
programs, increase 
marketing/public 
relations and volunteer 
involvement, increase 
facility rentals and 
identify new and diverse 
opportunities. 

Explore new programs and events and identify trends, 
needs and desires.  Make improvements to various 
parks.  Complete analysis for park maintenance 
standards for parks and facilities and identify park 
improvements for return on investment.  Continue 
monthly training sessions for maintenance staff in 
various work-related subjects.  Work with GM to 
purchase discounted equipment 2017 CPRS 
Conference. 

• Reseal tennis courts - $45,000 

• Gazebo Repairs  and 
Improvements - $15,000 

• Resurface Christa McAuliffe 
parking lot - $10,000 

• Resurface Christa McAuliffe turf 
area - $25,000 

• Pool heater pump - $6,000 
 

Follow Top-Level Plans 

Five Year Forecast and Assessment Five-Year Strategic Plan Goals 2016/17 

Update forecast annually.  Monitor and refine, as 
needed, the Marketing Plan.  

Continue to follow the existing top-level plans – 
GASB 45 Actuarial Valuation Report Update, 
Browning Reserve Study Update, Marketing and 
Program Plan Update.   New plan - Five Year 
Forecast and Assessment (2017-2021). 

Update, review and tie strategies 
goals, policies and implementation. 

 

Establish a Reserve Fund   

Five Year Forecast and Assessment Five-Year Strategic Plan Goals 2016/17 

Establish a reserve for on-time and /or contributions towards OPEB 
liabilities.  Priority rank additional funding of its OPEB obligation, 
compared to other one-time needs.  Establish a target cash-flow 
reserve of between 4-6 months.   

Optimize reserve programs and address 
deferred maintenance needs.   
 

Review District fund 
balances and assist 
the Board with 
reserve decisions. 

 



DRAFT 9/27/16   Attachment A 

Condensed Comparison of Fiscal Year 2016/17 Documents Page 3 of 3 
9/27/16 
  

Fire Service     

Five Year 
Forecast and 
Assessment 

Five Year 
Strategic 

Plan 

Fire Department Master 
Plan and Capital 

Improvement Plan          
2015-2020 

Goals 2016/17 Capital Improvement Plan 
2016/17 

Continue to assess 
the costs of Fire 
Services.  

Maintain and 
improve Fire 
Prevention 
Program. 
 

Define the scope for an 
updated Capital Improvement 
Plan including forecasting 
revenues.  Identify and 
recommend the best ways to 
use an existing fire protection 
fund balance and funding 
options for the possible 
improvements.  Analyze 
current levels of service, 
response times, station 
locations and adequacy, and 
related subjects.  Address the 
scope and service impacts of a 
potential major development 
in Marble Valley.  Recommend 
an implementation strategy.  

Continue provide professional 
service to the community 
while maintaining personnel 
safety.  Implement plans and 
studies.  Fund department 
reserves to cover unforeseen 
costs and look for outside 
funding sources.  Continue 
firefighter development and 
maintaining facilities and 
equipment.   Continue and 
improve ongoing community 
event support and fire 
presentation programs.  
Increase utilization of explorer 
and resident programs.  
Continue the assistance by 
hire of development 
equipment to CAL Fire 
through local agreement.   

 

• Exterior paint for Station 89 - 
$25,000 

• Upstairs bathrooms remodel 
continued for Station 89 - 
$5,000 

• Flooring/Reception area desk 
for Station 88 - $21,000 

• Hose for Stations 88 and 89 - 
$5,000 

• Staffing for Weed Abatement 
Program - $26,730 

• Front office counters at Station 
89 - $3,000 

• Mattresses at Stations 88 and 
89 - $10,000 

• Washer and dryer for Station 
89 - $2,200 

 



 

GameTime Playground Equipment Grant October 19, 2016 Page 1 of 2 
 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  Mary Cahill, General Manager  
 
AGENDA ITEM #8:  GAMETIME PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT GRANT  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive, Discuss and Action at Appropriate  
  
BUDGET ACCOUNT:  N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT:  Currently Unfunded   
 
Staff applied for a grant from GameTime for playground equipment in September.  This is a 
matching grant where GameTime would match up to 100% of the grantee’s amount for equipment 
with a list price of more than $75,000.  The Cameron Park Community Services District’s (CPCSD) 
grant proposal was for $75,000 which was the approximate list price of a custom system for Cameron 
Park Lake designed the GameTime representative.  This would replace the current equipment.   
 
Information has been received from GameTime that CPCSD has been awarded 100% matching grant 
funding for $79,429 (the final list price of the system, not including tax and freight).  The grant 
breakdown is as follows: 
     

Total amount of grant  $79,429.00 
Matching funds from GameTime  ($39,714.50) 
Tax  $2,978.59 
Freight  $5,400.00 
Installation (estimate)  $23,000.00 
Demolition of old system (estimate)  $5,000.00 
Total amount to be pay by CPCSD  $76,093.09 

 
The due date to order this equipment is November 25th and full payment is due with the order.  The 
equipment would be shipped by December 7, 2016.   
 
There is already a location for the equipment at Cameron Park Lake.  The current playground 
equipment is over 20 years old and safety is of primary concern.  An equipment analyst will be 
assessing the condition of the current equipment in mid-October and a report be brought back to the 
Board at the November meeting for discussion.      
 



 

GameTime Playground Equipment Grant October 19, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
 

The Board is under no obligation to accept this grant and purchase this equipment.  Further 
information will be presented at the November Board meeting.  Special thanks to staff J. R. Hichborn 
and Kathy Matranga-Cooper for their work on this grant.   



 

Open Space and Special Use Park Permits October 19, 2016 Page 1 of 2 
 

  Cameron Park 
Community Services District 

 

Agenda Transmittal 
 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2016 
 
FROM:  Mary Cahill, General Manager  
 
AGENDA ITEM #9:  OPEN SPACE AND SPECIAL USE PARK PERMITS  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:      Receive and File  
  
BUDGET ACCOUNT: N/A    
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A   
 
The Cameron Park Community Services District’s (CSD’s) open space areas are subject to the county’s 
zoning ordinance matrix of allowed uses (see Attachment J). Currently the CSD is allowed to have a 
walking path and picnic tables but if additional recreational activities are desired, the CSD needs to apply 
for a special use permit with an attached site plan of the area describing the type of use the open space. 
All of the CSD’s open space areas are unique. They vary in size from less than an acre to over 13 acres. 
Some are more accessible than others and some have protected wetland areas while others are more open 
for potential recreational opportunities. The one thing that they all have in common is that none of them 
have a special use permit that would allow the CSD to build structures or to hold any type of events. The 
open space areas are listed below.  
 
Gateway Park (13.27 Acres) 
Is located off of Cambridge Road and has three access points - Hillcrest, Cambridge and Gateway. The 
park has a decomposed granite trail that connects Hillcrest Drive to Cambridge Road. There is also a 
barbeque pit and a concrete picnic table. A walkthrough with Foothill Associates was conducted on May 
10, 2016 for options regarding the development of the park and possible environmental impacts (see 
Attachment A).  
 
Sandpiper (3.13 Acres) 
Is located off of Bass Lake Road near Green Valley Elementary School. The property is undeveloped 
with no real access easement to the property. 
 
Dunbar (.94 Acres) 
Is located on the corner of Starbuck Road and Dunbar Road. The property is undeveloped. 
 
Knollwood Park (6.5 Acres) 
Is located off of Knollwood Drive. The park has a few drainage improvements installed by the CSDA. A 
walkthrough was conducted with Foothill Associates to explore possible options regarding the 
development of the park and possible environmental impacts (see Attachment B). 
 



 

Open Space and Special Use Park Permits October19, 2016 Page 2 of 2 
 

Royal Oaks Park (10.4 Acres) 
Is located off of Country Club Drive and runs parallel with Royal Drive. The park has a walking path that 
leads from one end of the park to the other but does not connect anywhere. We currently lock this park up 
at dusk and open it every morning by 8:00 a.m. 
 
Bonanza Park (12.6 Acres) 
Is located directly behind Cameron Park Lake. There is one informal trail that we utilize for getting the 
conservation camp crew’s trailer to the park during our fire fuel reduction prior to the Summer 
Spectacular. 
 
Special Use Permits 
 
Rasmussen Park 
The special use permit for Rasmussen Park (S87-57) will allow the CSD to have two lit softball/soccer 
fields, an unlit basketball court and volleyball court, a playground structure, restroom facilities and lit 
walkways/parking lot. The noise level of the parks activities cannot exceed 55 DBA between the hours of 
10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. and cannot exceed 60 DBA between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. The 
lights on the ball fields cannot exceed 70 feet and all lights must be turned off by an automatic timer by 
9:30 p.m. The hours of operation for the park must be from 8:00 a.m. till 10:00 p.m. 

 
Christa McAuliffe Park 
The special use permit for Christa McAuliffe Park (S91-20) will allow the CSD to have a multi-purpose 
sports field, restroom facilities, sidewalks, a play structure and a community skate park. The transmission 
line easements must be clear of any structures and there must be a six foot high chain link fence along the 
south side of the park. 
 
Cameron Park Lake 
The special use permit for Cameron Park Lake (S37-11) allows the CSD to have a chlorinated swimming 
lagoon with three filtration tanks, tennis courts, a play structure, a volleyball court, restroom facilities, a 
walking trail and a gazeebo. Water from the filtration system cannot be put into the main body of water. 
 
Community Center 
The special use permit for the Community Center (S05-0032) allows for an assembly hall, youth activity 
center, meeting rooms, class rooms, gymnasium, commercial kitchen and a competition swimming pool. 
The hours of operation are to be from 7:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
 
 



TRANSMITTAL  June 14, 2016

TO: Mary Cahill  WITH:  Cameron Park CSD 

FROM:  Ed Armstrong 

SUBJECT:  Gateway Park ‐ CPCSD 

Summary: 

A walk through was conducted on 5/10/16 to review Gateway Park, a 13.3 acre neighborhood 
park containing a small parking area, an informal ball field with backstop, an informal trail 
network and relatively unimproved open space. With access points from Cambridge Road, 
Sterling Way, and Gateway Drive, this park has the potential to serve many neighborhoods. 
While the narrow linear shape of the park, the topography, and the presence of many oak trees 
limit its potential for traditional sports fields, other active uses, such as disc golf, an exercise 
course, and play areas are feasible.   

Attendees:   

 J.R.  Hichborn (CPCSD – Park Supervisor),

 Ed Armstrong and Jerry Stacionis (Foothill Associates – Landscape Architect and
Landscape Planner)

The project team met at 2:00 pm on May 10, 2016 at the small parking area on Cambridge Road.  

J.R., Ed and Jerry walked the CSD property following unpaved footpaths from the east side Cambridge 
Road entrance heading west through the park to the detention basin located on Clemson Drive.  We also 
toured the area north of the ball field along the linear portion of the park following unpaved footpaths 
until restricted by wet areas and vegetation.   We concluded the visit by driving to the north side of the 
park and viewing potential trail tie‐ins with Gateway Drive.  Overall, we discussed potential trail 
connections/improvements, parking lot options and improvements, field improvements and the 
addition of playing fields and other amenities.  The site visit concluded at 3:15 pm.    

Observations: The following items were noted during the site walk: 

1. Improvements to the existing ballfield require leveling the grade, installing a new backstop and
infield.   Leveling would not impact the existing creek which parallels Cambridge Road and runs
along the west side of the ballfield, nor the drainage swale east of the ballfield and adjacent to
Cambridge Road, but depending upon the amount of cut or fill, may require retaining walls.

2. The existing footpath connecting the Cambridge Road entrance to Clemson Drive should be
improved to a paved Class I trail or stabilized DG pedestrian path using the existing bridge and
trail alignment.  This trail should be ADA accessible if possible.  A second Class I paved trail or
stabilized DG pedestrian pathway connecting the central portion of the park with Gateway Drive

Attachment A



 

 

is also recommended.  This portion of the trail will run along potential wetlands adjacent to the 
existing creek.  A wetland delineation and biological resources assessment will be needed to 
determine the magnitude of the potential impacts and best alignment for the trail.      

3. The existing parking lot on Cambridge road should be improved through minor grade 
adjustments, asphaltic paving or the addition of road base, plus the installation of curbs. 

4. Replacement of the previous play equipment and/or the installation of an exercise course or 
individual exercise stations along the paths should be considered for the central space.  A small 
play or exercise area should be designed to work with the existing topography and shape of the 
park.   This might require removal of some of the existing oak trees, which may require 
mitigation per El Dorado County’s Oak Woodland Management Plan.   Multigenerational 
exercise equipment would provide health benefits to a wide range of CPCSD residents, including 
the growing mature adult and senior population.   

5. Given the existing topography, a bicycle ‘pump trail’ paralleling the main trail is a unique 
amenity that could fit the context of this park, if done carefully to manage potential erosion 
issues.  

6. Due to existing topography and the abundance of oak trees, a disc golf course would also fit this 
site well.  Disc golf is one of the recommended additions to facilities identified in the 2014 
CPCSD Parks and Recreation Master Plan Update. 

7. If the District desires additional parking at Gateway Park beyond that afforded on Cambridge 
Drive, retrofit of the detention basin on Clemson Drive to accommodate automobiles may be 
possible using a subsurface modular storage system to accommodate basin flows in high 
frequency (2‐5 year) flood events without flooding the parking area.  The lot could likely 
accommodate between 10 and 15 cars.   

 
Recommendations:  While the narrow linear shape of the park, the topography, close proximity to 

residential property, and the presence of many oak trees limit the potential for traditional sports fields, 
improvement and expansion of the trail system and the addition of other active uses such as disc golf, 
an exercise course, and play equipment are feasible.  We recommend improvements based on 
observation items 1 ‐4 listed above.  Items 5 through 7, while viable, are additional options for 
consideration at Gateway Park.  Because this neighborhood park is easily accessible by bicycle or walking 
from the surrounding neighborhoods, the additional parking lot on Clemson Drive may not be needed. 

The trail connection to Gateway Drive from the main part of the park may involve wetland impacts and 
will require significant vegetation management.  We recommend a wetland delineation be performed 
on the CPCSD property to determine specific impacts and alignment options.  This would ideally occur 
after additional vegetation management activities.  Please note that consultation with California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife may be required prior to undertaking vegetation removal in the riparian 
zone of the creek.  A conceptual alignment study could then be prepared once wetland boundaries have 
been identified.   

 



  Attachment B 

Knollwood Park Summary October 19, 2016  Page 1 of 2 
 

Knollwood Park Summary 
In April of 2016, Foothill Associates and staff did a walkthrough of the Knollwood Park to 
explore possible options for future development ideas. It was determined that in order to move 
forward, a few studies would need to be done to appropriately assess the Cameron Park 
Community Services District’s (CSD’s) options. Foothill Associates can prepare a biological 
resource assessment, a woodland assessment and an aquatic resource delineation. These 
studies will identify possible biological constraints that could keep the CSD from developing 
recreational activities in the area. Foothill Associates has provided the CSD with a not to exceed 
estimate of $11,400 for these services.  
 
Below is the recommended process for the assessment of Knollwood Park. 
 
Biological Resource Assessment and Oak Woodland Assessment 
Foothill Associates biologists shall review available materials regarding existing site conditions, 
biological resources, and wetlands (e.g. USGS topographic maps, NRCS soils maps, and 
California Natural Diversity Database) for the Knollwood Park site. Foothill Associates shall then 
conduct a field survey to identify dominant plant communities on the site, identify sensitive 
vegetation communities, and evaluate the potential for the site to support special-status plant 
and wildlife species. We will also map and evaluate the condition of oak woodlands on the 
project site. Upon completion of the field survey, a biological resources assessment shall be 
prepared that identifies biological resources and potential biological constraints, such as 
wetlands and oak woodlands, assesses of the likelihood of special-status species or habitats to 
be found on the project site, and provides recommendations for any further studies or 
permitting that may be required prior to development. The report will include a site and vicinity 
map, soil map, and map of biological communities and constraints. A draft report shall be 
submitted electronically to the client for review in PDF format. Upon completion of the review 
by the client, one hard copy and an electronic (PDF) copy of the final report shall be submitted 
to the client. 
 
Aquatic Resource Delineation and Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination 
Foothill Associates shall conduct a field aquatic resource delineation on the Knollwood Park site 
located in Cameron Park, California according to the 1987 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) 
Wetland Delineation Manual, the Western Mountain, Valley, and Coast Regional Supplement, 
and applicable wetlands regulations. Upon completion of the field delineation, Foothill 
Associates shall prepare a preliminary map of wetlands and other waters of the U.S. on the site 
according to the requirements as specified in the 2016 minimum standards for conducting an 
aquatic resources delineation by the Sacramento District of the Corps of Engineers. The draft 
aquatic resources map and report will be provided electronically for client review in PDF 
format. Upon client approval a final copy of the Aquatic Resources Delineation Report will be 
prepared.  At the client’s direction, the aquatic resources delineation report and a request for 
preliminary jurisdictional determination shall be submitted to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 



  Attachment B 

Knollwood Park Summary October 19, 2016  Page 2 of 2 
 

If required, we will meet with Corps staff on site to review the aquatic resources mapping and 
provide any additional information that they request. 
 
 




























	1. October 19, 2016 BOD Agenda
	1a. September 21, 2016 BOD Conformed Agenda
	1b. September 29, 2016 BOD Special Mtg Conformed Agenda
	1c. October 4, 2016 BOD Special Mtg Conformed Agenda
	1d. October 12, 2016 BOD Special Mtg Conformed Agenda
	1e. Cameron Park ADA Presentation
	       ADA TRANSITION PLAN�           ON COUNTY MAINTAINED ROADWAYS
	GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
	AREAS SURVEYED
	METHOD OF SURVEYING
	SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
	Curb Ramp Database
	CURB RAMPS NEEDED
	RATINGS
	PRIORITIES
	Cameron Park-�Curb Ramp Locations
	COST ESTIMATE PER CASE
	PRELIMINARY �COST ESTIMATE
	REPAIR/REPLACEMENT PROPOSED SCHEDULE
	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES
	ANTICIPATED PROJECT SCHEDULE
	NEXT STEPS
	  QUESTIONS? Or COMMENTS?

	1f. Cameron Park ADA Flyer
	2a. GM Report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	2b. fIRE Staff Report 10 19 16
	2c.Recreation Report  oct 2016 
	2ca. Analyrics Audience Overview 2016
	2cb. Analytics Cameron Park CSD Audience Overview 8.30.15-9.29.15
	2cc. Analytics All Web Site Data New vs Returning 20160830-20160929
	2cd. Analytics Cameron Park CSD New vs Returning 8.30.15-9.29.15
	2ce. Analytics All Web Site Data Pages 20160830-20160929
	2cf. Analytics Cameron Park CSD Pages 8.30.15-9.29.15
	2cg. Cameron Park EOM September
	2ch. Cameron Park EOM September_overview
	2ci.Activity Report pooch plunge 2016
	2cj. PSA Sept
	2ck. PSA Sept
	2cl. PSA Sept 
	2cm.mailchimp
	2cn. Park Survey results 2016
	2d. Parks Report
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	3. Financial Narrative September 2016
	3a. Budget-Actual 09.30.16
	3b. Check Register
	3c. GM Credit Card 09.22.2016
	Page Identifiers
	00000001


	5. Project Updates
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	5a. Google Analytics
	6. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2016.10.19
	. Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	6a. CPFD Ordinance No 2016 10.19 - Amendments to CFC  -  8 22 16
	6b. Ordinance 2016 CFC Matrix
	7. 2016-17 Goals
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	7a. Condensed Comparison of  Plans for 2016-17 Goals
	8. GameTime Playground Equipment Grant
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	9. Open Space and Special Use Park Permits
	Cameron Park
	Community Services District
	Agenda Transmittal

	9A. Gateway
	9B. Knollwood
	9C. County Zoning
	9e. Implementation



